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Business at a Glance cucpacises

primary focus is on providing basic infrastructure — power generation,
communications, aviation and civil infrastructure - in Hong Kong and
mainland China. They are complemented by the distribution of motor

vehicles and consumer products, property and industrial manufacturing.

Based in Hong Kong with a deep knowledge of China, CITIC Pacific
consists of sound businesses that produce good cash flows, many of which
have the potential to grow. Our finance is well-structured and we have a

tradition of operating with excellent standards of corporate governance.
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“ﬂ \ust, Reliability and Confidence.
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Power Generation CITIC Pacific builds, owns and operates power plants in
mainland China. Current total installed capacity in the power stations we have
an interest is 7,100MW and another 2,520MW is under construction.

Communications CITIC Pacific runs one of the largest game hosting
platforms in China and with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee promotes sports through e-platforms. CITIC Telecom 1616
is the leading IDD wholesaler in Asia, cPcNet offers data services to customers
throughout Greater China, CITIC Guoan operates cable Tv networks in
mainland China and ct™ is Macau’s communications provider of choice.

Aviation CITIC Pacific is a key participant in the aviation sector through
Cathay Pacific Airways, Hong Kong Dragon Airlines, air cargo provider HACTL
and Air China Cargo.

Civil Infrastructure CITIC Pacific is either an owner or involved in the
management of all three of Hong Kong harbour crossings - vital facilities that
connect Hong Kong Island to Kowloon.
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Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading serve the people of Hong Kong and other
parts of China by distributing an array of motor vehicles, consumer and food
commodities, and branded food, household and healthcare products.

Alone or with partners, CITIC Pacific develops, manages and owns properties
including Hong Kong’s CITIC Tower, Festival Walk, Discovery Bay, and
Shanghai’s New Westgate Garden, CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion.

Jiangyin steel plant is one of China’s leading manufacturer of specialty steels
such as bearing and gear steels. Wuxi Huada Motors produces electrical motors
for the domestic and European markets.

CITIC Capital Markets Holdings, bio-pharmaceutical research and distance
learning are all developing businesses of the CITIC Pacific Group.
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in HK$ million
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Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Major Businesses’ Contribution
Power Generation
Communications
Aviation
Civil Infrastructure
Marketing & Distribution
Property
Industrial Manufacturing

Investment Properties Revaluation

Cash Contributed from all Businesses

Capital Employed
Shareholder’s Funds
Net Debt

Undrawn Loan Facilities

3,875

245
553
1,263
1,238
227
894
126
5,426
51,805
42,538
6,722
9,300

LB At E

in HK$

SRET
SREL
et
5

Earnings per Share
Dividends per Share
Regular
Special

BETIHHE

Staff

ARTERASZHEISIR

Please see page 159 for definition of terms used
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders
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CITIC Pacific’s net profit for 2003 was HK$1,305 million, a decrease of 66%
compared with the HK$3,875 million in 2002. This decline is due to the
loss of income from the three bridges and two tunnels in Shanghai, which
were sold, a decrease in aviation’s contribution, and a HK$587 million
provision against the value of investment properties. Fortunately the SARS
affected businesses recovered quickly, and a detailed analysis of their
performance can be found in the Business and Financial Review sections
of this report. The Board recommends maintaining the final dividend at
the same level as 2002 of HK$0.7 per share.

Power
A key business of CITIC Pacific is the generation of electric power, and 2003
has provided CITIC Pacific with the following excellent opportunities:

The Ligang Power Station in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province is the flagship of our
Company’s power business. Construction of its third 2x600MW phase
began in 2003 and operation is planned for 2006. The fourth phase, also
2x600MW, is expected to be operational in 2007. Equipment for both
phases has already been ordered. CITIC Pacific recently acquired an
additional 9% of the Ligang Power Station Phases I and IT and now

owns 65%. Our shareholding in Phases III and IV will be higher at 73%.

Also in Wuxi, an application to build a Pumped Storage facility with a
capacity of 700MW is being considered by the relevant authorities.

In January 2004 we became a 20% owner of the North United Power
Corporation, which has an attributable generating capacity of 4,310MW,
all in Inner Mongolia. Another 920MW of attributable capacity is being
planned for 2004. North United Power Corporation is now a partnership
between Inner Mongolia Electric Co. and two other major power
companies China Huaneng Group and Shenhua Group. Inner Mongolia
has substantial coal deposits making it an ideal location for power
generation, both for the requirements in the autonomous region, and to
supply electricity to North and Northeast China through the grid.

In coming years North United Power will continue to build additional
capacity with the aim of becoming one of the largest power generation

companies in mainland China.
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Mainland China is short of power both today and in the long run as
prosperity will continue to increase, so CITIC Pacific is confident that
there will be opportunities to expand our power generation business in

the coming years.

Communications

In November CITIC Pacific established a 20-year exclusive cooperative
relationship with the All-China Sports Federation and the Chinese
Olympic Committee to develop, operate and maintain an interactive
platform for broadband digital sports using the brand Chinese Interactive
Sports. Three websites are in operation: sport.org.cn providing accurate
and authoritative sports reports; olympic.cn the official site of the Chinese
Olympic Committee presented in English and Chinese, and sport.cn which
integrates four existing sites: China Sports on-line, China E-Sports, China
Sports Lottery and On-line Sports Goods. The China Sports Federation
lists 99 ‘official’ sports, and interest in them is intense throughout
mainland China, so the opportunities presented to CITIC Pacific

through these ventures are immense.

During 2003, steps have been taken to develop data and e-commerce
platforms, and a profitable on-line internet game has been marketed
throughout mainland China which attracted over 10 million subscribers,
and on occasions up to 210,000 simultaneous players. Having proved the

operational aspects of the system, more products will be launched in 2004.

CITIC 1616’s profit was reduced in 2003 as margins came under pressure,
but margins have now stabilised, and the advantage of being Asia’s largest

DD wholesaler will be seen in the coming years.

Steel

Over the last 10 years, CITIC Pacific has developed a very successful
business manufacturing steel for specialised uses such as ball bearings,
gears and automobile springs. In 2003, a record 1.7 million tonnes was
produced, of which 145,000 tonnes was exported. Jiangyin Xing Cheng
has the highest production of bearing steel in mainland China. In
partnership with Sumitomo Metals, a one million tonne expansion will
begin shortly. Building on this experience, in February 2004 CITIC Pacific

entered into an agreement to purchase 95% of the Daye Special Steel Mill
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at Huangshi, Hubei Province which in 2003 manufactured 1.3 million
tonnes of specialty steel, and plans 2 million tonnes in 2004. In January
2004 CITIC Pacific increased its ownership in its existing Jiangyin Special
Steel Plant to 79% by purchasing shares from our partner. We plan to
reorganise and expand our enlarged steel interests and become the market

leader in specialty steel in mainland China.

Property

The 1st phase of the New Westgate Garden residential development in
Shanghai is targeting for pre-sale in 2004, and completion 2005/2006.

We also own a parcel of land with a site area of about 4.7million sq. feet
near the Shanghai Pudong airport for future development for logistics
purposes. Our investment properties of CITIC Square and Royal Pavilion
are doing well. A number of other development opportunities in different
locations are under negotiation, and we are confident of the continued
opportunities that the growth of the Chinese economy will present in the

property sector.

Aviation

Both Cathay Pacific and Dragonair had a difficult time in the first half of
2003, but by early 2004 record numbers of passengers were being carried.
Cathay Pacific and Dragonair’s success depends on a healthy economy in
China delivering more passengers from the mainland China, and in this
expanding market both airlines should do well. CITIC Pacific’s joint
venture with Air China Cargo officially began operation in January 2004,
and we are confident that it will benefit from the increasing economic

activities in mainland China.

Environmental

A major breakthrough was made in extending our waste treatment
businesses in Hong Kong to Shanghai when the Shanghai government
awarded our joint venture the contract to design, construct, operate and
maintain the Phase 4 of Laogang Municipal Waste Landfill. There should
be many more such opportunities in the future as Chinese cities focus on

environmental issues.
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Marketing and Distribution

Dah Chong Hong and Sims Trading had good results even though the
business in Hong Kong was disappointing, this was more than offset by
the performance in other parts of mainland China. Throughout mainland
China, both DcH and Sims will continue their systematic expansion
building markets and sales networks and modernising operating facilities

while building sophisticated control systems alongside.

Capital Markets
CITIC Capital Markets had an exceptional and profitable year in its first
full year of operation, and has established a fine reputation in asset

management and investment banking in a very short time.

Our Future

CITIC Pacific is taking new opportunities to expand through mainland
China where we expect continued economic growth to create more
opportunities in the future. CITIC Pacific’s overriding objective is to
increase shareholder value, and I am confident that the new projects, in
combination with the stable and profitable current businesses, will do so.
We will remain focused mainly in areas of greatest expertise — power
generation, communications, special steel manufacturing, aviation,

property and trading.

CITIC Pacific is financially robust with low leverage and ample cash and
unused financial facilities, giving sufficient resources to execute our

expansion plans.

On behalf of all the directors, I would like to thank our bankers and
investors for their continued support; and to thank the staff of CITIC
Pacific and its subsidiaries and associates who have worked so hard in the
last year. Their commitment to CITIC Pacific and its future is the basis of

our success.

Larry Yung Chi Kin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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Infrastructure

%E Power
LB E BTt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
piElB=¥) Contribution 229 245
1 4855 A1 & AL 51 Proportion of total contribution 9% 5%
FEE Net assets 1,508 1,449
=¥ NGRS Capital expenditure 144 120

T B 4 #% B Power Stations in mainland China
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9% / 36MW

% {5 E &R CITIC Pacific Ownership

MW ## &R & Capacity
* 1E#EFE P Under Construction

CITIC Pacific’s team of power professionals are actively involved in every

aspect of power stations, from identifying new investment opportunities,

supervising the construction to actively managing the operation of

the plants.

In 2003, increased demand for electricity and the operation of newly

completed units contributed to an increase of 20% in total electricity
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Bir R R FEORA S S MRACERMZE =4 generated, which reached 16,847 million kwh. However, profits were lower
B > BERBIGLM B B - 55> AL than that of 2002 primarily because during its first year of operation, the
B CRE I R R > P AR 2 tariff at Jilin plant was low, resulting in a loss. The timing of dividend

ERHEZ— o payments from some plants, in particular Ligang, is also a factor.

B EMmA S MMHEIER Electricity and heat generated by all power plants

K#EE %4 E 2 Electricity Generated #H# 2 Heat Generated
EH S (kE)
Installed =t #t
Capacity 2003 2002 | change 2003 2002 | change
Type (MW) (M Kwh) (M Kwh) % (KGJ) (KGY) %
F MR AR
Ligang Coal fired 1,400 8,944 8,505 5 - - -
k) MR B4R
Kaifeng Coal fired 125 696 679 3 - - -
= HEHE
Zhengzhou Co-generation 600 3,232 3,085 5 5,944 5,380 10
Hohhot Co-generation 400 2,638 1,492 77 883 * *
L HEHE
Jilin Co-generation 200 965 * * 243 * *
B8 B E
Weihai Co-generation 36 174 85 105 2,575 2,380 8
=% ENE R 1.48 80 1,28 B
Shouguang Co-generation 24 201 200 0.5 | 1.4m tonnes | 1.2m tonnes 17
* A& E not in operation
P ERESHNSRAERRERERTE JKE MW
CITIC Pacific’s Total and 12.000
Attributable Installed Capacity T
10,000 _
8,000 _
6,000 _
4,000
o I I I I I
0 llllllllllllllllll I I
93 94 95 96 97 98 99 02 03 04 05 06
[ A 2 Total Installed Capacity I EREEA S Attributable Capacity
FrEIEE A E Planned Total Installed Capacity o FHEE R A S Planned Attributable Capacity



HRERERAR A EETRE T EREN
HE o EAEREME RS EN
R BT BRI R o B P B AR R A
NRAEFAKTHRR  BIIRRANE A
B4R o H AT A AC R A R R B R
o (HH AR A AR TE R LU
B IEAEEAT I AT S - R AR
%E%%%J%%&Eh&Tﬁ%ﬁ@o%@
TE 1 J7E 76 71 26765 7 U T S I -

CEFBZARAH > BB BLAGE TR S R
THRIEA o IO IEEE > 2 B AT PRI
RIFTERZ — o TLERE LR NSRRI A
hz—> KRR HNHEER _FF F
WRT21% - MIWER=EM TEBA608 T
FUR AR EE L PRS- TR ZFF N FER
NPT o WIHH WS T AR 38 o
PG TR IHE M A5 ENT75% -
S A 608 T AT C R —FFLF
T o m M R B - R
P E 78 BRAL TR R A5 AR T v R
9% I B RE R 1 2 (P[5 2% E A ik
— AR BERER N ZE 65% > T = > THHIA
F73% o

PR R M =408 T T (2x208 T 50) mdk

=% —\»QE?E SEUNHLAE > B AT IR
EATH > RIS F T NAERE o

Power generation is an important area of expansion for CITIC Pacific,
based on years of experience, expertise and knowledge of the Chinese
power industry. As the Chinese economy develops and peoples’ standard
of living rises, electricity demand and consumption will continue to grow.
Currently, mainland China’s economic growth rate is among one of the
highest in the world, yet its per capita installed capacity and electricity
consumption per capita is low. The ongoing reform in the power industry
in mainland China has presented many attractive opportunities for
independent power producers such as CITIC Pacific and significant

progress has been made in expanding our power portfolio.

In May 2003, the State Council approved the 3rd phase of the Ligang
power station, now one of the most efficient in China. Ligang is located
in Jiangsu Province, one of the fastest growing provinces in mainland
China where consumption of electricity grew by 21% compared with
2002. Construction of Ligang 3rd phase, which consists of two 600MW
units, is currently underway, and commercial operation is expected in
2006. An RMB3.8 billion 20-year project finance loan has been arranged
for this 3rd phase, which represents 75% of the total investment. Phase 4
of another two 600MW units is scheduled for completion in 2007.
Equipment has been ordered for both phases. In October, CITIC Pacific
reached an agreement with the CITIC Group in Beijing to acquire an
additional 9% stake in Ligang Power Station, increasing its holding in
Ligang Phase I and II to 65% and 73% in Phase III and IV.

The expansion of the Zhengzhou plant, a 3rd phase 400MW (2x200MW),
was also approved in 2003. Construction is progressing as planned and

commissioning is expected in 2006.

Electricity Generated
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In January 2004, CITIC Pacific, together with Inner Mongolia Power
Investment Corporation, China Huaneng Group and Beijing Guohua
Power of the Shenhua Group, formed North United Power Corporation,
to jointly develop the power generation business in Inner Mongolia. The
joint venture aims to utilise the abundance of coal in this autonomous
region to build North United Power into one of the most efficient and first
rate power companies in mainland China, and to supply electricity to
Inner Mongolia and through the grid to Beijing, North and Northeast
China. North United Power’s operating power plants currently have
attributable installed capacity of 4,310MW. An additional attributable
capacity of 920MW is expected to become operational in 2004. The
Company has plans to expand its power production in Inner Mongolia in
the future. The joint venture’s registered capital is RMB10 billion. CITIC
Pacific, a 20% partner in North United Power, will contribute cash and a
20% holding in Hohhot power plant. North United Power officially began

operation in January 2004.

In November 2003, CITIC Pacific entered into a joint venture agreement
with Wuxi Power to build a 700MW pumped storage hydraulic power
plant in Ma Shan, Wuxi City in Jiangsu Province. Application for this
project is being reviewed by the relevant authorities. Currently there exists
a huge difference between electricity demand for the peak and non-peak
time in Jiangsu Province. A pumped storage power station will capture
this demand difference as it uses off-peak electricity to provide peak
power. Ma Shan is next to Tai Lake, which will provide the water supply

necessary for such a power plant.

As all of our power plants are coal fired, ensuring sufficient supply of
coal, managing coal costs and transporting coal efficiently is of great
importance and our power team is skilled at this task. CITIC Pacific is
actively studying the possibility of building power stations next to existing

large coalmines in provinces with abundant coal supplies.
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Communications

HEL Location A Ownership
F{=E1616 CITIC Telecom 1616 BB Hong Kong 100%
CPCNet CPCNet BB Hong Kong 100%
FER% CITIC Guoan Bl Beijing 50%
JEFIER CTM (Macau Telecom) YT Macau 20%
LB EE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002
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The focus of CITIC Pacific’s communications business is on providing
value-added services. Working through partners and group entities, a
number of e-commerce initiatives and products were launched. In
November 2003, CITIC Pacific, together with the All-China Sports
Federation and the Chinese Olympic Committee, formed a 20-year
exclusive alliance to promote sports and sports related commerce, in
particular the 2008 Olympics. On the related ‘China Interactive Sports’
platform, leveraging on advanced, integrated 1T technologies, three
flagship websites — Olympic.cn, Sport.org.cn and Sports.cn — were built.
The All-China Sports Federation lists 99 official sports and there is intense
interest in them throughout mainland China, which presents tremendous

opportunities for CITIC Pacific.

CITIC Pacific is also running one of the largest game hosting platforms
in China. Currently, a profitable internet game ‘Legend of Mir 3’ has been
marketed throughout mainland China that attracted over 10 million
subscribers with an average of approximately 200,000 concurrent users.
CITIC Pacific plans to work closely with game developers throughout

the world to continue to source games that can be catered to the

Chinese market.
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CITIC Telecom 1616

CITIC Telecom 1616 (www.citicl1616.com) is a leader in Asia’s IDD
wholesale market, serving more than 150 international telecom and
mobile carriers in over 80 countries. Approximately 55% of Hong Kong’s
total monthly 1DD traffic is now handled by 1616, and about 50% of the
calls are mainland China traffic where 1616’s primary customers are
China Unicom and China Mobile.

In 2003, total traffic volume grew 64% from 2002. However, margins were
lower, partially affected by sARs as higher margin mobile traffic was
substituted by lower margin fixed line calls, which resulted in decreased
profitability. 1616 is seeking ways to continue to expand its customer base

particularly serving destinations where margins are better.
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CITIC Telecom 1616 Traffic Volume Growth
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CPCNet

With the granting of a Fixed Carrier License by the Hong Kong
telecommunications authority in 2003, cPcNet Hong Kong
(www.cpcnet-hk.com) has transformed from an Internet services

provider to a telecommunications carrier.

Through a significantly strengthened network and enhanced alliances and
partnerships, cPCNet is able to offer world-class communications services,
from traditional Internet connectivity to private networks based on the
latest technologies, to regional small and medium enterprises and global

multinational corporations.

With ‘TrueConnect’, the first Multiprotocol Label Switching based
Internet Protocol Virtual Private Network built in Greater China coupled
with customer service excellence, CPCNet has established itself firmly

as a key new generation carrier in Greater China and Asia. In 2003, the
customer base of “TrueConnect’ increased by more than 100% to over 700
connections. It has 13 self-owned Point of Presence (POPs) connecting

to over 40 cities in Greater China with service coverage spanning Asia,

usa and Europe.

CITIC Guoan

CITIC Guoan’s primary business is its 62% interest in CITIC Guoan
Information Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Guoan Information’), a Shenzhen

Stock Exchange listed company whose primary business is operating cable
TV networks in mainland China. At the end of 2003, Guoan Information
had approximately 4 million subscribers in 17 cities in mainland China.
In addition to its CATV networks, Guoan Information has interests in
system integration, software development, hotel management and
property development. CITIC Guoan also owns the CITIC Building in
Beijing, which had 95% occupancy at the end of 2003.

CTM

20% owned by CITIC Pacific since 1991, Companhia de Telecomunicacoes
de Macau s.A.R.L. (‘cTM’) (www.ctm.net) is the provider of choice of
fixed line, mobile telephone and internet access services to the people

of Macau SAR. In 2003, cTM’s profit rose 10% to HK$410 million.

The customer base for mobile decreased 2% due to competition, and

internet customer base increased 27%.

13



¥ 7% E Business Review

2 ey . .
fin == Aviation
b2 Headquarters A #E Ownership
Bl e ze B Cathay Pacific Hong Kong 25.7%
TEREMZE BB Dragonair Hong Kong 28.5%
BAEEE ) HK Air Cargo Terminals Hong Kong 10%
PRI EE b= Air China Cargo Beijing 25%
LB B S TatE in HK$ million 2003 2002
BRI Cathay Pacific 330 1,023
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BB E HACTL 71 86
2 REE Air China Cargo — T PYE— A EIH4E# operation began in January 2004
a2 1 B A Contribution 421 1,263
154855 A E BALL 51 Proportion of total contribution 16% 26%
FAE Net assets 12,880 13,305
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Cathay Pacific (www.cathaypacific.com) is an international passenger
and freight carrier based in Hong Kong serving 87 destinations around
the world. CITIC Pacific is the second largest shareholder and, through
participation on the board, the executive and other committees, has been
actively involved in its management since it first became a shareholder

in 1991.

In 2003, Cathay Pacific’s revenue was severely affected by the outbreak

of saRs, which reduced passenger numbers dramatically in the second
quarter. 2003 revenue declined 11% compared with 2002. Profits fell 67%
to HK$1.3 billion. Total revenue passenger carried decreased by 18% to
10 million. Passenger load factor decreased 6% points to 72%. Yield fell by
5%. Cargo tonnage carried set a record of 874,724 tonnes, 3% higher than
that of 2002, but yield fell marginally. A rapid improvement in the second
half of 2003 occurred after the SARS outbreak was contained, and in

January 2004 a record number of passengers per day were carried.

In December, Cathay Pacific renewed its service to Beijing after a 13-year
absence, with three roundtrips a week. It has applied to increase its
frequency to Beijing to twice daily, and to fly to Shanghai and Xiamen.
On 1 July 2004 Cathay Pacific will begin a non-stop flight between

Hong Kong and New York.

Dragonair (www.dragonair.com) operates passenger services to 28
destinations in Asia, of which 20 are to mainland Chinese cities. It began
its service to Bangkok in November 2003, and flights to Tokyo are also
expected in April 2004. Freighter services are offered to Shanghai,
Xiamen, Europe via the Middle East, and Osaka. In 2003, Dragonair saw
net revenue decrease 1.3% to HK$5,868 million and profit also decreased
87% to HK$71 million. In the 2nd quarter of 2003, saRrs had a heavy
effect on Dragonair as Greater China was most affected by the virus.
Revenue passengers carried were down 32% in the 1st half of 2003. Since
then, due to the recovery in travel and tourism stimulated in particular
by tourists from mainland China, Dragonair’s passenger numbers came
back strongly. In 2003, a total of 3 million revenue passengers were

carried - a drop of 11%, while passenger yield decreased 8.6%.

15



¥ 7% E Business Review

# BEfin == Dragonair

BEEA# REEE
Monthly Passengers Carried Monthly Cargo Carried
400 30
350
25
[0}
300 %
IS = 20
S 250 S
IS S
+ 200 S s
H‘ g
x 150 =3
= H 10
100 B
50 5
0 0
12 383 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
A 17 month H 13 month
I 2003 I 2003
I 2002 I 2002

Ry T R P R > AR R 269,980M
FF40% > %8 EE 2 T S 0ok &
CTEE TR BT

T s 22 4 17 9 (www.hactl.com) 8% 2Bk &%
KA 22 B bl - ARG Rk UK
MECETIE) MAFE T > 8% A R R A
e —EF =R UGER H AN %

TR 5.6% o AL — SR B A T 4R
] B = A T AR B 5 A A

AR ASCR A AR B R P R A 2 R R
B3R -
o o Pt B A 2 A B A S A O AR

HABGIERES > PEREEAEAA25%
ZHERR o F RS 1 o R PR A 2 1) B I
ARG A o B3 o WA R EA SR A > I
Ie] IR P A BB S 22 (M 123 R B i 2 B ok
Y o B AT RE 26610 Bl A K 561 2 F
H A -

Cargo performed strongly with 269,980 tonnes of freight carried in 2003,
an increase of 40%, due to strong demand and an additional freighter,

which entered into service at the end of 2002.

HACTL (www.hactl.com) is the operator of the largest air cargo terminal in
the world. Total tonnage handled exceeded 2 million tonnes for the first
time in 2003, an increase of 5.6% compared with 2002 - a result of strong
growth in exports, in particular to Europe. SuperTerminal 1 has a
potential capacity of 3.5 million tonnes per annum, providing adequate
capacity to support a robust growth of air cargo in Hong Kong and

mainland China into the future.

Air China Cargo, a joint venture in which CITIC Pacific has a 25% interest,
began operation in January 2004. It handles all of Air China’s international
and domestic cargo and related ground service businesses. The company
has 5 freighter planes and the belly space in Air China’s 123 passenger
planes, to carry cargo. Currently it flies to 266 domestic and 56

international destinations.
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Civil Infrastructure

24 Location G #E Ownership
KRB BERE B Eastern Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong
— AR — Road 71%
— B — Rail 50%
7alR gk E BB Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong 35%
P EIRF R ETE R B Four waste treatment facilities Hong Kong 20% - 50%
E B EIBIZIUH g Laogang Phase 4 Landfill Shanghai 30%
LB EE it E in HK$ million 2003 2002
piaeli=Y ) Contribution 635 1,238
L4 A B B 51 Proportion of total contribution 24% 25%
FEE Net assets 2,113 7,923
=N Capital expenditure 5 156
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Eastern Harbour Tunnel

Average daily traffic at Eastern Harbour Tunnel (‘EHT’)
(www.easternharbourtunnel.com.hk) decreased 3% in 2003 to 71,284
vehicles due primarily to a drop in traffic in the second quarter when
SARS was at its peak, after which traffic has recovered. CITIC Pacific is
a controlling shareholder in the road with a 71% interest. Our
shareholding in the rail tunnel is 50%. EHT is entitled to a toll increase

according to the principles established by an independent arbitrator

17



¥ 7% E Business Review

—JUILEAE = A S B R L i R A
SRR AT DL B i B o HAE —F I AR
— H R R R U R AR >
EGRE 4 4 LA AT -

TERE TR VG g BEE [ ahE
(www.westernharbourtunnel.com) = 1 4F
BERE3S% R RE R o THRE RS ~
T I B AR B8 A0 A 0 = SR R AR Y T R B o
Eﬂﬁ“#ﬁiﬁ!ﬂﬂﬁé@ﬁfﬁiﬁ@ﬁ R, %

SR REE S H AR B FE
@TB%7%£37,2617K0\ o 34k > PURER SLE
iﬁﬁﬁﬁmfﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁk%ﬁ]%ﬁéﬁﬂiﬁ‘é%
o FRRIRE IR B > 0 DL S U
Jir A 2 41 e i g ZW%*? I iy 4
R F o

WS AR R A BLAL A ¥ R BB 2 35%
FECHE - HAETLE R Qe 2 —FENAE -

in March 1997, but as an application for increase from 1 January 2004 was
rejected by the Hong Kong Government, another arbitration has been set
for September 2004.

CITIC Pacific has a 35% interest in a 30-year franchise that operates the
Western Harbour Tunnel (‘WHT’) (www.westernharbourtunnel.com),

a key section of the Route 3 highway which links Hong Kong Island,
mainland China and Chek Lap Kok Airport. Daily average traffic for 2003
dropped by 7% compared with 2002 to 37,261 vehicles due to the effect of
SARS. WHT’s traffic growth is limited by the delay in the completion of
access roads, particularly the Central-Wanchai bypass and competition

from the low tolls at the government-owned Cross Harbour Tunnel.

CITIC Pacific also has a 35% interest in the company that manages the
Cross Harbour Tunnel. The management contract has been extended
through 2006.
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Environmental

CITIC Pacific has interests in four waste treatment facilities in Hong Kong,
including a chemical waste treatment plant and two refuse transfer
stations, with a total of 4,000 tonnes of daily waste processing capacity,
and we also operate a landfill site with a 43 million cubic metre capacity.
In 2003, a total of 4 million tonnes of waste was processed. Profits

generated from these businesses totalled HK$278 million.

In December 2003, a joint venture formed by CITIC Pacific, Onyx Asia and
Shanghai Chengtou Environment Industry Development Co., Ltd. was
awarded a contract for Phase 4 of Laogang Municipal Waste Landfill in
Shanghai. The jv will be responsible for the design, construction and
operation of this Phase 4 landfill for a 20-year period. Total investment of
the project is approximately RMB900 million. CITIC Pacific is a long-term
partner of Onyx, a wholly owned subsidiary of Veolia Environment,

having worked on Hong Kong environmental projects for over 10 years.
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Marketing and Distribution

Hh2h Location A HE Ownership
AET B Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong 100%
== H75 Sims Trading Hong Kong 100%
LB BB TA in HK$ million 2003 2002
G Turnover 12,136 11,212
pinvli=1-13 Contribution 264 227
fh 4R A ERRLL 51 Proportion of total contribution 10% 5%
FEE Net assets 3,234 2,871
BARFAEZ Capital expenditure 211 272
K B 47 (www.dch.com.hk) L 43 #§ 5 8 Dah Chong Hong (www.dch.com.hk) is a major distributor of motor

&R AT o HEZEEKME  vehicles and consumer and food commodity products with substantial
JA T S B R RE o R EFAE HAS - By operations in Hong Kong and mainland China, and businesses in Japan,

L YIE DN §E 7 Singapore and Canada.

KEFTRE DCH Motor

LB GBI E in HK$ million 2003 2002
| Turnover 7,083 6,219
Rl N=NS Contribution 188 196

KEFTREERRNWRESHE L — - L In Hong Kong, DCH Motor is one of the largest distributors of motor
SRR AR BTG A A 26% c KB vehicles with a 26% market share in 2003. It distributes a wide range

AT TR PR B A of vehicles:
& HEE Units sold
REHER g Type Brands 2003 2002
FLRE fRan ~ Bl - FF Passenger cars Acura, Audi, Bentley, Honda,
AW HE &L Nissan, Volkswagen 4,695 7,184
E5 K= A+45  %&# - Commercial vehicles  DAF, Isuzu, MAN,
UDKE /) UD Nissan Diesel 2,310 2,489
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DCH Vehicle Sales in Hong Kong
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In 2003, vehicles sales in the territory dropped 24%, negatively impacted
by the increase in Vehicle First Registration Tax (ERT), the outbreak of
SARS, and the weakening of US dollar against the Yen and Euro. Total
vehicles sold by bcH in Hong Kong decreased 28% compared with 2002
of which its mass volume passenger cars (small-to-medium size and mpv
models) had a bigger drop, as those market segments shrunk over 30%.
However, DcH expanded its market share of truck and coach sales to 58%,
maintaining its leading position in that market. DCH also provides an
extensive range of motor related services such as after sales service and
inspection, parts retail and distribution, leasing and fleet management,
and aviation ground supporting services. DCH Motor Service Centre in

Kowloon Bay is the largest one in Hong Kong.
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In other cities in mainland China, DcH distributes both imported and
domestically manufactured vehicles through local partners where, unlike
Hong Kong, distributorships are not exclusive. In 2003, DCH supplied a
total of 9,689 vehicles to mainland China while its local partners
distributed an additional 4,414 units. DCH’s commercial vehicle sales were
a particular feature with an increase of 87% from 2002 due to robust
demand for construction vehicles. DCH’s passenger car sales, however,
declined 59% primarily due to shifting of interest to high-end imports

and increasing domestic supplies of mass-market models.




& H&E Units sold

REER M (REITHAEEMN) Type Brands (DCH & partners) 2003 2002
FLRE ADO : R EF WA - Passenger cars Imports: Audi, Bentley, GM, Honda,
AH-HE- - F# AR Nissan, Renault, Volkswagen 2,983 7,919
AU ¢ EMNAH - Domestic: Guangzhou Honda,
BEEEE  REABE Hainan Mazda, Dongfeng Nissan 3,188 1,515
EH  AO: A+ UDKES Commercial vehicles Imports: Isuzu, UD Nissan Diesel 6,586 3,556
AR e REBELE Domestic: Qingling, DND 1,346 750
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Working with local partners, DCH now has over 14 outlets including
integrated sales, service and spare parts centres, regional parts distribution

centres, and traditional service centres covering more than 13 cities.

In 2003, the Chinese auto market expanded and 4.6 million units were sold,

a growth of 34% from 2002, and out of which 96% was domestically
manufactured. According to industry estimates, the sales volume of PRC
motor market for 2004 could approach 5 million units, in particular the
passenger car market is projected to grow further by 20%. This presents
tremendous opportunities for distributors such as DcH, which has the
industry and local knowledge as well as the experience and expertise

in distributing motor vehicles. bcH will continue to systematically develop
the mainland China market with the aim to build up a balanced portfolio
of both imported and domestic brands. The Closer Economic Partnership
Arrangement (‘CEPA’) between Hong Kong and the Central Government will
enable DCH to expand the mainland China network quicker than foreign

competitors, and to establish greater direct control over its operations.
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HKHEUIZE G Non-Motor Trading

LB E BT E in HK$ million 2003 2002
EEE Turnover 5,053 4,993
PRl i=Ns Contribution 76 31
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DCH Trading: DcH distributes consumer and commodity food products
including provisions, rice and cereal, edible oils, Chinese foodstuffs and
meat, cosmetics, building materials, and home electric appliances, etc., and
is involved in E&M engineering projects and maintenance services. DCH
has an extensive global sourcing network, and through its efficient logistics
support and nationwide distribution network, enables it to cater a variety
of products to its customers. Despite SARS, DCH was able to sustain its
sales and profit through a better mix of products (e.g. basic food necessity
with widened product variety and price range) and diversified sales
channels (e.g. the self-managed FoodMarts frozen food specialty chain
leveraged on people’s dine-in tendency during SARS period and attained
satisfactory results). In mainland China, the nationwide distribution
network covers over 40 major cities. DCH’s trading business plan is to
enhance its existing sourcing network, continue to extend product variety
to suit the needs of different market segments, and to transform itself from
the role of middleman to a fully integrated, one-stop supply chain service

provider with primary development focus on mainland China.

Sims Trading: Sims Trading (www.simshk.com) specialises in the
distribution of branded food, beverage, household and healthcare
products in Hong Kong, Macau, and mainland China for the retail and
catering markets. The company’s brands include Pocari Sweat, Ovaltine,
Kikkoman, Hunt, Barilla, Paul’s, Heinz and Almond Roca for the Hong
Kong Market, and Ferrero, Martell, Campbell’s, MeadJohnson and
Ovaltine for the mainland China market. Sims is extensively involved
in providing third party logistics services to major companies such as
Heineken, Gillette, Pizza Hut and Unza Cathay.
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Property

BMAEmEE
A (FFFR)
Approximate GFA
gl Type Ownership ('000 sq. ft.)
BB Properties in Hong Kong
REY 5 Investment Properties
RERE EES CITIC Tower Commercial 40% 562
X =3 [SES Festival Walk Commercial 50% 1,200
ARETEERL BE DCH Commercial Centre Commercial 100% 389
EfmE D I% Wyler Centre Industrial 100% 393
BEAR L i Broadway Centre Industrial 100% 342
MR I Yee Lim Industrial Centre Industrial 100% 320
Hith EHE Others Various 100% 549
ZEIEH Development Properties
=g FEE Discovery Bay Residential township 50% 3,000
EAh = Others Residential 100% 1,100
Eigz Properties in Shanghai
REYF Investment Properties
P EREES [SES CITIC Square Commercial 80% 1,137
EIINC F= Royal Pavilion Residential 100% 374
ZEIEH Development Properties
EZTil ko F= New Westgate Garden Residential 100% 3,000
SR 35 R YR EER Near Pudong Airport Logistic Development 100% 4,740
(M BRE TR site area)
LB BT E in HK$ million 2003 2002
LT Turnover 401 460
gl I=Y ) Contribution 508 894
15 4855 I F BAEL 1 Proportion of total contribution 19% 19%
FEE Net assets 18,986 18,708
BEARRR Capital expenditure 104 2,893

R 2R ) B B T K i
Horh B 56 R R AE T R i B W) 26 Bt R IE
H o ARAHEA — SRR I HER 2 B
PIREAEE > hyaERes@f TR
DL 2 AR 1Y) S A B (R R

of the property to managing the completed development.

CITIC Pacific’s major property investments are located in Hong Kong

and Shanghai. They consist of large-scale residential and commercial
investment properties and development projects. The Company’s
experienced property team is actively involved in every aspect of a project,

from identifying investment opportunities and managing the construction
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In Hong Kong, CITIC Pacific has a land bank of about 4.1 million sq. ft.
gross floor area available for development, of which about 3 million sq. ft.

is in Discovery Bay.

Discovery Bay, 50% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a large residential
development jointly developed with HKR International Ltd. Since its
commencement in 1973, Discovery Bay has grown from a holiday resort
to a fully integrated, self-contained suburban multinational residential
community of both locals and expatriates. Its planning is based on the
concept of a private car free, green town development with a
comprehensive range of educational, community and social facilities to
serve the Discovery Bay population. Situated on the Northeastern shore
of Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is endowed with ample open space,
recreational and leisure facilities including a private beach, a central park,

scenic promenade, golf courses and a marina.

The current Yi Pak Bay development is located in the northern part of
Discovery Bay with a total gross floor area of approximately 2.34 million
sq. ft., of which 0.98 million sq. ft. has been developed as Siena One
(Phase 11) and Siena Two (Phase 12). Siena One, with a gross floor area
of 0.34 million sq. ft., has all been sold. Siena Two, with a gross floor
area of 0.64 million sq. ft., was about 52% sold at the end of 2003.

The superstructure works for Phase 13, which has a gross floor area of

0.53 million sq. ft., will commence in the second quarter of 2004.

In addition, another 1.67 million sq. ft. gross floor area is available for

further residential development at Discovery Bay.

CITIC Tower, 40% owned by CITIC Pacific, is our headquarters and a
landmark on the Hong Kong waterfront comprising 562,000 sq. ft. of
offices, retail shops and restaurants, and linked to the Admiralty MTR
station with a footbridge. The building is currently 94% occupied. Due
to over supply of office space, rentals were soft in 2003.

Festival Walk, a 1.2 million sq. ft. of shopping and office complex, is 50%
owned by CITIC Pacific. Jointly developed with Swire Group, it is located at
the interchange of the Kowloon Canton Railway and Mass Transit Railway
in Kowloon Tong. Completed in 1998, Festival Walk is one of the most
successful shopping centres in Hong Kong where vacancies are rare and

rentals are firm.
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In Shanghai, CITIC Pacific has been active in acquiring land. Phase I of
New Westgate Garden residential project is progressing well and pre-sale
is scheduled for the second half of 2004. This development, located in
Huangpu District, is adjacent to Xizang Nanlu and Jianguo Donglu, within
walking distance from a future subway station of the new Metro Line 8.
New Westgate Garden will comprise residential towers, a multi-storey
commercial complex with retail shops and a basement carpark, with a

gross floor area of approximately 3 million sq. ft.

CITIC Square, 80% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a Grade A office tower in
Nanjing Xi Lu, Shanghai. Its rental continues to do well with occupancy
of 99%. Royal Pavilion, 100% owned by CITIC Pacific, is a luxury service

apartment, with occupancy of 87%, and its rental income is stable.

CITIC Pacific also owns a site of about 4.74 million sq. ft. near Shanghai

Pudong Airport for accommodating future logistic development.
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Industrial Manufacturing

LB BB E in HK$ million 2003 2002
== Turnover 4,842 3,581
gl i=t Contribution 178 126
fh 48 A ERIEL 1 Proportion of total contribution 7% 3%
FEE Net assets 1,494 1,212
BEARY Capital expenditure 545 280
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OB S B 10 5 2 0 v R A S A
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JUE 857 8 322 T 2 I 79 S RN T B e K g
o RS LS ER o ZFF AR
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HR38% -

In January 2004, CITIC Pacific entered into agreements to increase its

shareholding in Jiangyin Special Steel by purchasing an additional 24%

from its joint venture partner. Subject to completion, CITIC Pacific’s

shareholding in Jiangyin Special Steel will be increased to 79%. Jiangyin

Special Steel produces high-grade steel used in bearings and gears using

high quality production lines. In 2003, total production was 1.7 million

tonnes, an 11% increase from 2002. Approximately 9% of the output was

exported to South Korea and Southeast Asian countries.

In February 2004, CITIC Pacific entered into an agreement to purchase a

95% interest in Daye Steel, which is located in Huangshi, Hubei Province,

which in 2003 produced 1.3 million tonnes of specialty steel for uses such

as bearings, gears and steel pipes. The acquisition will make CITIC Pacific

one of the market leaders in specialty steel production in mainland China.

Wuxi Huada Motors Company produces low noise, low vibration and

high torque electrical motors for the domestic and European markets.

In 2003, production was 2.1 million KW, an increase of 38% from 2002.

A 2 %5

Other Businesses

LOEM BB At E in HK$ million 2003 2002
=k Turnover 227 2,439
B R Contribution 208 236
4R A E B 51 Proportion of total contribution 6% 5%
FEE Net assets 1,161 951
BEARFAEZ Capital expenditure 187 704
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CITIC Capital Markets

50% owned by CITIC Pacific, CITIC Capital Markets Holdings
(www.citiccapital.com) focuses on cross-border China-related investment
banking services, including corporate finance and advisory, debt capital
markets, asset management and brokerage. In 2003, the first full year of
its official operation, cCMH achieved excellent results in terms of both

performance and profitability.

CCMH’s investment banking business gained market recognition through
some well structured and executed deals in 2003 such as the US$180
million convertible bond offering for CITIC International Financial
Holdings and the HK$908 million privatisation of Pacific Concord
Holdings. The asset management business launched four new funds in the
past year and also provided discretionary investment services, all of which
achieved satisfactory performance. In particular the two flagship funds
(Global Macro Fund and China Plus Fund) have recorded excellent
investment returns. On the brokerage front, significant inroads have been
made during the year in expanding coverage both for institutional and
retail clients, capitalising upon the investment sentiment especially in the
second half. Additional market share, enhanced industry ranking and

improved profitability have been achieved as a result.

Developing Businesses

In January 2003, CITIC Pacific formed a 50/50 joint venture with
Adaltis-Picchio of Canada to engage in research and manufacture of
various diagnostic test Kits such as those for sars, Aids and Hepatitis
among others. A manufacturing plant is being built in Shanghai and

completion is expected in late 2004.

The joint venture Shanghai CP Guojian Pharmaceutical continues its
research into various medicines including the current clinical trial of new
drugs. A manufacturing plant is being constructed with completion in the
third quarter of 2004.

CITIC Pacific’s joint venture with Fudan University continues to develop
distance learning in mainland China. At the end of 2003, approximately
5,800 students were enrolled studying about 21 courses. In addition,

training programs to corporations are also offered.
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Of the Consolidated Financial Results for 2003

Introduction

CITIC Pacific’s 2003 Annual Report includes a letter from the Chairman
to shareholders, the annual accounts and other information required by
accounting standards, legislation, and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
This Financial Review is designed to assist the reader in understanding
the statutory information by discussing the contribution of each business

segment, and the financial position of the company as a whole.

Pages 82 to 88 of the Annual Report contain the Consolidated Profit and
Loss Account, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity. Following these financial statements, on pages 89 to
154 of the Annual Report, are Notes that further explain certain figures

presented in the statements.

On page 155 is the report of CITIC Pacific’s auditor — PricewaterhouseCoopers —

of their independent audit of CITIC Pacific’s annual financial report.

Basis of Accounting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly follow
International Accounting Standards. In preparing its 2003 annual
accounts, the Group has adopted ssap No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes’
which becomes effective for the current accounting year. ssap No. 12
(Revised) requires that taxation whose payment is deferred into the
future should be calculated at the current tax rate rather than the rate
when the deferred tax account was set up. As a result, the profit for 2002,
captial reserve and retained profit as at 31 December 2002 are reduced
by HK$42 million, HK$49 million and HK$107 million respectively.
The figures for years 2001 and before have not been adjusted for effects
on the adoption of ssap No. 12 (Revised).



R% B e 1 i Profit Attributable to Shareholders
TERR RG] A EW =0T The net profit attributable to shareholders for 2003 was HK$1,305 million,
WOt M RE A BN S B THE a decrease of 66% compared with HK$3,875 million achieved in 2002. The

H T 66% o i A D 2 JEERE R R 3C reasons for the decrease in profit are described below.
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(¥BoEZFER Business Segment Contribution

HEEEEEAE-FE A2 ERM - 8 The contribution made by major business units in 2003, and with 2002,
CERRTAERBIT were:

A E B Contribution

BEEET HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 - 2002
%E Power Generation 229 245 (16)
e Civil Infrastructure 635 1,238 (603)
EE% Communications 234 553 (319)
finze Aviation 421 1,263 (842)
HE XD H Marketing & Distribution 264 227 37
LIS Property 508 894 (386)
TEHRE Industrial Manufacturing 178 126 52
REYEE Investment Properties Revaluation (587) - (587)
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Compared with the contribution for 2002:

Power Generation: the increased demand for electricity and the full
commercial production of the plant in Inner Mongolia resulted in
higher profit but this was offset by the pre-operating expenses in the
newly commissioned plants. The Ligang power plant is accounted on a
dividends received basis so a portion of its good performance in 2003
will be recorded in 2004.

Civil Infrastructure: the decreased contribution was due to the sale of
bridges, tunnels and a road in Shanghai to the Shanghai Municipal
Government in the first half year. The operating profit of the Eastern
and Western Tunnels reduced due to the reduction in annual traffic

volume due to SARS.

Communications: CITIC Telecom 1616’ call volume increased but the
margin in 2003 were reduced most notably by the switch from mobile
to fixed line usage in the SARS period. cPCNet’s performance was
affected by investment in new products. Operating results at cT™M and
CITIC Guoan were better than 2002.

Aviation: a dramatic reduction in passenger traffic at both Cathay Pacific
and Dragonair while SARS was active caused losses in the first half of

2003 but in the second half traffic recovered rapidly.

Marketing & Distribution: The passenger car market in Hong Kong
contracted due to SARS and the increased First Registration Tax, but this
weakness was offset by the sales of commercial vehicles to other parts of
China and the Hong Kong Motor Service Centre’s catalytic converter
installation works. The other trading businesses of bcH and Sims made

significant improvements.

Property: Compared with 2002, the sale of units at Discovery Bay
reduced 70%, this in combination with related provisions, the cost of
financing unsold units and amortisation costs, resulted in a loss in the
area of property development. Rental income in Hong Kong decreased
in some office and warehouse properties but was resilient at the Festival

Walk shopping centre and at the Shanghai properties.
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e Industrial Manufacturing: the increased contribution was due to a 11%

increase in the volume of steel sold at higher prices per tonne than 2002.

e Property Revaluation: Professionally qualified valuers — Knight Frank
and Tekko Building Co Ltd - assessed the value of our investment
properties as at 31 December 2003 and as a result HK$587 million was
charged to the Profit and Loss Account.

Further details of the performance of each business can be found in the

Business Review on pages 5 to 29.
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The annual accounts contains business segment information for
turnover (Note 2 on page 99) and pre-tax profit (Note 3 on page 100)
and detail of segment assets and liabilities from consolidated activities,
jointly controlled entities and associated companies (Note 25 on

page 127).
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Geographical Distribution

The division of contribution and assets between Hong Kong, mainland
China and Overseas is shown below based on the market location of each
business. There was a substantial decline for the amount contributed by
the mainland China components following the disposal of the bridges and

tunnels in Shanghai in mid-year.

& 5 fff
Geographical Distribution
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Year ended 31 December 2003
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A Bl Mainland China

B /55 Overseas

* For certain business, the total contribution is allocated to a geographic area based
on the proportion of the turnover of that geographic area to the corresponding
total turnover.

Interest Expense
The Group’s interest expense decreased from HK$490 million to HK$400
million because average borrowings in 2003 were lower than 2002. The

interest rate on the borrowings was little changed between 2003 and 2002.

Amortisation

Accounting standards require certain major adjustments that are unrelated
to the cashflow of our businesses. Goodwill - the amount paid for buying
a business that exceeds the value of its physical and identifiable assets -
must be amortised to the profit and loss account over its useful life not
exceeding 20 years. In 2003, HK$202 million of goodwill was amortised to
the profit and loss account, a HK$2 million decrease compared to the year
of 2002.
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Taxation
Taxation decreased from HK$424 million in 2002 to HK$371 million in
2003. The components of taxation charge for the year are set out in Note 6

of the annual accounts.

Shareholders’ Returns

CITIC Pacific’s primary objective is to increase shareholder value for
which it has used earnings per share as a proxy. The Company expects its
businesses to provide returns on investment over their lives that will

provide shareholders with an adequate return on equity.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share were HK$0.60 for 2003, a decrease of 66% compared
with HK$1.77 for 2002. The number of shares outstanding in the two
years was substantially the same so all the decreases in earnings per share

was attributable to the decrease in profit.

BRER
Earnings per Share

JEBTT HKS
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Shareholders’ Funds per Share

Shareholders’ funds per share at 31 December 2003 was HK$17.7, less than
the HK$19.4 at 31 December 2002 mainly due to a special dividend of
HKS$1 per share paid to shareholders on 12 May 2003.

BRBRRES BREE
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Same as 2002, a final dividend of HK$0.70 per share is proposed for 2003.



BB B s A SR R A LA
HAIE B EE S - AEBILEHRAKA
AR SRS LR o KRR R R EAE L 4%

it R M ) ) i A B R /A
—ToHETZEHK -

BB HE R EEER %
FEWEME% - MER G 2 EEH LT
15% o HoAth & 5 K o 8§ 2 4 S5 - Tt
3% o LB 2 8 SR I 52 B R i T3
B EIEIN35% - EAMEEEZ EEHAFH
RN 1616EH IR » BIm27% °

TEE

A2 HAb S SRR LI I N T
ZACE 4 o B A — % R A A 80 % HE
i o BPR CEFE AR HADE SEH > MBI
ANy e [ ST = Fir S v e P 5 9

YN

Turnover

The largest component of Turnover is the sale of goods and services, but
other items such as sales of assets are included. Only the turnover from
businesses included as Consolidated Activities is reported — they
contributed HK$812 million to the net profit before taxation - not

turnover in jointly controlled or associated companies.

Marketing & Distribution turnover increased 8% in the year 2003
compared with 2002. Motor trading turnover increased 15%, Other
trading and distribution turnover increased slightly by 3%. Industrial
Manufacturing turnover increased 35% mainly due to increased sales of
specialty steel, while communications turnover increased 27% mainly
due to the growth of business of CITIC Telecom 1616.

Other turnover in 2002 included the sale of the 80% interest in mainland
China Express No. 1 Backbone Network at a consideration of HK$1.6
billion while 2003 includes HK$6.2 billion for the sales of bridges, tunnels

and a road in Shanghai.

EER
Turnover
. e, — 307
JEEIRETT
HKS$ billion
25~
20 -
15- |
10-
5,

I 25 Power Generation
I ECEERBE Civil Infrastructure
I (= 2.3 Communications
5% K59 8§ Marketing & Distribution
I )3 Property

T 25E R EAM Industrial Manufacturing & Others

& 57 Sale of Businesses
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EAXARX Capital Expenditure

TGS RHAE BT TR EFZELZE Capital expenditure in the Industrial Manufacturing business in 2002
AR W S B — RN T RS o 218 and 2003 was to construct a new processing plant, Marketing and

R SHEBTE — R T S ZEARB > I Distribution purchased additional vehicles for its motor leasing activities
IR BN L o (5 EEF/NAE in 2003, Communications installed equipment to match the growth in its
ekt > ARSI E 2R - 2% traffic volume. In 2002, two properties were purchased in Shanghai for
FAE S EEBEAMM B (UEAER HKS$2.7 billion.

—bfET e

Include in ‘Other Sectors’ is investment in a pharmaceutical project.
[ HA0ZERS | s — WS ZEREIHE - 7E2=%  1n 2002, a 50% interest in CITIC Capital Market Holdings Limited was
TS JIEATEEARTSZERARARNR  purchased for HK$510 million.
50904 > (U I L — T & -

EREX Capital Expenditure

B EET HKS$ million 2003 2002
TERE Industrial Manufacturing 545 280
HE RS H Marketing & Distribution 211 272
EAith 275 Other Sectors 187 704
S Communications 185 216
%“E Power Generation 144 120
LIES Property 104 2,893
BRI Civil Infrastructure 5 156
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Group Liquidity and Capital Resources

General Policies

The Group’s policy is to maintain a high degree of financial control and
transparency. Financing and cash management activities are centralised
at head office level to enhance risk management, control and the best

utilisation of financial resources of the Group.

Funding sources are diversified through utilisation of both the banking
and capital market. Financings are arranged to match business
characteristics and cash flows. Limited or non-recourse project finance

is employed when it is available.

CITIC Pacific conducts business mainly in Hong Kong and mainland
China, therefore is subject to market risk in the foreign exchange rate of
HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi. To minimise currency exposure,
non Hong Kong dollar assets are usually financed in the same currency as
the asset or cash flow from it, either by borrowing or using foreign
exchange contracts. Achieving this objective is not always possible due to
limitation in financial markets and regulatory constraints, particularly on
investment into mainland China as Renminbi is not a free convertible
currency and the on-shore forward market has not been developed. In
addition, ‘Registered Capital’, which is usually accounts for about 25% to
30% of total investment amount, is required to be paid in US Dollar or HK
Dollar. As a result, CITIC Pacific has an increasing exposure to the
Renminbi. As of 31 December 2003, around 21% of the Group’s assets

were based in mainland China.

In order to stabilise interest costs despite rate movements, a suitable
mixture of fixed rate / floating rate borrowings is determined after taking
into consideration of the general market trend, the Group’s cash flow
pattern and interest coverage ratio. In addition to raise fixed rate debts,
the Group actively employs interest rate swap transactions to manage

long term interest cost.

The Company only uses derivative transactions for interest rate and
currency hedging purposes, speculative trading is prohibited.
Counterparties’ credit risk are carefully reviewed. In general, the
Company only deals with financial institutions with single A or above
credit rating, and the counterparties’ lending exposure to the Group is

also an important consideration as a means to control credit risk.
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Cash Flow
By design, most of the Group’s debt is raised by the holding company, as
such the amount of cash flow from each business to the Company is an

important measure as to the Company’s ability to service its debts.

BEBzHRTRE Cash Contribution by Business Segment

BEEET HKS$ million 2003 2002
ERER Infrastructure

EE Power Generation 317 395
AR Civil Infrastructure 283 2,323
EE% Communications 232 101
fnze Aviation 334 361
LES Property 1,090 1,732
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 123 334

WA B R A R AR RE
A A SR AR S WS+ AT s
Tz BT - ERMEFEBS
TE R =R TETTAEND AR AEE
AR M TR T R T =0t
BEEK -

In addition, sale of business interests contributed HK$6.2 billion and
HK$2.4 billion in 2003 and 2002 respectively. Sale of marketable
securities contributed HK$220 million and HK$2.3 billion in 2003 and
2002 respectively.

XK 2BRERE FRESRE
Cash Flow from Operations Cash Flow per Share
JEM R BT 20 JER T ©
HKS billion HK$ -2
N
15
©
10 2
- <
©
N~ [aV)
o N
(e}
5 3
I ~ o 0 o
0 — N [ep] —
99 00 01 02 03 99 00 01 02 03

[ EAEER Infrastructure THERUEREM

Industrial Manufacturing

. HE K8 & Others

Marketing & Distribution

o HE TS Sale of Businesses

I )% Property
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s EER A ZRRSRE
From Regular Cash Flow per Share

L EEBZSRRERE

From Cash Flow per Share from the Sale of Businesses



FRERENEME Consolidated Cash Flow Summary

B HET HK$ million 2003 2002
ReFERE Net Cash generated from
REER consolidated activities 1,535 4,483
HEZEHEE jointly controlled entities 23 (88)
SN associated companies (266) 1,795
"E investments 263 2,194
HEEBERS B EBES Sale of business interests and marketable securities 6,370 916
AR R 2 RE Capital expenditure and investment in new businesses (1,207) (3,440)
Bim Tax (148) (226)
T BoFEE Net interest (897) (545)
6,173 5,089
BEXARE Dividends paid (4,377) (1,971)
BEEM/ k) Increase / (Decrease) in borrowings 1,151 (5,188)
ReRERRE 2D Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,226) (7,159)
2,947 (2,070)
EEEEERBES Group Debt and Liquidity

AEE B G R EAERE RS MRS - WAL A
PINE] B2 N AERR BB TR E 2
AN T T - BE FE=FT N
=1T—H, AEAZEERELBY —AEH
WX (ZREF+H=Z1+—H WLt
=A800) > WS REAT A  A R+
Bt AEFHEABYEHEL M BE
T+ A=Zt—HZARIFE A ERSHLE
FEEIT o FE R L3RR R A T AL AR A A DA
FARBFHEE R EERTHE > 2B 11%
F13% (ZFFZHF+ZH=1+—H : 14% K&
16%) -

The Group’s cash flow remains very strong and stable and of particular
note was the receipt of HK$6.2 billion in early July from the sale of
Shanghai road, bridges and tunnels projects. As of 31 December 2003,
the Group’s total outstanding debt was HK$10.5 billion (31 December
2002: HK$9.3 billion), cash and deposits with banks were HK$5.5 billion
giving a net debt of HK$5.0 billion compared to HK$6.7 billion at

31 December 2002. Leverage, measured by the net debt to total capital
and net debt to shareholders’ funds, was 11% and 13% respectively

(31 December 2002: 14% and 16%).
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Total Debt

Total debt decreased due to the repayment of bank borrowings. The debt
at 31 December 2003 that will be mature in 2 years’ time amounted to
14% of the total debt and at that date the Group had deposits with banks
of HK$5.5 billion exceeding the loans due for repayment in 2003.

EEH5E
Total debt

EERET
HKS$ billion

B o
20-
15-
10-
57 I
0-
99 00 01 02

03

0 — A In the first year
B A In the second year

B -ERFR (BEERMRF)

In the third to fifth year inclusive

W 7 F1& After fifth year

ARAE IR A0 2 B ) 45 0

7 S [ o i 7 AL D T R A e 2 A 2 A
LA ife P 42 I 4 4 31 ) 2 ARBE R 8 ] 4R
TH Y 2 B e S T AR I AT B S
ETHMEZ RS

Maturity Profile of Outstanding Debt
The Group actively manages and extends its debt maturity profile to ensure
that the Group’s maturing debt each year will not exceed the anticipated

cash flow and the Group’s ability to refinance the debt in that year:

ZETNEF

DR BT R KAt At ERES
2009 and

in HK$ million 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Beyond Total Percentage
ISYNGIK
Parent Company’ 27 133 1,715 1,877 1,600 3,510 8,862 84%
)=
Subsidiaries 847 517 137 105 60 0 1,666 16%
REEBBEERE
Total Outstanding Debt 874 650 1,852 1,982 1,660 3,610 10,528 100%
ANX
Percentage 8% 6% 18% 19% 16% 33% 100%

1. BE—EEBHER KT 2 ENE R A
Fr&TTAREVIE R TEE T2 2HES
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1. Including a US$450 million global bond which was issued by a wholly owned
special purposes vehicle.
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Sources of Financing

As of 31 December 2003, the Group’s undrawn available facilities consists
of HK$4.6 billion in committed long term loans and HK$1.8 billion of

money market lines. In addition, available trade facilities amounted to

HK$2.1 billion.

B4R REEST HREE
BB EZIT in HK$ million Total Facilities Outstandings Available Facilities
BAEER Committed Facilities
RITER Bank Loans 10,346 5,744 4,602
2IREFH Global Bonds 3,510 3,510 0
FLABLE Private Placement 780 780 0
14,636 10,034 4,602
RERAEER Uncommitted Facilities
BEEmISEERE Money Market Lines 2,243 477 1,766
=X & Trade Facilities 2,488 390 2,098

S 5k Pt — B

DT AALBR - FL=F+_A=+—H
Z AT KB ~ R B DL R
o

Financial Position at a Glance

The charts below show the type, interest rate, maturity and currency

profiles of borrowings of the Group as at December 31, 2003.

BREE
Available Facilities

BB+ IELFET
Total HK$8.47 billion

54% 21% 25%

I 775 5X Term Loan Bl ST Money Market [ 2 5 Trade

REEZEE
Outstanding Debt

EHRBE—EFHE=TET
Total HK$10.53 billion

54% 33% 7% 6%

I $RTE X Term Loan I (%% Bond

o FLABLE Private Placement I 5% Money Market
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rEEs Bz REEREE
Outstanding Debt by Currency

44% 43% 6% 7%

B 5 T1EE HKD Loan [ ETLfEE USD Loan

Bl A R¥EE RVB Loan I = EEFE B Other Currency Loans

RIBMEN DB AREEERE
Outstanding Debt by Maturity

8% 6% 53% 33%

Bl — A In the 1st Year B A In the 2nd Year

[ =2 A% K 3rd to 5th years I T 1% After 5th year

MEFEEE (BB—F)
Interest Rate Base (Over One Year)

19% 81%

63% 37%

pi s Curences |

35% 65%

[ [EE Fixed I )5 ) Floating
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Debt / Cash in Jointly Controlled Ventures and
Associated Companies

The following table shows the debt / cash of jointly controlled ventures
and associated companies which under Hong Kong generally accepted

accounting standards is not consolidated into the Group’s accounts.

EhERELENE

NAERZBE
Amount of debt
guaranteed by

BamEFa/
(Re)

RIEEE RN
ZaE%H/ (Re)

Proportion of Net Debt/

E k] Business Sector Total Net Debt/ (Cash) attributable CITIC Pacific or
BEHET HKS$ million (Cash) to CITIC Pacific its subsidiaries
BERER Infrastructure
%E Power Generation 2,700 1,327 674
B2 Civil Infrastructure 3,156 1,166
ER¥ Communications 631 438
Mz Aviation 18,932 4,136
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 793 400
LE S Property (315) (121)
Hith Others (193) (98)
25,704 7,248 674

S Y R N S 2 A R A
I AME 0 HAE S A R SR B (R
R LASL) By A B SEBRHEAT 2 W 4 S B R A
EATIE R

TEIR
PEEFUARERZ ST A (BFEHE
TR ) WA 5 R R -

ENSEIRIE U R e R R O YRR S
SUTRE £ #0030 i e o B LA B 2 Y A B
FERER LR WM S 4, #UE RS
B AN B o A2 RN 6 6 SME
S/ SR H0 P AN JEUBR -

Festival Walk and Discovery Bay are financed by their shareholders and
do not have external borrowings; other associated companies and joint
ventures (other than disclosed in the above table) raise debt to finance

their operational activities without recourse to their shareholders.

Derivative Products
CITIC Pacific employs a combination of financial instruments, including
derivative products, to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest and

currency rates.

The Company uses interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements and
interest rate option contracts to hedge exposures or to modify the interest
rate characteristics of its borrowings. CITIC Pacific enters into cross
currency swap contracts to change the denomination of its borrowings as
part of its management to limit foreign currency exposures. Foreign
exchange forward / option contracts are also used to hedge foreign

currency exposure.
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As of 31 December 2003, the Company had interest rate swap agreements
outstanding with a notional amount of approximately HK$2.8 billion and
a fair value of around negative HK$94 million which is largely offset by
the change of economic value of the asset or liability being hedged. Under
these agreements, CITIC Pacific is to exchange fixed to floating or floating
to fixed interest with its counterparties, without the exchange of the
underlying notional amounts. Other financial instruments such as forward
rate agreements may be employed when deemed appropriate to stabilise

the overall cost of borrowings over time.

As of 31 December 2003, approximately 62% of the Group’s total
borrowings after swap bore interest at floating rates and the remaining
38% were at fixed rates with average period of 5 years. The weighted
average all-in cost of debt, including fees and hedging costs in 2003 was

about 4.6%, the same as a year before.

The denomination of the Group’s borrowings before and after currency

swap and deposits with banks at 31 December 2003 were:

wE Denomination

ok EY AREE A HAth, &%
EBEEETEE HK$ million Equivalent HK$ uUs$ Renminbi Yen Other Total
RAKEZEE Borrowings in original currency 4,634 4,505 597 614 178 10,528
BEERE 2 BE Borrowings after Currency Swap 7,201 1,938 597 614 178 10,528
TR Deposits 292 4117 905 156 41 5,511
BHEiE 215 (3IR€) $8 Net Borrowings (Cash) after Swap | 6,909 (2,179) (308) 458 137 5,017

MBEREARKPEE

AFRRZAET AT H ) KRB
TR RELZS AR IAERARLT
VOAR BT > R BCALAE e E 4 T 1 A A L
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Financial Guarantees and Pledged Assets

The aggregate outstanding amount of guarantees issued by the holding
company CITIC Pacific Ltd which were not included in consolidated
borrowings was approximately HK$674 million as of 31 December 2003
primarily related to a several guarantee to support CITIC Pacific’s share

of the loan facilities at Jilin Power Station.

As at 31 December 2003, assets of HK$53 million were pledged to secure
banking facilities utilised by subsidiaries, mainly related to Dah Chong

Hong’s overseas trading business.




RAEE

EFFESFLCAST R AEMZ
S AR 1 4 BB 4 B -

EIR b &
WE-ZZE=F+-A=1+—H  AfFHEL
ERBEL1% - 1 EE FRAE14% -

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2003, the Group’s contingent liabilities had not
changed significantly from the last year end.

Leverage
Net debt divided by total capital was 11% at 31 December 2003 compared
with 14% at the end of 2002.

B E FEEEH
Leverage Interest Cover
JBHEIR 18T HKS billion JBIEIR 18T HKS billion

60 6

50 /\ 5

40 4 12x

30 3

o)
22% 20% 109, ox 8x
20 — 2
14% 5x
w 4x
0 0
99 00 01 02 03 99 00 01 02 03

W 57K 42%8 Total Capital
W & EF N E AL E% Net Debt/Total Capital %

B & {5558 Net Debt

FEEH

BE FE=F+_HA=1+—-HILFEE > £
FERLE S~ BEIE - T8 ARG 2 U6 AP AR
DIFIR S 57.8 > W FF_FAH11.7
JE TR 2 4 A (8 8 ) T 2:66% - {HFILE S H
M Hg 0 18% -

B REER S - IE - T8 RE 2% FFEE EBITDA

B T ESER S - BIE - TE R 2R FFEG R R (x =)
EBITDA/Interest Expense (x = times)

B 72 H Interest Expense

Interest Cover
EBITDA divided by interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2003
was 7.8 compared to 11.7 in 2002, due to the 66% decrease in profit but

only a 18% decrease in total interest expense in the year.

47



BB el B8 Financial Review

e & &e

Py 1R B B BEAS R LA S ABIRDT T 2 BUE
HfE R Ol B ORW o B R
EAEEA T E RS - SRR E AT
ZhREERU LM EEGERAEE L b
Mo E- T =+ H=1—H  AEHEY
e BAEsK -

EEFTH

BB AR T 4 T AR A A 2 AN R
5 B E AR 4 Al £ Baa3 %X BBB- - WiAREA)
WEURAN R 2 FERREEE R ERE
Z SRR AR AR HRAR - B E T
Al BB 4 i o S A R o BB T E =
HEAZH=ZT—HIEFE > EEZEELR
(FR9E & PG A BERE) F11% > 1
R RIEAIEFIE ST - B - 9785
T B 85 2 v FFRE R DARLE S AT R £
7.8 o HEMEME > B A FEARAH R 2 28 A 1L
B ALEEZ PR MEREER % &
INT 2 OB R AR A R R
oo — 42 T HAS B TR -

HIREE M

AAE IR A T W BA SR BIR DL - 365
e 2 HWE W] o W2 SF ATNE B I A A R
HARREM 2 EMESG S - B REH RN
R B AN BA R R - T A5 DR R R LA B
R~ RIS AR B B a2 S T W R B R
ZIEDAFAEERER

B 82 D I [ A JL B S TR = A
TR - ZIAR R A TR SEAUE B A AT Hi
W B P L R 2 36 5 TEE THREULT
BRI R AE R o

48

Loan Covenants

Over the years, CITIC Pacific has developed a set of standard loan
covenants to facilitate the management of its loan portfolio and debt
compliance. The financial covenants are limited to minimum net worth
undertaking; a maximum ratio of total borrowings to net worth and a
limit on the amount of pledged assets as a percentage of the Group’s total
assets. As of 31 December 2003, CITIC Pacific is in compliance with these

requirements.

Credit Ratings

The Company has been assigned investment grade foreign currency long
term credit rating of Baa3 by Moody's Investor Service and BBB- by
Standard & Poor’s. For both ratings the credit outlook is stable, reflecting
CITIC Pacific’s strong financial profile including low leverage, diversified
business and strong cashflow. The Group’s leverage, measured by the net
debt to total capital was 11% while interest cover, defined as EBITDA
divided by interest expense, was 7.8 for the year ended 31 December 2003.
We believe that these financial indicators were stronger compared to
companies with the same credit rating grade. The Company’s objective is
to maintain its financial discipline aiming to improve its credit rating

going forward.

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward looking statements with
respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of
the Group. These forward looking statements represent the Company’s
expectations or beliefs concerning future events and involve known and
unknown risks and uncertainty that could cause actual results,
performance or events to differ materially from those expressed or

implied in such statements.

Forward looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties.
Readers should be cautioned that a number of factors could cause actual
results to differ, in some instances materially, from those anticipated or

implied in any forward looking statement.
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10 Year Statistics

FROEBEHET) At year end (HK$ million) 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
BRE S Shareholders’ funds 25,426 26,971 36,912 40,538 42,032 38,240 41,304 41,489 42,538 38,826

B (B%T) per share (HKS) 12.61 18.40 17.30 19.06 19.76 17.98 18.81 1895 19.44 17.74
BE Debt

BfE Debt 9,747 9,706 10,243 23,302 22,075 18,563 15,709 14,639 9,267 10,528

RITIFER Bank deposits 796 614 594 710 900 8,044 5,201 4,631 2,545 5,511

FEELERNBE Net debt / total capital 26% 25% 21% 36% 34% 22% 20% 19% 14% 1%

FEBE(E) Interest cover (times) 9 10 19 6 4 4 5 6 12 8
BB Capital employed 35,173 36,677 47,155 63,840 64,107 56,803 57,013 56,128 51,805 49,354
ErEE Fixed assets 8,884 9,045 9,929 10,472 11,765 11,916 13,433 14,702 15,804 15,526
HENEHIE S Jointly controlled entities 331 509 798 859 831 1,396 2,019 2,365 3,582 4,085
i NE] Associated companies 19,692 20,046 25,393 38,812 38,799 20,987 23,630 22,893 22,377 22,805
"E Investments 4,304 5,644 9,183 11,170 11,548 14,511 9,264 8,070 7,092 1,027
e Stockmarket capitalisation 38,000 53,000 95,800 65,520 35,530 62,230 60,720 37,993 31,514 43,332
MR 4B Number of shareholders 7,256 6,545 6,215 8,642 14,987 13,506 9,808 11,044 12,260 12,198
8T Staff 10,000 11,500 11,750 11,800 11,871 10,490 11,354 11,733 11,643 12,174
FE(BEEET) For the year (HK$ million)
BRE ST Net profit after tax

e SNl Net profit after tax 977 2,963 6,769 7,201 2,628 2,735 3,291 2,110 3,875 1,305

IR (B IT) per share (HK$) 0.50 1.47 3.18 3.38 1.24 1.29 1.49 0.96 1.77 0.60
TEEBEAEN R Contribution by major

business

e Aviation 707 1,054 702 (11) 659 1,475 324 1,263 421

ETERE Civil Infrastructure 467 800 1,099 1,382 1,292 1,320 1,362 1,238 635

8% Communications 974 648 322 65 51 92 295 553 234

BE Power Generation 186 186 170 230 440 314 281 245 229

HERDH Marketing & Distribution 277 330 360 330 230 226 119 227 264

L/ES Property 734 602 1,587 270 740 422 633 894 508

TS Industrial Manufacturing 39 21 2 18 22 29 95 126 178

HE{EM Consumer Credit 78 89 84 167 - - - - -

REYZEERHE Investment Properties

Revaluation Deficit - - - - - - - - (587)

TEFEFEXE - B -

WEREHRFFE EBITDA 1,975 4,040 4,321 5,706 4,739 4,763 5240 3,944 5731 3,133
RIS (BT Dividends per share (HK$)

TR Regular 0.48 0.55 0.62 0.70 0.70 0.75 0.85 0.80 1.00 1.00

=331l Special - - 0.30 0.30 - 2.00 - - 1.00 -

BE(E) Cover (times) 1.0 2.7 2.7 2.7 1.8 1.7 1.8 1.2 1.8 0.6
Bt -

1. —AABFa T BZBE R FIERAHRE -
2. IR EBERA TIEEETZ BB G ERE 125 [Fi5h ) A —FE_FREZHFEHNAE - ER-FE—FERUFIZHT @ WAEFNEERFZ NN G
FERIMELIAGRE R - LI -

Note:

1. Information of contribution by major business for 1994 is not available.
2. Figures have been adjusted in year 2002 following the adoption of revised accounting standard of SSAP 12 ‘Income Tax’
For comparative purposes, the figures for years 2001 and before have not been adjusted for effects on the adoption.
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Human Resources
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As at the end of December 2003, the Group employed 12,174 staff (2002:
11,643) in its headquarters in Hong Kong and its principal subsidiaries
and joint venture companies with more than 50% equity stake. Employees
working in mainland China increased to 7,827 (2002: 7,168) while those
working in Hong Kong decreased to 4,129 (2002: 4,255). The number of
employees in other countries remains steady at 218 (2002: 220).

The sars outbreak in Hong Kong and in the region produced many
challenges to our staff both in their daily life and in re-organising the

way business was conducted to ensure normal operations could continue
under all possible circumstances. Efforts to take new initiatives to improve

efficiency with a view to attaining higher levels of performance continued.

BIEHTOEZREEAR 4,500~
Staff in Major Cities 4,000-
3,500 -
3,000—
2,500 -
2,000—
1,500 -
1,000—
-—_ e Ul am
bl TEE TR TEE B35 ERE FH HippEET  AHER
Hong Kong Beiing Shanghan Jiangyin, Wuxi, Guangzhou, Other China Cities Other Countries
Jiangsu Jiangsu Guangdong
Province Province Province
[0 2003 . 2002
BEBDEZREAH 6,000~
Staff in Business Segments
5,000—
4,000—
3,000—
2,000—
1,000—
o INEE =mEm I- l. .. -
B BRI EB% HERAH TRME Hfth

Head Office Civil Communications Power Generation Marketing & Propeny Industrial Others
Infrastructure Distribution Manufacturing

[0 2003 . 2002
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Human Resources Management

CITIC Pacific strives to be consistent and fair in administering its human
resources management practices to the mutual benefit of its employees
and the Group. The Group recognises and respects individual’s rights
and adheres to non-discriminatory employment policies and practices
and this is part of our Code of Conduct, which also covers many aspects
of business ethics. Every employee of the Group is required to follow this
Code and heads of business units are charged with the responsibility of

disseminating the Group’s requirements to the people concerned.

Employee Compensation

CITIC Pacific aims to attract, retain and motivate employees who have the
relevant skills, knowledge and abilities to develop, support and sustain the
continued success of the Group. Employee’s cash remuneration typically
comprises a base salary and a variable compensation, mainly in the form
of a performance-related discretionary bonus which is based on the
Company’s and the individual’s performance. Senior management of the
Group receives a substantially higher portion of their cash remuneration
in performance bonus, reflecting their ability to influence business

outcomes and financial performance.

Due to its diverse business activities and extended geographical coverage,
the Group is mindful of the unique characteristics of local culture and
endeavours to be flexible in its compensation policies. One fundamental
principle that underpins all compensation policies is the belief in
rewarding staff members in accordance with their performance and
contributions to the Group. In keeping with the world trend towards more
use of variable pay and expanded eligibility, the Group has in the past two
years undertaken to replace many forms of guaranteed and fixed bonuses
with variable compensation, which has the acceptance and support of staff
members. On an annual basis, the Group reviews the cash compensation
and benefit programs provided for its employees to ensure that the overall
compensation is internally equitable, consistent with local and industry
norms, as well as in support of the Group’s business strategy. Towards this

end, Group companies are largely in conformity with this policy.
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A review was conducted in 2003 of the market practice for directors’ fees
and a proposal will be made at the Annual General Meeting to increase

Directors’ fees as follows:

Jet o RS

BT HK$ Proposed Current
EE Director 150,000 | *J& Chairman 120,000
HMEE Other directors 100,000
EZLZEENKE Audit Committee Member 100,000 | *J& Chairman 100,000
FMEZEEKRE Remuneration Committee Member 50,000 & Nil
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Remuneration Committee at its meeting on

27 August 2003 and the first meeting was held on 8 December 2003 to
review and approve the salary and bonus of the executive directors and
certain key executives and also review the remuneration policy of the

Group. All members of the Remuneration Committee attended.

Details of the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 and the granting
of options are reported on pages 75 to 76. Total remuneration paid to
directors was HK$95.5 million (2002: 109.7 million) and further

information on Directors’ Emoluments can be found on page 107.

Retirement Benefits

In line with market trends in Hong Kong and to achieve administrative
efficiency, the majority of the members of The CITIC Group Retirement
Plan (‘orso Plan’) consented to its replacement by The CITIC Group
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (‘MPF Scheme’) - with a choice of
14 funds managed by the Fidelity Retirement Master Trust and the Hang
Seng Mandatory Provident Fund - SuperTrust. At the same time,
recognizing that employees have diverse career and personal goals, the
Group’s retirement age in Hong Kong was changed to 55 effective from 1
August 2003.

Retirement benefits for employees in mainland China and other locations

are based primarily on local mandatory requirements.
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Training & Development

CITIC Pacific is committed to providing a healthy organisational
environment conducive to each individual’s development. Employees

are encouraged to commit to continuous improvement by taking
responsibility for their own learning and self-development. Seminars,
courses by professional institutions and in-house training are organised
regularly to help employees improve job performance and prepare for
tuture development. Where applicable, the Group arranges external service
providers to conduct customised training programs on specific subjects
such as managerial development, work place safety and updates on new
technology. Despite the restricted interface between employees during the
SARS outbreak, the Group undertook to ensure that essential product and

skill training were continued albeit on a limited scale.

To promote work place’s safety, the safety and health committees in Group
companies meet regularly to review related measures and recommend

appropriate training for staff.

CITIC Pacific also believes in investing in the training and development
of the younger members of society. The Group has put in place various
apprentice training programs in different industries of subsidiary
companies. It also participates in the Hong Kong Government’s Youth

Pre-employment Training Program for young school leavers.
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The Group and its employees support the local communities it operates.
As in the past many years, the Group supports charitable work and the
promotion of education, environment protection, sports, culture and the
arts by sponsoring many activities in Hong Kong, mainland China and
overseas. Most notably, the Group and its subsidiary companies have been
long-term supporters of the Community Chest of Hong Kong and the Red
Cross by making donations and participating in their campaigns and
fund raising activities. To provide financial assistance to the victims of
SARS, the Group and its employees also donated generously to various
SARS support funds. The Group is also an active donor to various
charitable and educational funds in Beijing and Shanghai, and employees
in mainland China took part in activities such as tree planting, and other

cultural and charitable events in the community.
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CITIC Pacific is committed to excellent standards of corporate governance
and first class business practices extending beyond compliance with the
mandatory requirements such as that of the Companies Ordinance,
accounting standards and the Stock Exchange. Our principles of corporate
governance emphasize transparency, independence, accountability,

responsibility and fairness.

The Board

The Board currently comprises ten executive and six non-executive
directors of whom four are ‘independent’ under the revised Stock
Exchange Listing Rules coming into force on 31 March 2004 (the
biographies of the directors are set out on pages 62 to 65). Independent
non-executive directors are one-quarter and the total non-executive
directors are 38% of the Board. All directors and committees established
by the Board have recourse to external legal counsel and other
professionals for independent advice at the Group’s expense if they
require it. Under the Company’s articles of association all directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and their re-election is subject to a vote

of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The Board meets four times in 2003 to review the financial and operating
performance of the Group and other business units, and approve future
strategy. The number of meetings held and the attendance record of the

Board members at these meetings in the last five years are

FEEWN as follows:
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
EEREHRAH Number of Board meetings 4 4 4 4 4
L= Attendance
WITES Executive 84% 85% 89% 89% 100%
EHITES Non-Executive 100% 100% 50% 75% 100%
BAUFNTES Independent Non-Executive 100% 86% 96% 83% 96%
2BES All Board members 90% 86% 89% 86% 98%
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System of Internal Controls
The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
system of internal control and prompt and transparent reporting its

activities to shareholders and to the public.

The accounting system and internal controls of the Group are designed
to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against losses
from unauthorised use or disposition, that transactions are executed in
accordance with management authorisation, the financial records are

reliable and financial statements show a true and fair view of the business.

Board Committees
The Board has established an executive committee, an audit committee

and a remuneration committee.

Executive Committee

The Board has established an Executive Committee of executive directors
and senior managers with responsibilities for running the Group’s
business, including the implementation of major strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board. The Executive Committee meets monthly to review

and make decisions on financial and operational matters of the Group.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee was established in 1995 to provide advice and

recommendations to the Board. Its current members include:

Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton — Chairman
Mr Willie Chang
Mr Hansen Loh Chung Hon

All Committee members are independent non-executive directors until
the revised Listing Rules become effective on 31 March 2004. As under the
revised Listing Rules, Mr Willie Chang will cease to be ‘independent’ due
to his professional work for CITIC Pacific.
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The Committee members possess diversified industry experience and the
Chairman is an expert on financial and auditing matters. The Committee
meets four times each year, together with senior management and

auditors, both internal and external.

The Audit Committee’s main responsibilities are to consider the
appointment of the external auditors, their audit fee, resignation or
dismissal; to discuss with external auditors their independence and the
nature and scope of the audit; to review the half-year and annual financial
statements, particularly judgmental areas, before submission to the Board;
to review the external auditors’ management letter and management’s
response; to review the Group’s internal control system; to review internal
audit programme and findings; and to review the Group’s adherence to

various Codes described below.

During 2003 part of a meeting was attended only by the Committee
members and the external auditors. The number of meetings held and the
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee at these meetings for

the last five years including the meeting to approve the 2003 accounts are

Hzgd) sEiEmr - as follows:
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
BEIRE Number of meetings held 4 4 4 4 4
HEE Attendance
BUFRITES Independent Non-Executive Directors 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
BRMBEE Chief Financial Officer 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
EEEHEE Group Financial Controller 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
R EB % B AD Internal auditor 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
HNFAZBIAM External auditors 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
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The Audit Committee of the Board has reviewed the 2003 financial
statements with management and the Company’s internal and external

auditors and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2003 to review and
approve the salary and bonus of the executive directors and certain key
executives and also review the remuneration policy of the Group. The
first meeting was held on 8 December 2003 with the attendance rate

of 100%. All Committee members are independent non-executive
directors until the revised Listing Rules become effective on 31 March

2004 and its current members are:

Mr Norman Ho Hau Chong - Chairman
Mr Willie Chang
Mr Alexander Reid Hamilton

Details of CITIC Pacific’s remuneration policies are in the Human
Resources section on pages 51 to 52, directors’ emoluments and retirement
benefit, are disclosed in Notes 10 and 11 on pages 107 to 108.

Internal Audit

The Group Internal Audit Department supports management by carrying
out a systematic review of all levels of organization over a period that

is determined after an assessment of the risks involved. The Audit
Committee endorses the audit plan annually. The Group Internal Auditor
has unrestricted access to all parts of the business, and direct access to any
level of management including the Chairman, or the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, as he considers necessary. The Group Internal Audit
Department submits regular reports for the Audit Committee’s review

in accordance with the approved work programme.

To reinforce the Group’s business culture and the established corporate
initiatives, and to strengthen the internal control system over business
nearby, the Group has set up an internal audit function, currently
comprising of three audit staff, in Shanghai in 2003, reporting directly
to the Group Internal Auditor based in Hong Kong.
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External Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers has been appointed by the shareholders
annually as the CITIC Pacific’s statutory auditor since 1989 and their
report is on page 155. Approximately HK$6 million (2002: HK$5 million)
was charged to the accounts of the Company and subsidiaries for
PricewaterhouseCoopers’ statutory audit and tax compliance services.
The amount of non statutory audit service for the Company and
subsidiaries provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers during the year

was minimal. The fees for the audit of subsidiaries not performed by

PricewaterhouseCoopers amounted to approximately HK$6 million.

Codes

To ensure the highest standard of integrity in our businesses, in 1995
the Group adopted a Code of Conduct defining the ethical standards
expected of all employees, and the Group’s non-discriminatory
employment practices. Training courses on the Code are held regularly
for all employees and the Audit Committee receives a report on the

operation, and the need for revision, of the Code every year.

The Group has issued its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors that follows the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies contained in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the ‘Listing Rules’). Throughout 2003 the Group has
complied with the Code of Best Practice contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

The Group has endorsed the guide to good employment practices issued
by the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong to promote good and

responsible employment standards.

Connected Transactions

During the period, CITIC Pacific has issued press announcements in
respect of a number of ‘connected transactions’, details of which have
been included in the Directors Report on pages 71 to 74 and the related
press announcements can be viewed in the Group’s website

(www.citicpacific.com).
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Fair Disclosure and Investor Relations

CITIC Pacific uses its best endeavours to distribute material information
about the Group to all interested parties as widely as possible. When
announcements are made through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange the
same information will be on its way to journalists and investment analysts
where an e-mail address or fax number is known and will be available to

shareholders on the Company’s website shortly thereafter.

CITIC Pacific recognises its responsibility to explain its activities to those
with a legitimate interest and to respond to their questions. During 2003,
investors were regularly received and visited to explain the Group’s
business. Questions on the Company and its products and services
received from the general public, individual shareholders and investment
analysts were answered promptly. In all cases great care has been taken

to ensure that no price sensitive information is disclosed.

Information about CITIC Pacific can be found in the Group’s website
including descriptions of each business and the Annual Reports for last

five years.

Financial Reporting

CITIC Pacific prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting standards published by the Hong Kong Society

of Accountants. Hong Kong accounting standards broadly follow
international accounting standards. The Group has adopted ssap

No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes’ which became effective for the current
financial year. Appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; judgments and estimates made are prudent and reasonable.
The directors endeavour to ensure a balanced and understandable

assessment of the Group’s position and prospects in financial reporting.
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Headquarters and Registered Office

32nd Floor, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 2820 2111

Fax: 2877 2771

Website

www.citicpacific.com contains a description of CITIC Pacific’s business,
copies of both the full and summary reports to shareholders,
announcements, press releases and other information.

Stock Codes

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong: 0267
Bloomberg: 267 HK

Reuters: 0267. HK

American Depository Receipts: CTPCY
CUSIP Reference No: 17304K102

Share Registrars

Shareholders should contact our Registrars, Tengis Limited, Ground Floor,

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong on 2980 1333, or by fax: 2810 8185, on matters such as transfer

of shares, change of name or address, or loss of share certificates.

Annual and Interim Reports

Shareholders may obtain printed copies of annual and interim reports
from the Registrars. Other should contact the Company Secretary

on 2820 2111 or fax: 2877 2771 or at contact@citicpacific.com for

a printed report.

Investor Relations

Investors, shareholders and research analysts may contact the Investor
Relations Department by telephone at 2820 2004, by fax: 2104 6632 or
at investor.relations@citicpacific.com.

Financial Calendar

Closure of Register: 4 May 2004 to 10 May 2004
Annual General Meeting: 10 May 2004, 10:30 a.m.
Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hotel
Two Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road

Hong Kong

Final Dividend Payable: 13 May 2004
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Executive Directors

Larry Yung Chi Kin (Chairman), aged 62, a Director since 1990, is the
Vice Chairman and Managing Director of CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings)
Limited (‘CITIC HK’) and an Executive Director of CITIC Group (‘CITIC
Beijing’). He worked for 14 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in
the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC’) before coming to Hong Kong in
1978, and had extensive management experience before establishing
CITIC HK in 1987. Mr Yung is a Steward of the Hong Kong Jockey Club.

Henry Fan Hung Ling (Managing Director), aged 55, a Director since
1990, is a Deputy Chairman of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (‘Cathay’),
a director of Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited (‘Dragonair’) and a
Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK. He is a non-executive director
of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. Before joining CITIC HK
in 1987, Mr Fan held senior management positions with a number of

corporations and also practised law as a barrister.

Vernon Francis Moore (Deputy Managing Director), aged 57, a Director
and the Group Chief Financial Officer since 1990, is a director of Cathay,
cLp Holdings Limited (‘cLp Holdings’) and Hong Kong Air Cargo
Terminals Limited, and the Chairman of the New Hong Kong Tunnel
Company Limited (‘NHKTC’), Hong Kong Tunnels and Highways
Management Company Limited (‘HKTHMC’) and the Western Harbour
Tunnel Company Limited (‘WHT’). Mr Moore joined CITIC HK in 1987
as Executive Director after holding senior management positions with

a number of financial institutions.

Peter Lee Chung Hing (Deputy Managing Director), aged 50, is the

Vice Chairman of CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. (‘CITIC Guoan’) and Air China
Cargo and a director of Dragonair and other Group companies concerned
with industrial, communications and trading businesses. Before joining
CITIC HK in 1988, Mr Lee was with major banking and shipping groups
in Hong Kong. He joined CITIC Pacific Limited (‘CITIC Pacific’) in 1990.
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Norman Yuen Kee Tong (Deputy Managing Director), aged 55, a Director
since 2001, is the Chairman of CITIC Pacific Communications Limited
(‘cpc’) and the representative of CITIC Pacific on the Board of Companhia
de Telecomunicacoes de Macau s.A.R.L. Mr Yuen was previously the
deputy chief executive officer of Pacific Century CyberWorks Limited

and had extensive experience in the telecommunications business. He
serves on several public bodies and advisory committees and is a Justice
of the Peace.

Yao Jinrong (Executive Director), aged 64, a Director since 2000, is the
Managing Director of CITIC Pacific China Holdings Limited. He joined
CITIC Beijing in early 1985 and once served concurrently as executive
secretary to CITIC Beijing’s former Chairman Mr Rong Yiren and director
of CITIC Beijing’s general office. From 1995 to 2000, Mr Yao was one

of CITIC Beijing’s Vice Presidents and Executive Directors. He is now

a director of CITIC Beijing.

Chang Zhenming (Executive Director), aged 47, a Director since 2000,
joined CITIC Beijing in 1983 and has extensive experience in finance,
banking and securities business. Mr Chang is an Executive Director
and Vice President of CITIC Beijing, Chief Executive Officer of CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, Executive Vice Chairman

of CITIC Ka Wah Bank Limited and a director of CITIC HK.

Li Shilin (Executive Director), aged 54, a Director since 2000, is an
Executive Director and a Vice President of CITIC Beijing. He is also the
Chairman of CITIC Guoan Group, Xin De Telecom International Ventures
Co., Ltd., CITIC Guoan Information Industry Co., Ltd. and CITIC Offshore
Helicopter Co., Ltd.

Carl Yung Ming Jie (Executive Director), aged 35, is a director of Cathay
and other Group companies concerned with infrastructure and industrial
projects in the PrC. He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993. He is the son of

Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.
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Liu Jifu (Executive Director), aged 60, a Director since 2001, is a director
of CITIC HK. Before joining CITIC HK in 2000, Mr Liu worked with the
Financial and Economics Research Institute in the China Academy of
Social Sciences for 5 years. Formerly, he was an Executive Director of
China Everbright Group Limited, the Chairman of China Everbright
Travel Inc and China PINGHE Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Non-Executive Directors
Willie Chang, aged 60, a Director since 1987, is the sole proprietor of
Willie Chang & Co., Solicitors, with over 34 years’ experience in legal

practice, including as a partner of Johnson, Stokes and Master. t*

Hamilton Ho Hau Hay, aged 53, a Director since 1992, is a director of
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, an Alternate Director to Dr Ho Tim
for New World Development Company Limited, an Executive Director of
Honorway Investments Limited (‘Honorway’) and Tak Hung (Holding)
Company Limited (‘Tak Hung’). He is the brother of Mr Norman Ho Hau
Chong.*

Alexander Reid Hamilton, aged 62, a Director since 1994, was a partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers where he practised for 16 years. He is a
director of a number of Hong Kong companies including cosco Pacific
Limited, Shangri-La Asia Limited, Esprit Holdings Limited and Octopus
Cards Limited.*t*

Hansen Loh Chung Hon, aged 66, a Director since 1994, is the Managing
Director of Wyler Textiles, Limited, Chairman of Farrington American

Express Travel Services Limited and a director of cLP Holdings.**

Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 48, a Director since 1994, is an Executive
Director of Honorway and Tak Hung, and a director of Hong Kong

Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Limited, and
a number of other quoted companies. He is the brother of Mr Hamilton
Ho Hau Hay. **
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André Desmarais, aged 47, a Director since 1997, is the President and
Co-Chief Executive Officer of Power Corporation of Canada. He is a
member of the Chief Executive’s Council of International Advisers of
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and

member of the CITIC International Advisory Council.

Peter Kruyt (Alternate Director to André Desmarais), aged 48, an
alternate director since 2003, is Vice President of Power Corporation
of Canada, Chairman of Power Pacific Corporation Limited and

Chairman of the Canada-China Business Council.

* Independent Non-Executive Director
T Member of the Audit Committee
¥ Member of the Remuneration Committee

Senior Managers

Bi Yupu (General Manager, Power Project Department), aged 62, is a
Deputy Managing Director of CITIC HK and the chief representative of
CITIC Pacific’s Beijing Office. Before joining the CITIC HK Group in 1987,
he worked for 20 years with the Ministry of Electric Power in the PrRC

as a senior engineer and deputy director of North China Electric Power
Research Institute. He joined CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Chau Chi Yin (Director, Group Financial Control), aged 48, joined CITIC
Pacific in 1990, is a director of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
(‘HK Resort’) and Group companies in the industrial sector projects.

He joined CITIC HK in 1987 after experience in public accounting and

in financial management with a major Hong Kong listed company.

Leslie Chang Li Hsien (Director, Group Finance), aged 49, is a director
of CITIC Guoan, HKTHMC and WHT. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1994,
he was a partner at KPMG specialising in the financial services industry

and the Director of the firm’s Chinese Practice in the United States.
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Frances Yung Ming Fong (Director, Technology Development), aged 32,

is the Deputy Chairman of cpc and a director of NHKTC. She joined CITIC
Pacific in 1995 and is responsible for the development of technology-based
projects. She is the daughter of Mr Larry Yung Chi Kin.

Milton Law Ming To (Director, Business Development), aged 40, is a
director of Dragonair, NHKTC, WHT, HKTHMC, CITIC Guoan, Air China
Cargo and other Group companies in the infrastructure, environment,
trading and industrial sector. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1992,

he worked in the banking industry.

Polly Lawrence (Director, Group Human Resources and Administration),
aged 57, was head of human resources and communications of a Hong

Kong listed company before joining CITIC Pacific in 1993.

Hui Ying Bun (Group Chief Executive, Dah Chong Hong), aged 57, is
also the Chief Executive - Motor, responsible for the overall management
of the Dah Chong Hong Group’s businesses in Hong Kong, the PRc,
Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong in 1966,
obtaining extensive experience in executive management, motor
distribution, and China Trade.

Chu Hon Fai (Chief Executive - Trading, Dah Chong Hong), aged 58,
is responsible for the Dah Chong Hong Group’s trading business in Hong
Kong, the Prc, Singapore, Japan, and Canada. He joined Dah Chong Hong

in 1964, obtaining extensive experience in global trading and distribution.

Peter Chan Kwong Choi (Managing Director, CITIC Telecom 1616
Limited), aged 40, joined CITIC Pacific in 2000, when CITIC Pacific
bought Telecom 1616 Limited where he gained extensive experience

in the telecommunications industry.
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Glenn Robert Sturrock Smith (Chief Executive, Sims Trading Company
Limited (‘Sims Trading’)), aged 51, joined CITIC Pacific in 2001 when
CITIC Pacific bought Sims Trading where he had many years of experience
in the marketing and distribution of consumer products. He is Chairman

of the Guangdong Jing Yun Distribution Co., Ltd.

Aaron Wong Ha Hang (General Manager - Projects, Property
Department), aged 45, is an Executive Director of HK Resort, a director
of NHKTC and other Group companies concerned with property and
environmental projects. Before joining CITIC Pacific in 1996, he worked
for an international consulting firm in the United Kingdom and in

Hong Kong.

Cindy Kwan Kit Ying (General Manager - Sales & Marketing, Property
Department), aged 41, joined CITIC Pacific in 1996 after broad experience

in property sales, marketing, and leasing.

Stephen Ho Wai Chung (Chief Executive Officer, cPcNet Hong Kong
Limited), aged 45, is the Executive Vice-President, Operations of cpc.
He joined CITIC Pacific in 2001 after 19 years of experience in the

telecommunications industry.

Stella Chan Chui Sheung (Director, Company Secretariat), aged 41.
Before joining CITIC HK in 1988 and CITIC Pacific in 1990, she worked

in the company secretarial field.

Miranda Yip Siu Wai (Executive Director and the General Manager,
NHKTC), aged 40, joined NHKTC in January 1999 as Deputy General
Manager and was appointed as Executive Director and General Manager

in January 2004. She has extensive experience in public administration.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report for
the year ended 31 December 2003.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its subsidiary companies and associated
companies and their major areas of operation are set out in the Business

Review on pages 5 to 29.

Dividends

The Directors declared an interim dividend of HK$0.30 per share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2003 which was paid on

23 September 2003. The Directors recommended, subject to the approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.70 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2003 payable on 13 May 2004 to shareholders on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 10 May 2004.

Reserves
The amounts and particulars of transfer to and from reserves during the

year are set out in Note 22 to the accounts.

Donations
Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$21 million.

Fixed Assets

Movements of fixed assets are set out in Note 12 to the accounts.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
The percentage of purchases and sales with the Group’s suppliers and

customers are as follows:
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The aggregate percentage of sales to the Group’s five largest customers is
less than 30%.

No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) were

interested at any time in the year in the above suppliers or customers.

Subsidiary Companies
The names of the principal subsidiary companies, their principal places of
operation, their countries of incorporation and particulars of their issued

share capital are set out in Note 31 to the accounts.

Issue of Debt Securities

On 15 February 1996, the Company issued and sold US$100 million
aggregate principal amount of its 7.37% Senior Notes due 2006 (‘Senior
Notes’) to financial institutions pursuant to note purchase agreements
dated 15 February 1996. All of the Senior Notes remained outstanding
at the end of the year.

On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million
principal amount of 7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed
Notes’) for refinancing the indebtedness of the Company and for general
corporate purposes, to investors pursuant to the purchase agreements
dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001. All of the Guaranteed Notes remained
outstanding at the end of the year.

Save as aforesaid, neither the Company nor its subsidiary companies have

issued any debt securities.
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Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 23 to the

accounts.

Directors

With the exception Mr Robert Ernest Adams, who retired with effect
from 1 January 2004, the Directors of the Company whose names and
biographical details appear on pages 62 to 65 were the Directors in office
during the financial year ended 31 December 2003.

Pursuant to Article 104(A) of the New Articles of Association of the
Company, Messrs Larry Yung Chi Kin, Peter Lee Chung Hing, Norman
Yuen Kee Tong, Liu Jifu and Willie Chang shall retire by rotation in the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and all, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

Management Contract

The Company entered into a management agreement with CITIC

Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (formerly China International Trust &
Investment Corporation Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited) (‘CITIC HK’)
on 11 April 1991 but with retrospective effect from 1 March 1990 in which
CITIC HK agreed to provide management services to the Company and
its subsidiary companies for a management fee calculated on a cost basis
to CITIC HK payable quarterly in arrears. The management agreement is
terminable by two months’ notice by either party. Messrs Larry Yung Chi
Kin, Henry Fan Hung Ling, Vernon Francis Moore, Chang Zhenming and
Liu Jifu had indirect interests in the management agreement as they are
directors of CITIC HK. A copy of the management agreement will be
available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
to be held on 10 May 2004.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

None of the Directors of the Company has or at any time during the

year had, an interest which is or was material, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract with the Company or any of its subsidiary companies,
which was significant in relation to the business of the Company, and
which was subsisting at the end of the year or which had subsisted at

any time during the year.



FER S
MR 1 5 20 2 P A B ) (T B2 B ) )
Jr LW AVE T B8 2 B T

LR — AN ET AL HEALA
TEEE - ZREHAERATR B
AT AR A (588 [ 45 77 1) I Cheer First
Limited ([ Cheer First|) #1322 Wik » &
F % Cheer First 2 it # [7] & & X T Cheer
First » DUE I RA P ERE 2 BERE
HRARRBETRME - PEFEIAANRZ
FEBOR - BRI > WFEFRA
Cheer First 25% Mt o % 2E S TT4%— i
ZEMR K AR B8 4% 77 1A Cheer Firstf#4 22 Ji i
FemifE > 3 S sk B AR B S
ERFBRATFERE - BEZRF=F 12
H =+ —H 1 > Cheer Firsti] X & 8 7] 2
R SR A BT T

2N AEEA B REILHBEARAF
(TR Z AT E B R - ARG S
HHEZ AR — BB EE S - AT AR K
AFHENZEEREERN - B ARAR
(T##l - BREESGITEBAERAARE
60% I 2 Bt A ) FE A 1L BV 76.77% Bk
W > AR BB 58 = T > RS
S =B A TR AT VLT B B R TRORE I 12 A £
M BEANL - E - FESEF T S
H ik > TR T 2 SR 7 (5 A A 3L 00 1
FIC R BATIRE KA R — 2 ik
I IR 60% e 40% 2 2 AR -

Connected Transactions
Connected transactions disclosed in accordance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(‘Stock Exchange’) are as follows:

1. Pursuant to the agreement dated 9 October 1996 made between the
Company, CITIC HK, Kerry Trading Co. Limited, The Development Bank
of Singapore Limited (collectively ‘the Parties’) and Cheer First Limited
(‘Cheer First’), the Parties being the shareholders of Cheer First agreed

to make loans to Cheer First for providing loan finance to Goldon
Investment Limited which owns the CITIC Tower, Hong Kong. CITIC HK
being a substantial shareholder of the Company and regarded as its
connected person holds 25% interest in Cheer First. The loan was made on
normal commercial terms and in proportion to each party’s shareholding
in Cheer First. It was with no fixed repayment date and was interest
bearing at the rate per annum equivalent to Hong Kong Inter-Bank
Offered Rate. As at 31 December 2003, the amount of shareholders’ loan
due from Cheer First to the Company was HK$2,150 million.

2. During the year, the Group executed a guarantee to a bank to
secure the facilities granted to Shanghai DcH Jiangnanfeng Co., Ltd.
(‘Jiangnanfeng’), a company engaged in the production and selling

of chickens and related food products, as its general working capital.
Jiangnanfeng was 76.77% owned by Regal Heights Limited (‘Regal
Heights’, a 60% subsidiary of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited)
with the remaining interest held by individual third parties which were
connected to the Group by virtue only of their substantial shareholding
in Jiangnanfeng. As at 31 December 2003, total facilities granted to
Jiangnanfeng was US$4 million secured by corporate guarantees,

of which 60% was given by Dah Chong Hong Group and 40% by the

remaining partner in Regal Heights.

71



Exel

=S Directors’ Report

3.0 SRR AR R TN 2 R SRR AR A
PR B N1 (e R BT RLAD) AT
HTEBRL Y o MR K BBARA R JIALR
AR R EHA Z WEA F 2 EEBR > T
M B AR R g ERE RS 2 BEE
KA AR A IR R A 7 2 B A« TEH
BEOERF=FEA A= HIEERET
LHET > BELGHERIEA LT -EFE"
FAERTRZ AEEG AL EEFEE

3. During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Company had entered into
business transactions with Swire Pacific Limited and its associate (as
defined in the Listing Rules), being connected persons of the Company as
Swire Pacific Limited is a substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company that partly owns CITIC Square, Shanghai.
Details of the transactions made for the year ended 31 December 2003
with annual amounts exceeding 0.03% of the Group’s consolidated net
tangible assets as disclosed in the Company’s 2002 annual report were as

follows (‘the Continuing Transactions’):

0.03%%# ([HEzcH 1) > FERWT
FBETT (4) HK$ (approximately)
HETEEREREESH Repair of aviation containers and sale of parts 18,000,000
HERREHEREREISEH Repair and maintenance of ground support equipment
and airport vehicles 32,000,000
50,000,000
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An independent committee of the Board (comprising only of independent
non-executive Directors) had reviewed the Continuing Transactions made
for the year ended 31 December 2003 and confirmed that the Continuing
Transactions had been entered into

¢ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

e on normal commercial terms or, if there were no sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they were on normal commercial terms,
on terms no less favourable than terms available to independent third

parties; and

e on terms that were fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the

Company were concerned.

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the Board that the
Continuing Transactions (a) had received the approval of the Board of the
Company; (b) had been entered into on normal commercial terms or, with
the terms of the agreement(s) relating to such transactions or, if there was
no such agreement, on terms no less favourable than terms available to
independent third parties; and (c) had not exceeded 3% of the Group’s

net tangible asset value as at 31 December 2002 as disclosed in its 2002

annual report.
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4. Pursuant to (i) the agreement dated 13 October 2003 made between
Everwin Holdings Ltd. (‘Everwin’), a wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company, and CITIC Group (formerly China International Trust and
Investment Corporation) (‘CITIC Beijing’), being a substantial shareholder
of the Company, and (ii) the agreement dated 13 October 2003 made
between Everwin and CITIC Beijing, Everwin agreed to acquire from CITIC
Beijing (a) 65% of the registered capital of Sunburst Energy Development
Inc. (‘Sunburst’), together with the benefit of a shareholder’s loan of
RMB46,890,000 due by Sunburst to CITIC Beijing and interest outstanding
thereunder (but excluding 51% of the registered capital of Shaanxi Xin Li
Power Generation Company Limited (‘Shaanxi Xin Li’) held by Sunburst)
and (b) 20% of the registered capital of Inner Mongolia Fengtai Electric
Power Generation Company Limited. Sunburst in turn beneficially

owns 13.44% of Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power Company Limited and
85% of Shenzhen Xiecheng Electric Industry Company Limited. The
consideration was RMB360,960,000. In addition, in relation to a banking
facility of RMB315,490,000 (extended by an independent third party)

to Shaanxi Xin Li under which CITIC Beijing has provided a guarantee to
the bank and Sunburst has provided the counter indemnity dated 29
December 1997, it was agreed that in relation to any claim against CITIC
Beijing under its guarantee to the bank, CITIC Beijing and Everwin will
share such claim equally and Everwin will indemnify CITIC Beijing

accordingly, up to a maximum amount of RMB50 million.

5. On 28 November 2003, Sunspark Power Investment Company Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Wuxi Local Electric
Power Company (‘Wuxi Power’) entered into the joint venture contract
and the articles of association for the establishment of a new joint venture
on 70:30 basis, to engage in the construction of pumped storage hydraulic
power plant in Ma Shan, Wuxi, Jiangsu in the People’s Republic of China
(‘PRC’). The total investment and the registered capital of the new joint
venture amount to US$28 million and US$20 million respectively. As
Wuxi Power is a subsidiary of #8) i BH# 5 & (1) A /A, being a
substantial shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company, Wuxi

Power is a connected person of the Company.
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6. On 19 January 2004, the Company entered into a framework agreement
with Asset Management Office of Jiangyin Municipal Government and
Jiangyin Steel Mill. Pursuant to the framework agreement, Asset
Management Office of Jiangyin Municipal Government and Jiangyin Steel
Mill agreed to Jiangyin Steel Mill entering into the agreements in relation
to the Group’s acquisition of Jiangyin Steel Mill’s 55.55% interest in the
following companies involved in the steel industry in the PRC at the total
consideration of RMB549,377,184:

Jiangsu CP Xingcheng Special Steel Co., Ltd.

Jiangyin CP Xingcheng Special Materials Co., Ltd.
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special Steel Works Co., Ltd.
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel Products Co., Ltd.

Jiangyin Xingcheng Storage and Transportation Co., Ltd.

On the same day, five agreements in relation to the aforesaid acquisition
were entered into between wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company and
Jiangyin Steel Mill. The acquisition of additional interests in the above
companies provided an opportunity for the Group to further expand its

steel manufacturing business in the PRC.

In addition, on 19 January 2004, two of the above companies being non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company entered into agreements with
Jiangyin Steel Mill for acquiring the land use rights of the following
properties which were occupied by them as their principal production

sites and head offices from Jiangyin Steel Mill:

i) 4 parcels of land for industrial use at 58 Xi Yan Shan, Chengjiang,
Jiangyin acquired by Jiangsu CP Xingcheng Special Steel Co., Ltd. at
RMB49,366,200; and

ii) a parcel of land for industrial use at 68 Renmin Dong Lu, Jiangyin
acquired by Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel Products Co., Ltd. at
RMB36,676,462.73.

Jiangyin Steel Mill is a connected person of the Company by virtue of its

being a substantial shareholder of several subsidiaries of the Company.
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Share Option Plan
The Company adopted the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000
(‘the Plan’) on 31 May 2000. The major terms of the Plan are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Plan is to promote the interests of the Company
and its shareholders by (i) providing the participants with additional
incentives to continue and increase their efforts in achieving success in
the business of the Company, and (ii) attracting and retaining the best
available personnel to participate in the on-going business operation of

the Company.

2. The participants of the Plan are any director, executive or employee

of the Company or its subsidiaries as invited by the Board.

3. The maximum number of shares over which options may be granted
under the Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower.

As at 18 March 2004, the maximum number of shares available for issue
under the Plan is 207,456,016, representing approximately 9.47% of

the issued share capital.

4. No participant shall be granted an option which, if exercised in full,
would result in such participant’s maximum entitlement to exceed 25

per cent of the maximum aggregate number of shares subject to the Plan.

5. The exercise period of any option granted under the Plan must not be

more than ten years commencing on the date of grant.

6. The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.

7. The exercise price determined by the Board will be at least the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding

the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
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8. The Plan shall be valid and effective till 30 May 2010.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares
in the Company listed in the table below representing 0.53% of the then
issued share capital, at the exercise price of HK$18.20 per share, were
granted under the Plan. The closing price of the Company’s share
immediately before the date of grant was HK$18.10. All options granted
and accepted can be exercised in whole or in part within 5 years from
the date of grant. All were accepted, and none were exercised, cancelled

or lapsed in the period up to 31 December 2003.

RoBE=—F+-_A=+—-ARBEHE

Number of Share Options as at 31 December 2003

KARES Directors of the Company 8,100,000
BRBEANXEZREE Continuous Contract Employees 3,400,000
H+ Others* 50,000
At Total 11,550,000

*UBRETRT —ERRAANTEZER  MZER
REOBEZFF A= —HFEARNK -
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* It is in respect of the options granted to an employee under continuous contract,
who retired during the year ended 31 December 2003.
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

The interests of the Directors in shares of the Company or any associated

corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance (‘sF0’)) as at 31 December 2003 as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 352 of the sFo were as follows:

1. Shares in the Company and Associated Corporation

gar 4!
Number of Shares
[EE3 IEE BT
(PN EERE S EN 34 BAOER ERES
Personal Corporate Family Trusts and Percentage to the
interests interests interests  similar interests issued share capital
%
PEREBRAR CITIC Pacific Limited
RER Larry Yung Chi Kin 400,381,000 18.295
SBAGHR Henry Fan Hung Ling 43,000,000 1.965
HEH Vernon Francis Moore 3,200,000 0.146
/N Peter Lee Chung Hing 500,000 0.023
brac= Norman Yuen Kee Tong 33,000 0.002
BERE Robert Ernest Adams 550,000 0.025
2IEH Liu Jifu 40,000 0.002
R 4B % Hansen Loh Chung Hon 1,050,000 500,000 500,000 0.071
EEE André Desmarais 99,765 100,242,035° 4.585
115 0 70 5 r Peter Kruyt
(EREkrEZ (alternate director to
BEES) Mr André Desmarais) 2,100 0.0001
BEEMEBRATE Cathay Pacific
Airways Limited
FEdgiz Hansen Loh Chung Hon 450,000 0.013
Bfat - Note:

1. 3 751500,000 AR 15 T3 56— Beh BRI E B R A
FHAB 2 DTS - REBE BB 2SI
BV I TR

2. EHTFH 2 100,242,035 R iR (4 + 12,035 R 3%
B A EFZES 2B E - 100,230,000
RIEB—FBEREF L IEARBRTRERZE
EEZRE

1. The corporate interests and the family interests of the relevant Director duplicate
each other as the 500,000 shares are held through a company in which the

relevant Director and his family are interested.

2. Out of 100,242,035 shares, 12,035 shares are held by corporations controlled by
the relevant Director and 100,230,000 shares are held indirectly by a corporation
of which the relevant Director is the President and Co-Chief Executive Officer.
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2. Share Options in the Company

imARATIE 2 BT R MEBETRAE DX

EE Directors Number of Outstanding Percentage to the
Share Options issued share capital

%

KRR Larry Yung Chi Kin 2,000,000 0.091
SEIEER Henry Fan Hung Ling 1,600,000 0.073
HiE%e Vernon Francis Moore 1,000,000 0.046
/N Peter Lee Chung Hing 1,000,000 0.046
Fric = Norman Yuen Kee Tong 500,000 0.023
BLE Robert Ernest Adams 300,000 0.014
Pk &g Yao Jinrong 300,000 0.014
EIRA Chang Zhenming 500,000 0.023
&S Li Shilin 300,000 0.014
EBAN Carl Yung Ming Jie 300,000 0.014
BIHEE Liu Jifu 300,000 0.014
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2003, none of the Directors of
the Company had nor were they taken to or deemed to have, under Part
XV of the sFo, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations or any
interests which are required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or any interests which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiary companies a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body

corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2003, the interests of the substantial shareholders,
other than the Directors of the Company or their respective associate(s),

in the shares of the Company as recorded in the register of interests in

shares and short positions required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO were as follows :

RARZRDEE EEBITRAE S X

Number of Shares Percentage to the

E Name of the Company issued share capital
%

sl R CITIC Beijing 632,066,285 28.882
FEEE CITIC HK 632,066,285 28.882
Heedon Corporation Heedon Corporation 498,424,285 22.775
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.210

HE A IER I R E M AT o A

CITIC HK is a substantial shareholder of the Company indirectly through

Nl EEBOR the following wholly owned subsidiary companies:
BRmEBE IEE BT
0.407t 2 B8 A BOE
Number of Shares of Percentage to the
PEEEZMBRARERE Name of Subsidiary Companies of CITIC HK HK$0.40 each issued share capital
%
Affluence Limited Affluence Limited 43,266,000 1.977
Winton Corp. Winton Corp. 30,718,000 1.404
Westminster Investment Inc. Westminster Investment Inc. 101,960,000 4.659
Jetway Corp. Jetway Corp. 22,500,000 1.028
Cordia Corporation Cordia Corporation 32,258,064 1.474
Honpville Corporation Honpville Corporation 310,988,221 14.210
Hainsworth Limited Hainsworth Limited 80,376,000 3.673
Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Southpoint Enterprises Inc. 10,000,000 0.457
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Each of Affluence Limited, Winton Corp., Westminster Investment Inc.,
Jetway Corp., Cordia Corporation, Honpville Corporation, Hainsworth
Limited and Southpoint Enterprises Inc. holds the shares of the Company
beneficially. Accordingly, Honpville Corporation is a substantial

shareholder of the Company.

CITIC Beijing is the direct holding company of CITIC HK. CITIC HK is the
direct holding company of Heedon Corporation, Hainsworth Limited,
Affluence Limited and Barnsley Investments Limited. Heedon Corporation
is the direct holding company of Winton Corp., Westminster Investment
Inc., Jetway Corp., Kotron Company Ltd. and Honpville Corporation

and Kotron Company Ltd. is the direct holding company of Cordia
Corporation. Barnsley Investments Limited is the direct holding company
of Southpoint Enterprises Inc. Accordingly, the interests of CITIC Beijing
in the Company duplicate the interests of CITIC HK in the Company.

The interests of CITIC HK in the Company duplicate the interests in the
Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary companies as described
above. The interests of Heedon Corporation in the Company duplicate
the interests in the Company of all its direct and indirect subsidiary
companies as described above. The interests of Barnsley Investments
Limited in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of its
direct subsidiary company as described above and the interests of Kotron
Company Ltd. in the Company duplicate the interests in the Company of

its direct subsidiary company as described above.
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Share Capital

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended
31 December 2003. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiary
companies has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year ended 31 December 2003.

Service Contracts
As at 31 December 2003, there were no service contracts which were

not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation) between any company

in the Group and any Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming

Annual General Meeting.

Auditors
The accounts for the year have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who shall retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for

re-appointment.

By Order of the Board,
Larry Yung Chi Kin Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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HeaBmik
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

WE _FE=F+H=1—H LR for the year ended 31 December 2003
Likss
LB EE T E in HK$ million Note 2003 2002
EE S Turnover 2 26,180 22,316
REEREF Profit from Consolidated Activities 3 1,132 2,583
P s FRE R Share of Profits Less Losses of 4
HEESER Jointly Controlled Entities 341 368
=N Associated Companies 769 1,987
B R Net Finance Charges 5 (320) (434)
BB AR Profit before Taxation 1,922 4,504
B Taxation 6 (871) (424)
FREF Profit for the Year 1,551 4,080
LERRES Minority Interests (246) (205)
BRREMGER Profit Attributable to Shareholders 7 1,305 3,875
BE Dividends 8 (2,189) (4,377)
BARE Transfer to Reserves 22 (40) 5)
BREF (B%T) Earnings per Share (HKS$) 9 0.60 1.77
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

TER ST H =+ —HIEAH as at 31 December 2003
B 5
LB EE A E in HK$ million Note 2003 2002
EE&EE Fixed Assets 12 15,526 15,804
HEEHER Jointly Controlled Entities 14 4,085 3,582
BE QT Associated Companies 15 22,805 22,377
BE Investments 16 1,027 7,092
meE Goodwill 17 223 235
EEBBEEE Deferred Tax Assets 24 85 63
REEE Current Assets
FEMHE Properties held for sale 12 336 336
GE Inventories 18 1,880 1,866
LEmEE Listed investment - 24
FEARBRTE - FEUERSK « RS Debtors, accounts receivable,
RIERHKIEA deposits and prepayments 19 4,248 3,088
B& RIRITFER Cash and bank deposits 5,511 2,545
11,975 7,859
bk B=Ri Current Liabilities
RITER  HtEFRREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts
BIEM secured 49 63
Eiigii unsecured 826 467
FERTBRIE - FEITER - e Creditors, accounts payable,
R FERFIE deposits and accruals 20 3,912 2,995
TIEEE Provision for taxation 108 95
4,895 3,620
REBEEFE Net Current Assets 7,080 4,239
EEABRRBES Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 50,831 53,392
REER Long Term Borrowings 23 (9,653) (8,737)
ELHELE Deferred Tax Liabilities 24 (825) (299)
25 40,853 44,356
B R Financed by
&S Share Capital 21 875 875
#E Reserves 22 36,419 37,943
EERE Proposed Dividend 1,532 3,720
BREES Shareholders’ Funds 38,826 42,538
DEBRRER Minority Interests 2,027 1,818
40,853 44,356
i Larry Yung Chi Kin
A Director
ERs) Henry Fan Hung Ling
A Director
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Balance Sheet

TEREZEF A=+ —HIE4EH as at 31 December 2003
Likss

LB EE T E in HK$ million Note 2003 2002
EEE&EE Fixed Assets 12 40 50
MEATE Subsidiary Companies 13 34,499 38,626
HEZHER Jointly Controlled Entities 14 137 45
RN Associated Companies 15 3,836 2,448
RBEE Current Assets
FEMRERIE - EURS - Re Debtors, accounts receivable,

RIEFHKIE deposits and prepayments 19 79 90
Be RIBITER Cash and bank deposits 3,910 1,613

3,989 1,703

ok h=Ri Current Liabilities
RITER - HttEFREZ Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts

£ unsecured 26 -
JERTERIA - ENERR - &8 Creditors, accounts payable,

K e 308 deposits and accruals 20 58 62

84 62
REBEETFE Net Current Assets 3,905 1,641
EEABRTRBER Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 42,417 42,810
REER Long Term Borrowings 23 (5,325) (4,246)
37,092 38,564

B2 XR Financed by
[ &N Share Capital 21 875 875
] Reserves 22 34,685 33,969
EERE Proposed Dividend 1,532 3,720
BRRES Shareholders’ Funds 37,092 38,564
i Larry Yung Chi Kin
HH Director
RS Henry Fan Hung Ling
HH Director
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

WE TR =AF A =+ —H L for the year ended 31 December 2003

Wk aETiTE in HK$ million 2003 2002
REERZRERE Cash Flows from Consolidated Activities

BB TE 3 R R 2 4 & 5w Profit from Consolidated Activities after Net Finance Charges 812 2,149
B FE Net interest expense 290 385
KERE W Income from investments (314) (1,294)
e R Depreciation and amortisation 609 533
PR Amortisation of goodwill 12 17
B ZREEE Impairment loss of goodwill 26 -
LEETEECEHE Loss on disposal of fixed assets 43 23
[ E B E 2 R B 1 Reversal of impairment loss of fixed assets - 2)
BEMEEBRE Investment properties revaluation deficit 587 -
LEREMEZRET Profit on disposal of investment properties - (7)
HENBARZEF Profit on disposal of subsidiary company 2) 7)
k=il NS i Profit on disposal of associated companies 2) -
HERE 2 F Profit on disposal of investments (827) 2)
HRAEHEELIFLETREZ Provision for jointly controlled entities /

B R BRHE unlisted investments 2 2
Rl & ER BB A& m T Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 1,736 1,797
FEE M Increase in inventories (25) (68)
FEUERTE - EULARSR ~ Ee & (Increase) / decrease in debtors, accounts receivable,

FEfRERE GEm)/ md deposits and prepayments (1,107) 220
FiRERDS Decrease in listed investments 24 2,165
FERTBRIE - FEITRRF - R R Increase in creditors, accounts payable,

JE AT FRIEE AN deposits and accruals 932 397
INEERZE Effect of foreign exchange rates (25) (28)
GERBELCHS Cash Generated from Consolidated Activities 1,535 4,483
B UL Interest received 46 72
[EARENES) Interest paid (443) 617)
BERFEH Income taxes paid (148) (226)
REEBZRETE Net Cash from Consolidated Activities 990 3,712
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G AE e mEX Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ek agTitE in HK$ million 2003 2002
REXBZBRETE Cash Flows from Investing Activities
BAWBAR (NBRAEHRS Purchase of subsidiary companies (net of cash

EERRE) and cash equivalents acquired) - (1,809)
AN AR 8N Purchase of additional interests in a subsidiary company - (28)
BABTEE Purchase of fixed assets (954) (772)
REREHIEEZRE Investment in jointly controlled entities (269) (795)
REEERR2I18E Investment in associated companies (17) (75)
HEBTEEMS Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets 33 39
HEREME Proceeds on disposal of investments 6,356 17
LEMRBAR (NBREEZHRE Disposal of subsidiary companies (net of cash

EERBRE) (Ea) and cash equivalents) (Note a) 14 884
ROEEAEEMS Proceeds on refund of purchase consideration - 15
BT HEESERE 2 EFEM Increase in loans to jointly controlled entities (22) (127)
REZRD Decrease in investments - 602
BFHE AR ZER GEM)/FHS (Increase) / decrease in loans to associated companies (774) 1,215
HEEE R A Z R BMA Dividend income from associated companies 508 580
R LERIE G E RS 2 ARSI Dividend income from jointly controlled entities 45 39
RBEREFERE Income from investments 263 1,592
REREXEB RS EHE Net Cash from Investing Activities 5,183 1,377
REMEZRERE Cash Flows from Financing Activities
LA, Repurchase of shares - (20)
EHA New borrowings 4,280 1,835
BREXK Repayment of loans (3,027) (6,858)
DERRE R 2R Decrease in minority interests (102) (145)
Bk E Dividends paid (4,377) (1,971)
ARBEZREFHE Net Cash used in Financing Activities (3,226) (7,159)
ReREFAREZEM/ (RD) FE Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,947 (2,070)
E—-A—HzBEL2RERES Cash and Cash Equivalents at 1 January 2,513 4,574
IEERSBoHE Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes 9 9
E+-A=+—-HAzE&REEARS Cash and Cash Equivalents at 31 December 5,469 2,513
REeRERARELRFZOM Analysis of the Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Be RIFITFER Cash and bank deposits 5,511 2,545
Ri7E > (M5Eb) Bank overdrafts (Note b) (42) (32)

5,469 2,513
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Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

a HEMHE A

a Disposal of Subsidiary Companies

BN EE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002

HEREE Net Assets Disposal

ErEE Fixed assets 72 2,476

& Inventories 6 -

FENBR R R FET IR Accounts receivable and prepayments 12 61

e RRITIFER Cash and bank deposits 3 751

FEBR R R FE S FUR Accounts payable and accrued charges (20) (67)

RITERK Bank loans (21) (1,222)

LR RS Minority interests 37) (371)
15 1,628

& i Profit on disposal 2 7
17 1,635

WA T = Satisfied by

e Cash 17 1,635

ERLENBARIZRERER Analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

WERAFREZDN in respect of the disposal of subsidiary companies

OB EE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002

REEE Cash consideration 17 1,635

HEZRE RIFITFER Cash and bank deposits disposed of 3) (751)
14 884

b ARARITEN » Hitr

b Reconciliation of the Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents

BRREZZRER in Respect of Bank Loans, Other Loans and Overdrafts
ERREHEFIHER
LK BE TR E in HK$ million 2003 2002
RITER - EERREX Bank loans, other loans and overdrafts 875 530
RITERREMER Bank loans and other loans (833) (498)
RITEX Bank overdrafts 42 32
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

WE _FE=AF+H =1+ —HIEERE for the year ended 31 December 2003
Likss
LBk EE T E in HK$ million Note 2003 2002
—RA—H At 1 January 42,757 41,489
tEERE Prior Year Adjustments 1a
EERIE Deferred taxation (74) (58)
Fik B A7) Share of associated company
RIERIE Deferred taxation (82) (56)
i I FESR 2 B Change in profit recognition (63) (78)
7l As Restated 42,538 41,297
Frib & A R RS Share of Reserves of Associated Companies (584) (512)
HEZEERR Goodwill Written Back on Disposal 11 -
MEEREEZEH Deficit on Revaluation of Properties (87) (120)
IEBREER Exchange Translation Differences (6) 1
BB ZRERE Impairment Loss on Goodwill 26 -
e B Reserves Released - (12)
ARGEBRERERZERFE Net Losses Not Recognised in the
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account (640) (643)
IR R PEAL 5 Profit Attributable to Shareholders
FRIFTS As previously reported 1,305 3,902
FFEEABEHR Prior year adjustments arising from 1a
EIERIIE 2 BT BUR N # change for accounting policy for
deferred taxation - (42)
FR kB & 8 Rl A e 3R 2 B share of associated companies for
change in profit recognition - 15
RRELGH (ZF2=F : E5)) Profit Attributable to Shareholders
(2002: Restated) 1,305 3,875
Ba Dividends 8 4,377) (1,971)
BE KRG Repurchase of Shares - (20)
+=A=+-AH At 31 December 38,826 42,538
H& Representing
+=—A=+—-HEB&FA At 31 December after Proposed
EERHREIRE Final and Special Dividends 37,294 38,818
BERERE Proposed Final Dividend 1,532 1,532
BESIRE Proposed Special Dividend - 2,188
38,826 42,538
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Notes to the Accounts
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1 Significant Accounting Policies

a Basis of Preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting
standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The
recognition of exchange differences on certain long-term liabilities

in CITIC Pacific’s associated company Cathay Pacific Airways Limited
(‘Cathay Pacific’) does not comply with Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice (‘ssaP’) No. 11 but does comply with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘1FRS’) and Cathay Pacific’s policy is
explained in accounting policy Note 1q below.

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of investment properties and listed
investments not held for long term as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

The Group has adopted ssap No. 12 (Revised) ‘Income Taxes’ which
became effective for the current accounting year. The principal effect of
the implementation of ssaP No. 12 (Revised) is in relation to deferred
tax where the Group has adopted the change in accounting policy
retrospectively. As a result, the profit for the year ended 31 December
2002, capital reserve and retained profits as at 31 December 2002 are
reduced by HK$42 million, HK$49 million and HK$107 million

respectively. Details of the accounting policy are set out in Note 1r below.

Also, certain associated companies have changed their profit recognition
policies and the impact has been adjusted in the Accounts of the Group
retrospectively. As a result, the profit for the year ended 31 December 2002
is increased by HK$15 million and retained profits and goodwill included
in reserves as at 31 December 2002 are reduced by HK$26 million and
increase by HK$37 million respectively.

b Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the Company and
all its subsidiary companies made up to the balance sheet date. The results
of subsidiary companies acquired or disposed of during the year are
included as from the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective

dates of disposal respectively.

89



B B [ 5= Notes to the Accounts

1 FTEEFRERe

c W&

TR S 6 o 2 ) B B A R 2 2 T
T FLUS 0 R AS 6 L A AR A BT S e T B
E S B 2 AT 2 O o

o MFF—F—H— HZHIPEST 2 Wi
B o IEFE TR MOWAR BEAE (A A e o s
FHCB AR B 2 Al AT T AE S

o MFL A H R PriEfT 2 Ui
M5 > IE PR TR A — A4 2 At A]
{58 FHAF 30T L B A0 i

DR W i B J 2% i) B g LT A 2 P
A B AL BT AT IR E R B T
TR (S S A 2 R

o M FF A~ H— B ZAIFTELT Z WO
H o AMERBAEARMEN -

o ML FT A H — BRI Z WU
A - A8 B KT R AR LB 2
R (BLAF R M S 2 e WO Rt 8
e - Sl RE AT 5F L i) o HIRJH B ZHR
TR H AR th B 2 18 MO R AR A B 1R AR IR
RS o AR R BR 2 B R ((HAS R i
i I W 2 AT TR RS T T
L ETIRE P S Pl SRl
FEIINTELR AR AR IR D RERT - MEAUR IR
BV ARERSIALG S EER
fa# > DILHES F AR 3 2 E g - a8 i
T S I B T P (2 R R B Ry
TEfR B 1R M MR b AERE -

E TR T A 0 2R A 4 B D B (s 5 L 8 o
BEELATIALE EE AMRIHARE AT
TN (RMEELo) o MARTESS SR IRMERR 2
R DUIE 7 8 2 A XBUR o DMESIA
485 < PR R EL R 1R o

90

1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

¢ Goodwill

Positive goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and
associated companies represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable assets and

liabilities acquired.

e for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, positive goodwill was written
off to reserves in the year of acquisition or amortised over a period no

longer than its useful life to the Group.

« for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, positive goodwill is
amortised on a straight line basis over its estimated useful life not

exceeding 20 years.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiary companies and
associated companies represents the excess of the Group’s share of the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired over the cost of the

acquisition.

e for acquisitions before 1 January 2001, negative goodwill was credited to

the capital reserve.

e for acquisitions on or after 1 January 2001, to the extent that negative
goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, it is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account when the future
losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill,
but not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account over the weighted
average useful life of those non-monetary assets that are depreciable or
amortisable except that negative goodwill representing discount on
acquisition of investment properties is carried in the consolidated
balance sheet for setting off valuation deficit in future. Negative goodwill
in excess of the fair value of the non-monetary assets acquired is

recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Positive goodwill is stated in the consolidated balance sheet as a separate
asset or included within associated companies at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 10). Negative goodwill not
yet recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account is shown as a
deduction from positive goodwill. Goodwill previously included in

reserves has not been restated.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

d Subsidiary Companies
A subsidiary company is a company which is controlled by the Company
through direct or indirect interest. Control represents the power to govern

the financial and operating policies of that company.

Investments in subsidiary companies are carried in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received

and receivable.

e Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in which the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control
and none of the participating parties has unilateral control over the

economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share

of the results of the jointly controlled entities for the year adjusted by
amortisation and impairment losses of goodwill, if any. The consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly
controlled entities and goodwill / negative goodwill (net of accumulated

amortisation) on acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in jointly controlled
entities are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of jointly
controlled entities are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

f Associated Companies

Associated companies are companies, other than subsidiary companies
or jointly controlled entities, in which the Group holds not more than

50 per cent of their equity share capital for the long term and can exercise

significant influence in their management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the
results of associated companies for the year adjusted by amortisation and
impairment losses of goodwill, if any. The consolidated balance sheet

includes the Group’s share of net assets of the associated companies, after

attributing fair values to the net assets at the date of acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies
are stated at cost less impairment losses. The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.

g Depreciation
All fixed assets except investment properties, properties held for
development and construction in progress are carried at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Changes in the value of investment properties reflecting market
conditions, depreciation and other factors are incorporated in the

annual accounts on the basis set out in Note 1h.

Freehold land is not amortised. Leasehold land is depreciated over the

remaining portion of the relevant lease.

Depreciation of the vehicular tunnel was provided with reference to

projected usage of the tunnel through a sinking fund calculation.

Other fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
or valuation, less impairment losses, if any, over their estimated useful lives

on a straight line basis at the following annual rates:
e Buildings: 2%-4% or the remaining lease period of the land

¢ Other fixed assets, comprising telecommunications equipment, traffic
equipment, cargo lighters, computer installations, motor vehicles, plant

and machinery, furniture, fixtures and equipment: 10%-25%
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

h Investment Properties
Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of
which construction work and development have been completed and

which are held for their investment potential.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods greater than
twenty years are valued annually by independent professionally qualified
valuers. The valuations are on an open market value basis related to
individual properties and separate values are not attributed separately

to land and buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the annual
accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the investment property
revaluation reserve; decreases are first set off against increases on

earlier valuations on a portfolio basis and thereafter are charged to

operating profit.

Investment properties held on leases with unexpired periods of twenty

years or less are depreciated over the remaining portion of the leases.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released
from the investment property revaluation reserve to the profit and loss

account.

i Properties Held for Development

Properties held for development consist of investments in land for future
development and buildings under construction and properties under
development pending any positive intention either to retain them for
investment purposes or to sell them for proceeds. The investments are

stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

j Capitalisation of Development Costs
Property development expenditure, inclusive of interest and professional

fees, is capitalised as cost of development.

Borrowing costs incurred on assets under development that take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are

capitalised into the carrying value of the assets under development.

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed for the development
of the assets is based on the attributable cost of funds to the Group.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in

the period in which they are incurred.

k Revenue Recognition

i) Motor Vehicles

Revenue arising from the sale of motor vehicles is recognised when

the registration document is issued or on delivery of motor vehicles,
whichever is earlier, which are taken to be the point in time when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes any government taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

i) Sales of Properties under Development and Properties Held for Sale
Income from sales of properties under development is recognised when
the properties developed for sale are sold in advance of completion and
the outcome of projects can be ascertained with reasonable certainty by
reference to the construction progress. Profit is recognised over the course
of the development and is computed in each year as a proportion of the
total estimated profit of the development. The proportion used is
calculated by reference to the proportion of construction costs incurred
to date to the estimated total construction costs to completion of the
development and the extent of the sales proceeds received, after taking

into account due allowance for contingencies.

Income from properties held for sale is recognised at the date when sale

agreement is signed.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

k Revenue Recognition continued
iii) Income from Co-operative Joint Venture
Other income or dividend from co-operative joint venture is recognised

when the right to receive is established.

Where the Group has been guaranteed a minimum rate of return on
its investment in co-operative joint ventures, income is accrued at the
minimum rate of return, and any return in excess of the minimum is

recognised in the year in which it is received, or becomes receivable.

Income from disposal of co-operative joint venture is recognised at the

date when sale agreement is signed.

iv) Other Goods
Revenue arising from the sale of other goods is recognised on the delivery
of goods to customers. Revenue is determined after deduction of any trade

discounts.

v) Rendering of Services
Commission income and revenue arising from the rendering of repairing
services are recognised when the goods concerned are sold to customers

and when the relevant work is completed respectively.

vi) Revenue from the provision of telecommunications services is

recognised upon delivery of the services.

vii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is
established.

Dividends proposed or declared after their balance sheet date by
companies in which the Group has an investment are not recognised as
revenue at the balance sheet date but on the date when the right to receive
is established.

1 Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale are classified under current assets and are stated at

the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

m Investments

Co-operative joint ventures in the People’s Republic of China are stated
at cost (net of capital repayment) less impairment losses or where
appropriate, the cost is amortised over a period no longer than its

estimated useful life to the Group.

Interest in other listed and unlisted investments held for the long term are
stated at cost less impairment losses. The carrying amounts of individual
listed investments are reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess
whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts. When
a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of
such securities is reduced to its fair value. The amount of the reduction

is recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.

Interest in other listed investments not held for the long term are carried
at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses
arising from the changes in fair value of such investments are recognised
in the profit and loss account. Profits or losses on disposal of such
investments, representing the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss account

as they arise.

n Operating Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals payable and receivable under operating leases are accounted for

on a straight line basis over the respective periods of the leases.

o Impairment of Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets including goodwill

for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If such assets are
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognised in the profit
and loss account is measured by the amount by which the carrying

amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

p Inventories

Inventories comprising mainly motor vehicles, spare parts, electrical
appliances, food, trading items and steels are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost represents the actual cost of purchase and
is calculated on the first-in first-out, specific identification or weighted
average basis as appropriate. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to the sale proceeds of items sold in the ordinary course

of business after the balance sheet date, and in other cases, to
management’s estimates based on prevailing market conditions and

net replacement costs.

q Foreign Currencies

The balance sheets of subsidiary companies and associated companies
expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss accounts are
translated at an average rate. Exchange differences arising are dealt with

as a movement in reserves.

Transactions arising in foreign currencies during the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at market rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss

account with the following exception:

Cathay Pacific prepares its accounts on the basis that borrowings and
leasing obligations relating to aircraft and related equipment are so
arranged that repayments are covered by the anticipated future operating
cash flows in the related currencies in order to reduce exposure to
exchange rate fluctuations. Any unrealised exchange differences on these
borrowings, leasing obligations and currency derivatives, and on related
security deposits in Cathay Pacific’s balance sheet, are recognised directly
in equity via the Statement of Changes in Equity. These exchange
differences are included in the profit and loss account as an adjustment
to revenue in the same period or periods during which the hedged
transaction affects the net profit and loss. As mentioned in Note la

this complies with 1FRs but does not comply with ssap No. 11 which
would have required the exchange differences to pass through the profit
and loss account. The directors of Cathay Pacific consider the adopted
treatment gives the accounts a true and fair view and the auditors of

Cathay Pacific agree.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies continued

r Deferred Taxation
In prior years, deferred tax were recognised in respect of the taxation
effect arising from material timing differences to the extent that a liability

or an asset is expected to be payable or receivable in the foreseeable future.

Under ssap No. 12 (Revised), a balance sheet liability method is adopted
whereby deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.
Provision for withholding tax that will arise on the remittance of retained
earnings is only made where there is a current intention to remit such
earnings. Deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses are recognised

to the extent that the future utilisation is probable.

2 Turnover

The principal activity of the Company is holding its subsidiary companies
and the principal activities of its principal subsidiary companies are set

out in Note 31 to the accounts.

Turnover of the Group comprises the total invoiced value of goods
supplied net of government taxes where applicable, and services rendered
to customers, fees from provision of telecommunication services, gross

proceeds from sale of investments and properties, amounts received

B LR R FEOA - AT and receivable in respect of dividends, income from co-operative joint
ventures, toll income, gross property rental and godown and cold storage
income, analysed as follows:

£ @ Group

LB eSS E in HK$ million 2003 2002

EmiEs Sales of goods 15,968 13,953

HERTEAEBEERTRIRE Sale of investment in optical fibre network

under construction - 1,635

HEREGIEEERRIZIRE Sale of investment in co-operative joint ventures 6,160 -

RETFERZ RS Services rendered to customers 2,236 1,771

e B LA S SR R Dividend income and income from

co-operative joint ventures 313 1,290

BEWE Toll income 491 511

Hith Others 1,012 3,156

26,180 22,316
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2 Turnover continued

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and

geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen as the

primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group’s

internal financial reporting.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business is as follows:

58 DEEBHE DEEBEER
Group Segment allocations Segment turnover

BB aE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
%8 Power 308 305 - - 308 305
Eit R Civil Infrastructure 6,676 1,432 - - 6,676 1,432
ER¥ Communications 1,590 2,887 - - 1,590 2,887
HE R H Marketing & Distribution 12,136 11,212 - - 12,136 11,212
LIS Property 401 460 75 88 476 548
THEE Industrial Manufacturing 4,842 3,581 - - 4,842 3,581
Hith Others 227 2,439 - - 227 2,439

26,180 22,316 75 88 26,255 22,404

VAT 7 e o 2L I 3o ) 2 2 L SE U AT

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by geographical area is as follows:

&8 Group
LT Pty in HK$ million 2003 2002
BB Hong Kong 7,482 10,094
g Mainland China 17,559 11,066
B Japan 420 465
Hith Others 719 691
26,180 22,316
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3 Profit from Consolidated Activities

is as follows:

An analysis of the Group’s profit from consolidated activities by business

%8 DEEBHE o HAZET i A
Group Segment allocations Segment profit
LB BE Tt E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
®E Power 227 234 - - 227 234
ETE R Civil Infrastructure 628 1,247 - - 628 1,247
ERE Communications 90 300 - - 90 300
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 345 320 (75) (88) 270 232
LS Property 315 349 75 88 390 437
THEE Industrial Manufacturing 388 280 - - 388 280
Hith Others 73 213 - - 73 213
REYMFELRE Investment Properties
Revaluation Deficit (587) - - - (587) -
W —RRITHER Less: General & Administration
Expenses (347) (860) - - (347) (360)
1,132 2,583 - - 1,132 2,583
£E Group
LB B S TitE in HK$ million 2003 2002
HFEREBRFIEFA The profit from consolidated activities is arrived at after crediting
HERE ZHF Profit on disposal of investments 327 110
KB EHHREZREMRA Dividend income from listed investments 5 98
REFEETREZBRSBA Dividend income from unlisted investments 300 290
GEEAION Rental income from
BEME investment properties
Bl Gross income 403 397
W HEXH Less: Direct outgoings (81) (84)
322 313
Hih & 25 other operating leases 154 120
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3 Profit from Consolidated Activities continued

£ @ Group
LB BB TR E in HK$ million 2003 2002
WE I and after charging
SHERA (FIEE) Cost of sales (note) 21,868 17,236
BEFENABE—BE=TNAENT_BET including cost of inventories of HK$13,982 million
(ZZZ=F  BE—F-—TNLEALTN\EET) (2002: HK$11,998 million)
DA (FiTFE) Distribution costs (note) 740 692
Hth @A (FiaaE) Other operating costs (note) 2,440 1,803
ZER & Auditors’ remuneration 12 12
EERRSFEIHK Contributions to staff retirement schemes 53 55
e R Depreciation and amortisation 609 533
7 B Amortisation of goodwill 12 17
AR REEE Impairment loss of goodwill 26 -
BEMESHRE Investment properties revaluation deficit 587 -
SHTFHREBEER)ARAR(HREEE]D Management fee payable to
(AIBPBEEREERE (BAEE)BRAR) CITIC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (‘CITIC HK’)
ZERE (formerly known as China International Trust
& Investment Corporation Hong Kong
(Holdings) Limited) 2 2
EEMHAS Operating lease rentals
T REF land and buildings 106 123
TR E REREETE Unrealised net loss from listed investments - 2

Bt

BIFEHERAR D HAARRE M EERAANZ BT
ARt =T8T (—FF_F: B1=
E=T—B&T)-

PR B3 7R 5 B F ARG AN v L 2 SRR A0 P
JEWS I 2 B (IR 40 oF R A8

Note:

Included in cost of sales, distribution costs and other operating costs are staff costs

of HK$1,313 million (2002: HK$1,331 million).

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments receivable under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

LN BE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002
—FR Within 1 year 338 305
—FERERAFRA After 1 year but within 5 years 332 279
hFE After 5 years 12 17

682 601
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4 Share of Profits Less Losses of Jointly Controlled
Entities and Associated Companies

a Jointly Controlled Entities

£8 Group
LEM GBIt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
BEBI By business
BE Power (3) 4
BT Civil Infrastructure 76 78
EE% Communications 106 257
HE RO Marketing & Distribution 22 26
HAt Others 140 3
341 368
b B A b Associated Companies
%8 Group
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
BEBIN By business
= Aviation 368 1,215
BRI Civil Infrastructure 67 76
HEES Communications 91 81
HE R D H Marketing & Distribution 10 19
bES Property 233 596
769 1,987
1,110 2,355
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5 MBXHFER 5 Net Finance Charges

%@ Group
LB ES Tt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
FEEZH Interest expense
ERAFNEHERZBITERRES Bank loans and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years 88 204
TERAFARAZIER 2RITER Bank loans not wholly repayable within five years - 11
BRAFAEHEEZEMER Other loans wholly repayable within five years 82 119
TERAFRAZHER 2 EMER Other loans not wholly repayable within five years 268 268
438 602
W BRRBEAZFE Less: Amount capitalised (38) (112)
400 490
FLEHA Interest income (110) (105)
290 385
Hh B 55 Other finance charges 30 49
320 434
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6 Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been calculated at the rate of 17.5%

(2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. In 2003, the

government enacted a change in the profits tax rate from 16% to 17.5%

for the fiscal year 2003/2004. Overseas taxation has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates. Tax provisions are reviewed

regularly to take into account changes in legislation, practice and status

Z P o of negotiations.

LB B STt & in HK$ million 2003 2002

ARE RENE LA Company and subsidiary companies

BENEH Hong Kong profits tax 72 116

BN IR Overseas taxation 79 32

R E (M324) Deferred taxation (Note 24) (3) 29
148 177

REFHEE Jointly controlled entities

EEMNEH Hong Kong profits tax 30 9

BINIE Overseas taxation 47 31

B IE Deferred taxation (21) (3)

56 37

HERnal Associated companies

BENGEH Hong Kong profits tax 39 93

BN IR Overseas taxation 103 78

EERIE Deferred taxation 25 39
167 210
371 424
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6 Taxation continued

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of the home

country of the Company as follows:

%@ Group
LB EETA in HK$ million 2003 2002
W 50 Bl g M Profit before taxation 1,922 4,504
17 5% 2 BiEGFE (ZE2ZZF : 16%) Calculated at taxation rate of 17.5% (2002: 16%) 336 721
HibhBRTABEz 2 Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (24) (101)
BERBRZBARE Income and expenses not subject to taxation 26 (212)
RERZ BIABERAFEEE Utilisation of unrecognised tax losses this year and
RAME AR 2 BB EE net of tax losses not recognised 48 48

BB RS M5 BERYIRIERIE &8 55 2 1M Increase in opening net deferred tax liabilities

resulting from an increase in tax rate (16) -
HAth Others 1 (32)
BB Taxation charge 371 424
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7 BREELER 7 Profit Attributable to Shareholders

AR AR H 2 BOREI A 2% 1+ The Group’s profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
JUBF I EET (ZFF A W FIUE accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$2,905 million

tFtEED - (2002: HK$2,477 million).
8 B2 8 Dividends
LB E &L E in HK$ million 2003 2002
BIRZZTE-FREARS : FRAEB0.70T 2002 Final dividend paid: HK$0.70
(ZZZT—F : B¥0.607T) (2001: HK$0.60) per share 1,532 1,314
BIRZZTT-FHARE - FREE1.007T 2002 Special dividend paid: HK$1.00 per share 2,188 -
3,720 1,314
BRZZTE=FHHRS : FREB0.30T 2003 Interim dividend paid: HK$0.30
(ZTZE=F : A%0.3071) (2002: HK$0.30) per share 657 657
FZTT=FARERE  BREB0.70T 2003 Final dividend proposed: HK$0.70
(ZTZ=F : A%0.7071) (2002: HK$0.70) per share 1,532 1,532
BRZZET-FRARKRE : §REK1.00T 2002 Special dividend paid:
HK$1.00 per share - 2,188
2,189 4,377
BRARE (BT Dividend per share (HKS) 1.00 2.00
9 BRER 9 Earnings per Share

JBE 2 ) 7 ¢ JBC M A i ALV W T =M% The calculation of earnings per share is based on profit attributable to
HEET(CEZ A BB = BT shareholders of HK$1,305million (2002: HK$3,875 million) and on
HETT) MFRNEET2,188,460,160 2,188,460,160 shares in issue throughout the year (2002: the weighted
(&% AR T 62,189,736,763  average number of 2,189,736,763 shares).

JBO) BT -

No diluted earnings per share is presented for the year ended 31 December
A AT 8 2 T FBCREE AT B R I S AR A. 2003 as the exercise of all the share options outstanding during the year
BA - BOE R REE —F L =4F T "H =1 have no dilutive effect on the earnings per share.
— H LR 2 BRI T o
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10 Directors’

Emoluments

%@ Group
KB EEITiE in HK$ million 2003 2002
we Fees 1.8 1.9
e Salaries 10.4 13.6
TEAT Bonuses 83.3 94.2
95.5 109.7
R The Directors’ emoluments are analysed as follows:
EZE AH Number of directors
& %6 = Emoluments Bands 2003 2002
B0 7T % % 1,000,000 7T HK$0 - HK$1,000,000
7#1,500,001 T & &% 2,000,0007C HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
7E#2,500,001 Tt £ A% 3,000,000 7T HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 1
75#3,000,001 7T & B 3,500,0007T HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 -
75#3,500,001 T & &% 4,000,0007T HK$3,500,001 - HK$4,000,000 -
75#4,000,001 T & A% 4,500,000 HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 1
751%9,000,001 7T & &% 9,500,0007T HK$9,000,001 - HK$9,500,000 -
7% 11,000,001 T & 7##11,500,000 7T HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 - 1
713,000,001 7t & #%13,500,000 7T HK$13,000,001 — HK$13,500,000 1 -
75% 15,000,001 ¢ & #%15,500,000 7T HK$15,000,001 — HK$15,500,000 - 1
7#15,500,001 T & %% 16,000,000 7T HK$15,500,001 — HK$16,000,000 1 -
75#17,000,001 7 & #%17,500,000 7T HK$17,000,001 — HK$17,500,000 - 1
75#19,500,001 7T & ##20,000,000 7T HK$19,500,001 — HK$20,000,000 1 -
75#283,000,001 T & ##23,500,000 7T HK$23,000,001 — HK$23,500,000 1 1

727,000,001 7T £ ##%27,500,000 7T

HK$27,000,001 - HK$27,500,000 -

FR BT EEZME MR T

(CFT 4 L8 -

FR > AL R AL L A

HM &8 2 B A Hr A -

EEIR 5 AN AT 3 S R AR R AR F
5w 0y 98 B st ) T E T AT ] A
(TREZAE 148,100,000 173 i FAE) -

Emoluments paid to independent non-executive directors during the year
amounted to HK$0.7 million (2002: HK$0.7 million).

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year were also

directors and their emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

above.

During the year, no share option was granted (2002: 8,100,000 share

options were granted) to certain directors of the Company under the
CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000.
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11 Retirement Benefits

With the consent of the majority of its members, the Group ceased
making contributions to The CITIC Group Retirement Plan (‘orso Plar’),
one of its principal retirement schemes in Hong Kong, with effect from

1 August 2003. The orso Plan will be operated as a closed fund and
continue to be managed by an independent trustee according to the

provisions of the Trust Deed and Rules.

All orso Plan members were enrolled onto the CITIC Group Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (‘MPF Scheme’) — with a choice of either the
Fidelity Retirement Master Trust or the Hang Seng Mandatory Provident
Fund - SuperTrust. Contributions to the MPF Scheme as well as forfeited
amounts derived from the employer voluntary contributions are
administered in accordance with the terms and provisions of the

master trusts.

Assets of the orso Plan and the MPF Scheme are held separately in funds
under the custody of the respective trustees.
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12 Fixed Assets

a 4 a Group
FER Hth
wEYHE BRWE & ES TERE (&) Pk
Properties
Investment Self-used held for Vehicular Others
LB B E T E in HK$ million Properties properties  development tunnel (Note ii) Total
AR AL E Cost or valuation
—TT=5—A—H At 1 January 2003 8,493 3,375 616 1,983 4,320 18,787
HiAE Exchange adjustments 24 5 - - 5 34
wNE Additions - 123 97 - 743 963
HE Disposals
BEBHENBR A through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (52) - - (41) (93)
Hitn 7= others - (19) - - (194) (213)
EfEE Revaluation deficit (594) - - - - (594)
EiPy | Reclassification - 179 - - (179) -
“ZT=F+-A=+—H At 31 December 2003 7,923 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 18,884
RETE Accumulated depreciation
—TT=%—Hf—H At 1 January 2003 - 606 - 556 1,821 2,983
Hiame Exchange adjustments - 1 - - 1 2
REEHE Charge for the year - 72 - 66 390 528
A&l Written back on disposals
FRHEHRBLRA through disposal of
subsidiary companies - (6) - - (15) (21)
Hi others - ) - - (126) (134)
—RE-EF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2003 - 665 - 622 2,071 3,358
FRIEFE Net book value
—ET=F+=A=+—8H At 31 December 2003 7,923 2,946 713 1,361 2,583 15,526
“TT-F+-A=+—8H At 31 December 2002 8,493 2,769 616 1,427 2,499 15,804
it BEZ KA A E The analysis of cost or
ST valuation of the above
assets is as follows:
AR At cost - 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 10,961
HEME-—TT=F At professional valuation
- 2003 7,923 - - - - 7,923
7,923 3,611 713 1,983 4,654 18,884
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12 Fixed Assets continued

Note:

i) Interest capitalised in fixed assets other than investment properties amounts to

HK$25 million (2002: HK$4 1million).

i) Other fixed assets comprise traffic equipment, cargo lighters, computer
installations, telecommunications equipment, motor vehicles, plant and machinery,

furniture, fixtures and equipment.

£ @ Group
BN STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
BEBE D 2 RES Analysis of additions by business
EWRIE Civil Infrastructure 5 5
8% Communications 117 238
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 180 168
b2 Property 109 3,467
T Industrial Manufacturing 545 280
Hith Others 2 3
EEE Corporate 5 4
963 4,165
ZH B R E 5 2 RE ST Analysis of additions by geographical area
B8 Hong Kong 212 272
# Mainland China 702 3,852
B & HAth Japan & Others 49 41
963 4,165
BEBE D ZITEST Analysis of depreciation by business
EWRIE Civil Infrastructure 70 65
8% Communications 74 53
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 117 108
bIES Property 44 43
T Industrial Manufacturing 211 181
hEEE Corporate 12 12
528 462
BEBE D2 REE BT Analysis of reversal of impairment loss by business
HE R D Marketing & Distribution - 2)
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12 Fixed Assets continued

b A7 b Company
E R BRREE
Motor vehicles,
equipment,

LB B STt E in HK$ million furniture and fixtures
&S Cost
. i At 1 January 2003 95
RE Additions 2
HE Disposals 2)
—TE=F+-A=+—8H At 31 December 2003 95
ZBNE Accumulated depreciation
—EE=F—-H—H At 1 January 2003 45
REEFE Charge for the year 11
HERE Written back on disposals 1)
—EE=F+A=+—H At 31 December 2003 55
REFE Net book value
—TE=F+-A=+—8H At 31 December 2003 40
—ZETEF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2002 50
c AREBMWHEZFRWT - ¢ The tenure of the properties of the Group is as follows:

BEME BRAME (FEEZME k|

Properties
Investment Self-used held for
LB BB TE E in HK$ million properties properties  development Total
VizkotzES Leasehold properties held
BB in Hong Kong
MBS0 2T Leases of over 50 years 526 19 - 545
10E50F 2 4 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 2,895 2,196 268 5,359
DI10F 2 Y Leases of less than 10 years - 76 - 76
&+ in mainland China
HBIB50F 2 K Leases of over 50 years 950 - 445 1,395
10E50F 2784 Leases of between 10 to 50 years 3,300 1,085 - 4,385
isZ 8 7/ES Properties held overseas
KA FERE Freehold 252 235 - 487
7,923 3,611 713 12,247
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12 BIEEE#

d PG E

AEEEMZ WEWEC B AL ERR = FE =
A = B BT AT G -

12 Fixed Assets continued

d Property Valuation
The Group’s investment properties have been independently revalued on

an open market value basis as at 31 December 2003. The details of the

AR P U independent qualified valuers are as follows:

bIESIvAIS Properties located in {H1EED Valuers

BEREE Hong Kong and Shanghai HELH BB ¥ 3 R Knight Frank

AA Japan Tekko Building Co., Limited

e ARG E RS A F & DLE AR
ZEEEERNRBEERA T2 HEYE
LU

e Fixed assets and properties held for sale under current assets of the

Group let under operating leases to generate rental income are as follows:

BEYE BRAME HtETEE EBETEELS HFEME

Other Fixed Properties

Investment Self-used fixed assets held for

LB EBITEE in HK$ million properties properties assets total sale

AN S EE Cost or valuation 7,923 23 250 8,196 316

RIEHE Accumulated depreciation - (3) (96) (99) -
BREFAE Net book value

—EE=F+_A=+—H at 31 December 2003 7,923 20 154 8,097 316

KEEWE Depreciation charges for the year - - 10 10 -

13 MIEB AR

13 Subsidiary Companies

A7) Company

KBS Tt & in HK$ million 2003 2002
FELTRRG - AR ERERE Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment losses 169 169
WEBARIRESHE Amounts due by subsidiary companies 41,627 45,942
KRB RE & Amounts due to subsidiary companies (7,297) (7,485)

34,499 38,626

E T 2 FEORHROR R E B EE3T
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Particulars of the principal subsidiary companies are shown in Note 31.



14 HRZRHER

14 Jointly Controlled Entities

&£E Group
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
FihEEFE Share of net assets 2,893 2,404
B (MWE17) Goodwill (Note 17) 168 178
HEEHIERRE ZER (HiEb) Loans due from jointly controlled entities (Note b) 1,159 1,131
REaHAEHEE &R (HEb) Loans due to jointly controlled entities (Note b) (135) (131)
4,085 3,682

‘A7 Company

LB B STt & in HK$ million 2003 2002

3E EMRD A Unlisted shares, at cost 270 176

REEREHEEZER Loans due to jointly controlled entities (133) (131)
137 45

Biat - Note:

a. REFHEREFEEAEBEEFRAR ([AK]) - a. Included in jointly controlled entities is Western Harbour Tunnel Company Limited

ERFZHRFRAEARTA=+—H » HREE
ZHEEATE - A2 FEERAEH - FE=F—H
—HAEZFE=F1+ A=+ AR EEFRA U
BaEAR °

. BERARFECERZ BEXNAER—T—B8T

(ZFF=F  BE=ZFHT) RREEHS  HEp
HEABEHERRERRAEAREHNE £ Z
ERXgmmGFl £ 8 c ZERALREFEEZ

FEHEZELE AR B IR E 3T -

A

B

fw

("WHTCL’) whose year end is 31 July which is not coterminous with the Group.
The results of WHTCL has been equity accounted for based on its management
accounts for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003.

b. Loans due from jointly controlled entities and loans due to jointly controlled
entities are interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately
HK$11 million (2002: HK$3 million) loans from jointly controlled entities, which are
non-interest bearing. These loans have no fixed repayment terms.

c. Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities are shown in Note 31.
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15 BHE/AF

15 Associated Companies

£8 Group
LB EETTATE in HK$ million 2003 2002
ik EEFE Share of net assets 15,058 15,550
8 (HE17) Goodwill (Note 17) 1,856 2,036
16,914 17,586
BN AR B2 ER (MFEDb) Loans due from associated companies (Note b) 5,917 6,279
REBENT 2ER (D) Loans due to associated companies (Note b) (26) (1,488)
22,805 22,377
REKE Investment at cost
LMk, Unlisted shares 5,194 5,144
&8 EmikH Shares listed in Hong Kong 8,591 8,591
13,785 13,735
ik 2 TE Market value of listed shares 12,675 9,152
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15 Bt& NRa

15 Associated Companies continued

A7 Company

LB EE Tt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
REKAK Investment at cost
IE AR Unlisted shares 303 303
E A Shares listed in Hong Kong 931 931
1,234 1,234
BENTIREBZER Loans due from associated companies 2,623 2,698
REBENRZER Loans due to associated companies (21) (1,484)
3,836 2,448
FmkHmzmE Market value of listed shares 1,056 763

FRET B A AR Z LS AT

Dividend income from associated companies during the year is as follows:

%@ Group
LB BE Tt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
LEWEE AR Listed associated companies 266 180
FE L THEEE A A Unlisted associated companies 242 387
508 567
Miat - Note:

a BERFTEBEHEFRAG([Z/EHE]) ZRF]

CHRFEREAR=ZA=1—H HErEEHZ

EEATE - BEEET FEC AR - FE=F—

A—HE-FE=F+_A=+—-HAHF2EEKE
MUt a EAR ©

b. BEBERAARABZEAANNER=T=887T

(ZFZ2_F  BE=THBEZET) RREEHI

HEBERRIRARREBEN 72 BHIGETIEF|

B o RERALBEETIESE -

C. TEHENAEHBRKL N3 -

a. Included in associated companies is Hong Kong Resort Company Limited
(‘HKR’) whose year end is 31 March which is not coterminous with the Group.
The results of HKR has been equity accounted for based on its management
accounts for the period from 1 January 2003 to 31 December 2003.

b. Loans due from associated companies and loans due to associated companies
are interest bearing at market rates except for an amount of approximately
HK$33 million (2002: HK$35 million) loans to associated companies, which
are non-interest bearing. These loans have no fixed repayment terms.

c. Particulars of the principal associated companies are shown in Note 31.
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16 &£ & 16 Investments
£ @ Group
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
AIEEERA] Co-operative joint ventures
FEEMIREK AR Unlisted investments, at cost 1,437 6,288
BIEEEARIAK Amounts due by co-operative joint ventures 116 1,075
1,553 7,363
Ve £ Less: Amortisation (613) (532)
940 6,831
ETRERE Listed investments, at cost
& EmkG Shares listed in Hong Kong - 173
FLTRE Unlisted investments
&1 B 25 Shares, at cost 108 105
m: BREIE Add: Advances made 25 25
133 130
B RERR Less: Impairment (40) (39)
93 91
B BUYEE Less: Advances received (6) 3)
87 88
1,027 7,092
Emik 2 TE Market value of listed shares - 141

WS BB E L BUE MR -

EEEIEGE A A BRI H B EE3 -
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Amortisation represents amortisation of investment in Power.

Particulars of the principal co-operative joint ventures are shown in

Note 31.




17 BE 17 Goodwill
MEBAF HREEIEE L NS
Jointly
Subsidiary controlled Associated
LB E BT E in HK$ million companies entities companies
EHE Positive Goodwill
N Cost
—EE=F-H—H At 1 January and
k+=—A=+—H 31 December 2003 298 185 3,629
By 3 Accumulated amortisation
—EE=F—-HF—H At 1 January 2003 28 1,593
ANF Amortisation for the year 12 10 180
—TT=%+-RA=+—AH At 31 December 2003 40 17 1,773
REFE Net book value
—EE=F+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2003 258 168 1,856
— T -_F+_-_A=+—H At 31 December 2002 270 178 2,036
ane Negative Goodwill
N Cost
—EE=F-H-AK At 1 January and
+-A=+—8 31 December 2003 (35) - -
REKE D2 EHBHREST Analysis of Positive Goodwill
Amortisation by Business
fize Aviation - - 170
AR Civil Infrastructure 1 - -
EEE Communications 2 - 10
HERDH Marketing & Distribution 9 - -
Hith Others - 10 -
12 10 180
18 7 & 18 Inventories
REFR =+ H=+—H - f&n] BT E At 31 December 2003, the carrying amount of inventories that are

SR A BRI (E A W AN T AEH E T
(CRE 4 ERILE-TLaET) -

carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$568 million

(2002: HK$519 million).
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19 BULERIE ~ BURERSX »

19 Debtors, Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

ReEREMRE Prepayments
%8 Group A Company
BN B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
JEWE ZHRE Trade debtors
—FR Within 1 year 1,954 1,857 - -
—FME Over 1 year 527 118 - -
2,481 1,975 - _
JEW R S Accounts receivable,
1B RAETHE deposits and prepayments 1,767 1,113 79 90
4,248 3,088 79 90
Bt Note:

) FEWESERIRE IR R FIBAREEAH A -

i) &EEEMGZIRAGIEREETHEZERBE

20 EFTERIR ~ IBTHRAX

i) Trade debtors are net of provision and the ageing is classified based on invoice

date.

i) The Group has a defined credit policy for the respective business units.

20 Creditors, Accounts Payable, Deposits

REREMNRE and Accruals
£ @ Group AT Company
LB B ETA E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
ENEZRE Trade creditors
—FR Within 1 year 1,718 1,458 - -
—FPE Over 1 year 354 86 - -
2,072 1,544 - -
JERTBRTR Accounts payable,
Ze RIENFKIE deposits and accruals 1,840 1,451 58 62
3,912 2,995 58 62
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21 BR&

21 Share Capital

BREEBK40TZRHEE BEBHET
Number of shares of HK$0.40 each HK$ million
JETE Authorised
—EE_FR-FE=F+-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2002 and 2003 3,000,000,000 1,200
B#ITILHE Issued and fully paid
—EE-FR-FT=F+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2002 and 2003 2,188,460,160 875

SRR 2 )

M EEPAE— A — H2ARGE A AN
PR B PSR T ) T 42 1 . B P DR A T 8 >
AN AVEEAT B LB A 351,650,000 B B 13 > 47
A5 2 g A s ¥ 18.20 ¢ -

Vi e i A

W R RTAERA =+ — BRIz P EHR
@IS R ([R5t ) > Ehe
AR AR O ) AT AT B A ) 2 AT A
TTEON B S A B 324 T 5B A0 |l 0y 2 g i
RE > TR e A0 e TE 2 g UV ZE S AT s W 1T - 3R
HHFEFGEE > BEREDAUTSHZK
()AL AR B R B B 32 T
H g BT 2 it 5 (i) A R e B4
5 3 W IRORE F IR AR 36 B AR 2 i H ok
A 2 R TS 5 R (id1) A8 2 B0 1
(B o MREEZRT B A2 L R T I & 2 B ik
BrEE - AREE TR —IHZ10% (LU
RF B« )AAF AR Z CEITIRA 5 5
(i) E SR ARzt ) H AR A ) 2 DT IRAR -

TETEETAELA TNH - R #R S
FERTERAE11,550,000/ A% 2 7l B 2 B HCARE - 15
BT IRA0.53% - AT E £ R s 18.20
TG o AN F R E B L I RE H A i i
EAWH18.100C « e B2 ih S 140 2 R
HE > ATAERZ RN B R A A 2 B
il o AR 2 M E A, N E %
FZEF T A=+ BN > BT LT
i~ GEEHEIERE o 4F POl A L IR IR

PR A 0 S T S A B AR A B T s &
At HER > SO BRI ARIIANRH A o

Changes subsequent to the year end:

Since 1 January 2004 to the date of this report, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 1,650,000 shares at HK$18.20 per share upon the

exercise of share option which were granted under the Plan.

Share Option Plan:

Under the CITIC Pacific Share Incentive Plan 2000 (‘the Plan’) adopted on
31 May 2000, the Board may invite any director, executive or employee of
the Company or any of its subsidiary companies to subscribe for options
over the Company’s shares on payment of HK$1 per acceptance. The
subscription price determined by the Board will be at least the higher

of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares over which options may be granted under the
Plan shall not exceed 10% of (i) the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time or (ii) the issued share capital of the Company as at the

date of adopting the Plan, whichever is the lower.

On 28 May 2002 options to subscribe for a total of the 11,550,000 shares
in the Company representing 0.53% of the issued share capital, at the
exercise price of HK$18.20 per share, were granted under the Plan. The
closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$18.10. All options granted and accepted can be exercised in
whole or in part within 5 years from the date of grant. All were accepted,
and none were exercised, cancelled or lapsed in the period up to 31

December 2003. No option was granted during the year.

As there is no accounting standard in Hong Kong governing the
accounting for employee stock option, their costs have not been
incorporated in the accounts.
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22 &
a % H

LBl BB E

in HK$ million

22 Reserves

a Group

B

B &HE BOEE
Capital
Share redemption
premium reserve

NG

Capital
reserve

REME

e BEEE
Investment
property
revaluation

Goodwill reserve

TEXRE
HHE

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve

Bl

General
reserve

RE B

Retained
profits

GGk

Total

—TT-F—H—A
At 1 January 2002
FEERE
Prior year adjustments
RERIE
Deferred taxation
Pk B & R A2 R IEFIE

Share of associated companies for deferred taxation

Pk B8 1 B s MR 2 i
Share of associated companies
for change in profit recognition

24,782 18

3,614

(49)

(2,476) 960

37) -

689

138

12,888

(56)

(41)

40,613

(68)

(56)

Ex]l

As restated

BTt B & 1 R

Share of reserves of associated companies
MESREEZBA

Deficit on revaluation of properties
INERE 2R

Exchange translation differences
REER

Reserves realised

B ElfkH

Repurchase of shares
BREEAROEE

Transfer to capital redemption reserve
B a&ET

Transfer from profits

% SRR A % 1)

Profit attributable to shareholders

% S (BIEE8)

Dividends (Note 8)

24,782 18

3,565

(2,513) 960

689

(526)

138

12,782

3,875

(1,971)

3,875

(1,971)

—EZE-F+-A=1+—H
At 31 December 2002

24,782 19

3,566

(2,513) 847

159

142

14,661

41,663

&
Representing
—EZE-F+-A=1+—H
Bt ABRBRE LIRS
At 31 December 2002 after proposed
final and special dividends
BE_TTEREREAIRE
2002 Final and special dividends proposed

37,943

3,720

41,663

i AR EIREE 2 B

Retained by

RATRKTE AR

Company and subsidiary companies
FEEhE

Jointly controlled entities

VNS

Associated companies

24,782 19

3,561

(2,513) 82

- 765

17

142

138

10,552

184

3,925

36,638

187

4,838

24,782 19

3,566

2,513) 847

159

142

14,661

41,663
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22 e

a i &

LBl BB T E

in HK$ million

22 Reserves continued

a Group continued

B

BB EEEE
Capital
Share redemption
premium reserve

N

Capital
reserve

REME

e BhHE
Investment
property
revaluation

Goodwill reserve

ESR R B
T

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve

Epil

General
reserve

RE BN

Retained
profits

#E

Total

e

At 1 January 2003

FEERE

Prior year adjustments
BRI
Deferred taxation
FiGER & A R 2 IRIE R TR
Share of associated companies for deferred taxation
BT A6 B 2 R A R 2 B
Share of associated companies

for change in profit recognition

24,782 19

3,615

(49)

(2,476) 847

37) -

159

142

14,794

(25)

(82)

(26)

41,882

(74)

(82)

(63)

E2])

As restated

Frib B & N R

Share of reserves of associated companies
B 6 7 e e

Goodwill written back on disposal
BEZREEE

Impairment loss on goodwill

VIR EREEZ B

Deficit on revaluation of properties
SEME R

Exchange translation differences
‘e

Transfer from profits

% SR P A 35

Profit attributable to shareholders
B S, (KfEE8)

Dividends (Note 8)

24,782 19

3,566

1

12

(2,513) 847

- (242)

159

(342)

142

14,661

(40)
1,305

(4,377)

41,663
(584)
1
26
@87)

©)

1,305

(4,377)

—TT=F+-A=1+—H
At 31 December 2003

24,782 19

3,589

(2,499) 523

(194)

182

11,549

37,951

&

Representing

=F+ZA=+—81
B ARE RIS

At 31 December 2003 after proposed
final dividend

BEZSTFRERE

2008 Final dividend proposed

36,419

1,532

37,951

T2 EIRE 2

Retained by

RATKRMB AR

Company and subsidiary companies
HEFHELE

Jointly controlled entities

NG|

Associated companies

24,782 19

3,584

(2,499) -

- 523

(200)

164

15

7,153
412

3,984

33,209
429

4,313

24,782 19

3,589

(2,499) 523

(194)

182

11,549

37,951
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22 e

a £l sz
KfeE -

ER BB E LA EBEETMEZELEE - 18
FHEERFETQERAT - 1HEI A
1% AEFRE —TE=F+-F=1—HIFEZ
mF-—fgEr (ZFEE=F
LB RE=TF N NEET) °

ZEERANBE B ERE

22 Reserves continued

a Group continued

Note :

adopted by Cathay Pacific.

The exchange fluctuation reserve included the Group’s share of the exchange
reserve of Cathay Pacific. As set out in accounting policies No.1q, the Group’s profit
and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2003 would have decreased by
HK$342 million (2002: decreased by HK$526 million) had SSAP No.11 been

b Compan
b A pany
CEN B 15335 & 1R F i
Capital
redemption Share Retained
LB BB TA E in HK$ million reserve premium profits Total
—TT-F—A—H At 1 January 2002 18 24,782 12,402 37,202
fE AR 1D Repurchase of shares - - (19) (19)
HEEE NE R A Transfer to capital redemption reserve 1 - 1) -
FERAHIRER (H5E7)  Profit for the year available for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,477 2,477
R ET:) Dividends (Note 8) - - (1,971) (1,971)
—ZE-F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2002 19 24,782 12,888 37,689
& Representing
—TTE-F+-FA=+—H At 31 December 2002 after
BRt AEZ AR proposed final and special dividends 33,969
RFFRIR S
BITEFRH 2002 Final and special
RAFRIRR S dividends proposed 3,720
37,689
EENHEL T R 15335 & RBE 5 F k|
Capital
redemption Share Retained
LB E BT E in HK$ million reserve premium profits Total
—ET=F—-HfF—H At 1 January 2003 19 24,782 12,888 37,689
FERAHDIRER (H5E7)  Profit for the year available for distribution (Note 7) - - 2,905 2,905
&8 (PFiH5E8) Dividends (Note 8) - - (4,377) (4,377)
—TE=F+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2003 19 24,782 11,416 36,217
& Representing
—TTE=F+-HA=+—H At 31 December 2003 after
Bt ARZERERE proposed final dividend 34,685
BE_TT-ERHRE 2003 Final dividend proposed 1,532
36,217
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22 e

b Aw 4

HRBE R U A RIS 79B w3 2 AR 28 ) AT 41k
IR > MR A= —H A
We—H— U E—T /N EH L (CFEE E
W —E T BN TAEET)

23 REAER

22 Reserves continued

b Company continued

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2003, calculated
under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted
to HK$11,416 million (2002: HK$12,888 million).

23 Long Term Borrowings

a a
%@ Group A Company
B EE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
RITEH Bank loans
IR unsecured 5,554 4,564 4,571 3,466
A secured 65 47 - -
5,619 4,611 4,571 3,466
EEX Other loans
AR R unsecured 4,290 4,294 780 780
9,909 8,905 5,351 4,246
—FREEHZER Amounts repayable within one year
FIARBEER included under current liabilities (256) (168) (26) -
9,653 8,737 5,325 4,246
Mt - Note:

) AEEEARAFATEEEZRITEAREMEHL
RER =T RE—TEL (ZFE_F  B¥=+14
E—T&r) -

i) RAABET—EETR -_FENFERZRE
([F15)) ° Z=HEZHEA R AR MEREZZ KT
B REFESEEFFHARH  FER
7.37% © R FEENF_A+HATE AR
AR R EEERS)

i R=ZFFE—FA—H XREZZ2ENERA]
CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited 1R = =Z
—FHAAZFMAR=FE—FA—HZEEGE
BITRINER 2 BERAEER FEET27.625% R
FER([REFIR]) TIREE  UBRALAZE
BHEITHBERBIE—REEED - ZFREZEN
R-F——FFH  2EHREZFERANFEBIRE
ST -

v) BRIREZESN - RITEAREMENAR = FFNF
HZFIREFER - BERTIGHFE -

V) E-EE=GF+-A=+—0  KEBETREY
% HEYE  RAMETEE  FERERERA®
EEEANET=EET(—FE=F  BE—EN
TFEEET) - EEEmETHEA DR RETT
(EE 2 AT -

i) Bank loans and other loans of the Group not wholly repayable within five years
amounted to HK$3,510 million (2002: HK$3,510 million).

i) The Company has issued a US$100,000,000 Senior Note due 2006 (the ‘Notes’).
The Notes will rank in right of payment pari passu to all other indebtedness of the
Company. Interest on the Notes is payable semi-annually in arrears at 7.37% per
annum. The Notes will mature on 15 February 2006 unless previously prepaid by
the Company.

iii) On 1 June 2001, CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, issued and sold a total of US$450 million principal amount of
7.625% guaranteed notes due 2011 (‘Guaranteed Notes’) for refinancing the
indebtedness of the Company and for general corporate purposes, to investors
pursuant to the purchase agreements dated 24 May 2001 and 1 June 2001.

All of the Guaranteed Notes remained outstanding at the end of the year.

iv) Bank loans and other loans, other than the Guaranteed Notes, are fully repayable
up to 2008 and bear interest at the prevailing market rate.

v) As at 31 December 2003, certain of the Group’s investment properties, self-used
properties, other fixed assets, inventories and accounts receivable with the
aggregate carrying value of HK$53 million (2002: HK$287 million) were pledged
to secure loans and banking facilities granted to certain subsidiary companies of
the Group.
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23 REIER=

b AL EALNFZ RIARBIMELDT

23 Long Term Borrowings continued

as follows:

/A& Company

b The maturity of the Group’s and the Company’s long term liabilities is

LB EE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
RITEACEHEH Bank loans are repayable
—FR in the first year 256 164 26 -
—FRN in the second year 650 1,707 133 1,350
“ERFERN(BEEEME) in the third to fifth years inclusive 4,713 2,740 4,412 2,116
HFE after the fifth year - - - -
5,619 4,611 4,571 3,466
H Bk (B2 5 Other loans are repayable
—FR in the first year - 4 - -
—FR in the second year - - - -
“ERFAN(BEEEMT) in the third to fifth years inclusive 780 780 780 780
HF#% after the fifth year 3,510 3,510 - -
4,290 4,294 780 780
9,909 8,905 5,351 4,246
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24 EEBIR

a HH

R SR TR AR R G N 2 B 2 R S R BB R
17.5% ( ZFE T4 - 16%) R EETH -
EN S EEGEREABRERZIELRIE
(&) KA BT A BT

24 Deferred Taxation

a Group

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2002: 16%).
The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in

the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year is

as follows:

BEAETE
LB B STt E ZIERBER B HAh k]

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of related

depreciation Losses Others Total
in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
RN S
Deferred tax arising from
—A—H
At 1 January 263 242 (71) (76) 44 39 236 205
R RE
Exchange adjustment 4 3 - - 4 1 8 4
BB
Credited to revaluation reserve - - - - (1) ) 1) )
merE/ (BA) raBEE
Charged / (credited) to consolidation profit and loss account 26 18 (19) 5 (10) 6 3) 29
+=ZA=+—H
At 31 December 293 263 (90) (71) 37 44 240 236
LB B ST E in HK$ million 2003 2002

EGRREERBRBRZAEHAEEFR

Net deferred tax assets recognised on the

consolidated balance sheet (85) (63)

ERABERBRERACBELEREE EF8 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet 325 299
240 236
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24 EXEHBIEE

b AR 2 BB
A 35 o LT Il 2 A B3 e 17
i -

24 Deferred Taxation continued

b Deferred Tax Assets Unrecognised
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of the

following items:

%@ Group
B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
AR R R Deductible temporary difference 68 58
BIEEE Tax losses 4,050 4,038
4,118 4,096
A® Company

BN B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
AR AR E R Deductible temporary difference 10 10
TIEEE Tax losses 335 236
345 246

Bt Note:

GCETHBMESREE —F—F=88T (=FF=
F BB ENTEIT) Z ARG EE R EEA
RN L FERE o RIRBIGHIF D] - B ire fAI 4
TEREHIR -

c AR ME R Z 48 A BLIE £ 4R
FEEEZEFTAZ+—H > HBAFZM
AP IRGE T o 2 W s 25 B B e N — T
LHEC(CER A BB REAST o S
TC) o SEAACN B R % 5 W N R 2 T B
R o T % 5 B A 7R B e A AT L A T
REAN VRS I Bl > I R W2 AT R IR 20 JR 5% 5%
TR B T I T 2 A B TEIT 96 M 2 A AL ol JE £ R 7S
We— I8 T TONEHIC ( AR AR -
—TMUEHT) °
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Deductible temporary differences and tax losses in certain tax jurisdictions of
HK$213 million (2002: HK$260 million) will expire within the next five years.
The rest of the amount does not expire under current tax legislation.

¢ Deferred Tax Liabilities Not Recognised

At 31 December 2003, temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to HK$617 million (2002: HK$562
million). Deferred tax liabilities of HK$126 million (2002: HK$114
million) have not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits as the company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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25 Assets and Liabilities by Segments

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets and liabilities by business

VAR segment is as follows:
LB E BTt E DIEE HEEHERIZE [l —NSIE DEEEE ki)
Investments
in jointly Investments
Segment controlled in associated Segment
assets entities companies liabilities Total
in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Mz
Aviation - - - - 12,880 13,305 - - 12,880 13,305
Power 883 953 625 496 - - - - 1,508 1,449
ERERIE
Civil Infrastructure 1,401 7,325 1,200 1,113 38 28 (37) (28) 2,602 8,438
E8%
Communications 1,946 1,398 1,205 1,162 373 409 (1,252) (715) 2,272 2,254
HERDH
Marketing & Distribution 4,108 3,950 202 157 91 51 (1,331) (1,221) 3,070 2,937
L/ES
Property 10,606 11,184 - - 9,423 8,584 (230) (213) 19,799 19,555
THasE
Industrial Manufacturing 3,842 3,127 - - - - (942) (620) 2,900 2,507
Hi
Others 298 331 853 654 - - - (42) 1,151 943
DEEE/(AR)
Segment assets/(liabilities) 23,084 28,268 4,085 3,682 22,805 22,377 (3,792) (2,839) 46,182 51,388
bEEE
Corporate 5,667 2,722 - - - - (10,648) (9,423) (4,981) (6,701)
BimEe

Provision for taxation
RREBIES EFE
Net deferred tax liabilities

(108) (95)

(240)  (236)

40,853 44,356

AR 75 42 S 352 6 Sl ) 7 2 S T U FE A

An analysis of the Group’s segment assets by geographical area is as

follows:
LB B E A E in HK$ million 2003 2002
BB Hong Kong 11,573 12,373
FE Mainland China 10,737 15,251
=N Japan 410 401
Hh Others 364 243
23,084 28,268

127



B B [ 5= Notes to the Accounts

26 BARKIE

26 Capital Commitments

£ 8 Group

LB B S Tat & in HK$ million 2003 2002
BHEEARELD (M) Authorised but not contracted for (Note) 2 7
B# KBRS () Contracted but not provided for (Note) 1,963 649
‘A" Company
LB B STt E in HK$ million 2003 2002
EELEREE Contracted but not provided for 610 189
Biat - Note:

AEEBHEERELREFLNEREGZ EAREN
RHes  WERRE  HHREE —B8T (ZFF-
FBEtEET) REENE=T—BE T (ZFF=
F BB NERNTEEETL) o EELEARBREZAE
BERRERHERBBENECTNEET (ZFF
ZF g REBRABELENTEET (ZEF
T ) REAMIBEEE—E—TEL (ZFE_F
B _E_HET) -

27 EXMHKIE

BEZH=1—H > AL HRREA T
B 2 7 SRR A 6 TSR 2 S AR A6 1 K AR
o

The capital commitments of authorised but not contracted for and contracted but
not provided for of the Group in respect of plant, property and equipment amount

to HK$2 million (2002: HK$7 million) and HK$631 million (2002: HK$447 million)
respectively. The balance of contracted but not provided for represents amount
committed for investments in aviation of HK$676 million (2002: nil), power generation
of HK$546 million (2002: nil) and others of HK$110 million (2002: HK$202 million).

27 Operating Lease Commitments

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases at 31 December are as follows:

£@ Group AT Company
KB EE Tt E in HK$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
LESS Properties commitments
—FR Within 1 year 93 94 16 16
—FRERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 102 128 23
hFE After 5 years 24 26 - -
219 248 22 39
Hoh e Other commitments
—FR Within 1 year 35 50 - -
—FRERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 25 35 - -
HFE After 5 years 14 15 - _
74 100 - _
293 348 22 39

128




28 MAARRK

a A ) 2 ] 7 o 1 D B A RS ] (TP )
AT 2 PR ) 2 ) B A 1 2 s A L A7

[ BURF B2 LA OR - PRSP BE AT -£ 1
EoCZ T g v [ i JEE BE AR ([ BEAE D)
BLHE o1 PR B B A AR 2 % L PR AR A W 2 T
i < HEBE T o BRI — UL B A 58
B> BERAEY Sy HE RS R T (R R AR
wRE) -

URYE B ORI 4R 2 AR TR AR - PR B
SRR L ] A% 4% A PU BB T A 2 e A AT
L {9148 A ) 2% 0 B A8 S R b T DR 3 2
YIS - B RS

b A Al A I 2 /T 2 DR
TH R TUR R ER AR o

C AR A M A w2 AR
U BERH ) P 7R SE AT A il AT SR LA R -

d AR 5O I BGE A IR R 2 AR
AE—T A ETER L T ERTERERMS
B FE60% A8 I IR

e AN FE— MR T T A 7l — WA
2 DU AR DO TN B T B R I iR e
79.998% 2 {8 Al Y % -

f ARFRMERATS AL TAL A —HEE
WhF T 2 W) 2 e e R — 4 T B KR AR
Efk

g A — ST T A A 7] — [ B 2 R
2R =TS SRR —EOTE AR MR
F172£79.998% Z A Al 1

28 Contingent Liabilities

a The Company together with other beneficial shareholders of Western
Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (‘WHTCL’) have agreed jointly and
severally to guarantee the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region that wHTCL will complete the Western Harbour
Crossing (‘Crossing’) within budget of approximately HK$7.5 billion
including repair costs to be incurred after the operation date of the
Crossing but before the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate. The
Crossing was completed in April 1997 with total cost of approximately

HK$6.8 billion, pending the issuance of the Maintenance Certificate.

The beneficial shareholders of wHTCL have agreed that in relation to any
claim made or asserted under the aforesaid guarantee, as between
themselves, the total of all liabilities in respect of a claim thereunder and
of all costs, charges and expenses suffered or incurred by any of them
resulting therefrom or attributable thereto shall be shared by them in

proportion to their respective ultimate ownership in WHTCL.

b The Company has provided a guarantee on the US$450 million
Guaranteed Notes issued by a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

¢ The Company has provided a guarantee to Commerzbank
Aktiengesellschaft, Hong Kong Branch for a credit facility of up to
RMB100 million granted to a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

d The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 60% to
support loan facilities of RMB615 million and US$70 million to Jilin Xinli

Power Cogeneration Co., Ltd.

e The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998% to
support a loan facility of up to HK$448 million granted by a bank to a
subsidiary of the Company.

f The Company has provided guarantees to 2 banks for each of them
has individually granted a loan facility of up to RMB100 million to a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

g The Company has provided a several guarantee of up to 79.998% to
support loan facilities of HK$300 million and RMB100 million granted
by a bank to a subsidiary of the Company.
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29 Comparative Figures

Pursuant to the refinement of the Group’s classification of associated
companies, jointly controlled entities and investments, certain
presentation of the accounts have been changed.

30 Approval of Accounts

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2004.
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures

The following are the principal subsidiary companies, jointly controlled
entities, associated companies and co-operative joint ventures of the
Group which in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

and net assets of the Group. To give full details of all companies would in

the opinion of the directors result in particulars of excessive length.

AR
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRMHERT
Particulars of
issued shares’

A2/
FEEE MR SEREMN RpaE MEAR
Ei JENERI % % % ESRE G HE F2XH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
BE
Power Generation
AR ERE
Jointly controlled entities
NEELREEHRDA hEARLME 35 - 35 - - ANBEHZEE
PG EREDRE" RER
Inner Mongolia Fengtai People’s Republic of China Coal-fired power
Electric Power Generation Sino-foreign equity station operation
Company Limited joint venture*® and management
EMEHRBERAA hEARLME 60 - 60 - - KOBEHZER-
PG ERERE" e RARRER
Jilin Xinli Power Cogeneration People’s Republic of China Coal-fired
Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity co-generation
joint venture*® power plant
construction and
operation and
related business
EHXNHKERENARAT hEARLME 70 - 70 - - kBB UMIER
PG ERERE"

Wuxi Taihu Lake Pumped
Storage Power Co., Ltd.

People’s Republic of China
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*®

Pumped storage
hydraulic power
plant construction
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31 TEMBAR ~ LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER BELARAREHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENAs and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
A IR BEEITROHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
Ealiiave: L0
FEEEMR REES AAF HEAR
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
NEEEERRERRECTAA hEARHAME 50 - 50 - - ANBERIER
PIAEEEL R
People’s Republic of China Coal-fired
Sino-foreign equity power station
joint venture* construction
,L\{,FA U\/T

Co-operative joint ventures

THMBENERAR ((ME]) EP%)\E#\%D 56.31 - 56.31 - - EEREERLE
(Fifta) SIEEERA]

Jiangsu Ligang Electric Power  People’s Republic of China Electric power
Company Limited (‘Ligang’) Co-operative plant construction
(Note a) joint venture* and operation

HEHNEERRRA EP%)\E#\%D 50 - 50 - - ANBERIEE

AﬂgAL/‘\

Kaifeng Xinli Power People’s Republic of China Coal-fired power
Generation Co., Ltd. Co-operative station

joint venture* operation

FINFHABNERRF (F0)) EP%)\E#\%D 50 - 50 - - BEREERLE
(Bfztb) SIEEERA]

Zhengzhou Xinli Electric People’s Republic of China Electric power plant
Power Co., Ltd. (‘Xinli") Co-operative construction and
(Note b) joint venture* operation
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRMHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

FEMAR SIS/
TELEMH EEREM /NS =N
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
BE
Tunnels
K& 2/l
Subsidiary companies
HEEBERRAR o 70.8 - 70.8 75,000,000 10T REgsE
New Hong Kong Tunnel Hong Kong HK$10  Tunnel operation
Company Limited
A FEHE
Jointly controlled entities
Eastern Harbour Crossing BB 50 - 50 - - REgE
Company Limited
Hong Kong Tunnel operation
EEREREEAKER o 35 - 35 - - B RERRE
BRAR BIERXE
Hong Kong Tunnels and Hong Kong Management,
Highways Management operation and
Company Limited maintenance of
the Cross Harbour
Tunnel
BAERRBERRAR o 35 - 35 - - NE2gEFAEER
RERAREERE
Western Harbour Tunnel Hong Kong Franchise to

Company Limited

construct and
operate the
Western Harbour
Crossing
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR E e ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
RERE
Environmental
HFIEHE RS
Jointly controlled entities
BEENEEERAR BB 50 - 50 - - RE HEREKE
REY)EEIE
Ecoserve Limited Hong Kong Design, construction
and operation of
refuse transfer
station
BEAF
Associated companies
B BERNRERRAA BE 20 - 20 - - RREPER - gER
BB EIER
Enviropace Limited Hong Kong Design, construction,
operation and
management of
chemical waste
treatment plant
BATRAERRAT BB 30 - 30 - - HRRELEVEER
Green Valley Landfill, Limited Hong Kong Landfill construction
and operation
MEEYEERRAT £ 30 - 30 - - RE EHERLE
FEY)EEE
South China Transfer Limited Hong Kong Design, construction

and operation of
transfer station
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31 TEMBAR -~ LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
BER -BEQARSE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENA and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
A ke BEITRMHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
FEMAR SIS/
TELEMR SEREMS ~E MEQAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 EE FEXB
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
ER¥
Communications
K& 2/l
Subsidiary companies
AAA Internet Limited BB 100 - 100 2 BT RMEBERE
REERE
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services and
advertising agency
FEBR1616BRAF] BB 100 - 100 2 BT RHEARS
CITIC Concept 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
telecommunications
services
PEERRE1616BR AR BB 100 - 100 2 BT REEAERRS
(317 CITIC Telecom
1616 Consultancy
Services Limited)
CITIC Consultancy 1616 Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
Limited (Formerly CITIC telecommunications
Telecom 1616 Consultancy consultancy
Services Limited) services
FEHE16166R AR BB 100 - 100 2 BT REBERERRS
CITIC Data 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of data
transmission
services
FRExT (IR ER hEARLME 100 - 100 NiE A TEA RHEEEEE LRY
BMBERAR INEEERE”
China Interactive Sports People’s Republic of China Provision of sports
Technology Company Wholly foreign-owned N/A N/A related online

Limited

enterprise*

services
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEREITRMHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR FEES ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % ienEZ¢E] HE FEEHK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
RIERZ1616BIR AR BE 100 - 100 2 BEAT  REHEARS
CITIC Networks 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
telecommunications
services
PEREEERRHERAR BRE 100 - 100 100,000 BEIT  REER
CITIC Pacific Communications ~ Bermuda HK$1  Investment holding
Limited
RIEEMI616BR AT BE 100 - 100 2 BEAT REEEEARS
CITIC Telecom 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
international
telecommunications
services
PIEZRFRI616BR AR BE 100 - 100 2 BEAT  WHFREIR
CITIC TeleSoft 1616 Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of software
development
services
CPCNet Hong Kong Limited B5 100 - 100 394,866,986 BEAT  REHEEEERS
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services
CPCNet Japanic = &t [ZE:N 100 - 100 10,000 1,000H R AR
CPCNet Japan Limited Japan JPY1,000  Provision of internet
services
CPCNet2FIBRAF R 100 - 100 NEA TEA  RUEHERS
CPCNet Macau Limited Macau N/A N/A  Provision of internet
services
CPCNet Singapore Private N 100 - 100 2 1T RUEEARS
Limited Singapore S$1  Provision of internet

services
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

ERTRHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

FEMAR SIS/
TELEMR EEREM AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 EE FEXB
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Data Communication Services &% 100 - 100 1,000 BT REHEAERE
Limited 38,000,000* BT
Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
HK$1 telecommunications
equipment
HRBERENERAT o 100 - 100 300,000 B0 RMEHERS
Global Link Information Hong Kong HK$10  Provision of internet
Services Limited services
BERRBEBERRF) o 100 - 100 2,250,000 BT RHEEERERS
Vision Network Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of internet
services
BMARDA o 100 - 100 1,000 BT REEEEARS
2,000,000* BT
World Navigation Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of
HK$1 international
telecommunications
services
BMNTREGBRMAERAR hEEARLME 100 - 100 i TEA RHERERERS
INEBE RS
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of internet
Wholly foreign-owned value added
enterprise* services
BMNTREGBRHRARAR hEEARLME 100 - 100 i TEA RHERERERS
INEBE RS
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Provision of internet

Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise*

value added
services
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31 TEMBAR ~ L EEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER BELARAREHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENAs and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
A IR BEREITRMHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares!

Ealiizave: L

FEEEMR FEES KRR HEAR
i JENE R % % % ienEZ¢E] HE FEEHK

Place of incorporation / Attributable

Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
HEEHEE
Jointly controlled entities
PEEZERAR hEEARAME 50 - 50 - - RERRK

POAEEELE
CITIC Guoan Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China Investment holding

Sino-foreign equity

joint venture*

BERA]
Associated companies
RPIEFARR A JRFY 20 20 - - - EFUEARY
Companhia de Macau Telecommunications

Telecomunicacoes
de Macau S.A.R.L.

services
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies

and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FrA Bk
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRMHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

FEMAR SIS/
TELEMH EEREM /NS =N
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Mz
Aviation
A FEHE
Jointly controlled entities
HEEREEMERRAR FEARAME 25 25 - - - BE- BAREEE
FOMEBEERE AR I 3t T AR 75
Air China Cargo People’s Republic of China Operation of
Sino-foreign equity international and
joint venture* domestic air-cargo
services and
related ground
services
=Nl
Associated companies
BHEMEFRARS o 25.70 214 23.56 - - MEREERY
Cathay Pacific Airways Hong Kong Airlines and related
Limited® services
BEMZEARAT o 28.50 - 2850 - - MEER
Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Hong Kong Aviation
Limited
Swire Aviation Limited e 33.33 - 33.33 - - BHEEBTERN
BRAFZ210%
EFES
Hong Kong Investment in

Hong Kong Air
Cargo Terminals
Limited with 10%
effective interest
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR FEES ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
HEEDH
Marketing & Distribution
K18 2 Al
Subsidiary companies
ZEB KA AR 100 - 100 250 50,000H RETHES
Adachi Trading Company Japan JPY50,000  Trader of motor
Limited vehicle spare
parts
BEABARRA B 100 - 100 1,000 BE1007T AEEHEA
Confidence Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
REATHEERLERAR BB 100 - 100 1,000 100 RBEHES
Consolidated Parts & Hong Kong HK$100  Trader of motor
Accessories Sales vehicle spare
Centre Limited parts
REEHTT (MEKR) BRAF JIEVN 100 - 100 650,000 AT —REH AR AR
Dah Chong Hong (Canada) Canada CAN$1  General import/
Ltd. export and
investment
holding
REB ST (PE) ARRA BB 100 - 100 1,000 1007 AR
Dah Chong Hong (China) Hong Kong HK$100  Investment holding
Limited
RE—BRESHHRE BB 70 - 70 10,000 BEIT RS EES
RBERRA HAE IR
Dah Chong Hong — Dragonair Hong Kong HK$1  Provision of airport

Airport GSE Service Limited

ground support
equipment
maintenance
services
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31 TEMBAR -~ LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
B BEQRAREE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies

BENA and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRMHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

FEMAR SIS/
TELEMR EEREM AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REEFTIRERAR o 100 - 100 100,000 BE100T TR
Dah Chong Hong (Engineering) Hong Kong HK$100  Engineering services
Limited
REBSGITEEER AT o 100 - 100 21,031,837 B0 REERK
Dah Chong Hong Holdings Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding
Limited
REEBHGITERRAT o 100 - 100 50,000 #B¥1,000t HREEEEHAOR
ZERL  EXAM
R HANE R
Dah Chong Hong, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Investment holding;
general importers,
retailers and
exporters dealing
in foodstuffs,
electrical
appliances and
other products
KABHAREEHT B 100 - 100 480,000 1,000EE & AERKK
RO MERE
RARE R
Dah Chong Hong (Japan) Japan JPY1,000 Importer and
Limited exporter of
foodstuffs, motor
vehicles and
garments; property
investment and
investment holding
REBHITRE (FE) BERATF o 100 - 100 20,000 B¥100T  RERK
Dah Chong Hong Motors Hong Kong HK$100  Investment holding

(China) Limited
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31 TEMBAR ~ LEEH 31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
ER BELARAREHE Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
BENAs and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued
R A R BEERITRHER
Interest in equity Particulars of
shares held by issued shares'
Ealiizave: L
TELEMR E e ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REfT OREBERY) ERAA s 100 - 100 10,000 B0 REMEE
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Hong Kong HK$10  Motor leasing
Leasing) Limited
SEHTAERBHFLERAR B 100 - 100 2,000 BE100T  TEAEERE
Dah Chong Hong (Motor Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
Service Centre) Limited repairing and
servicing
S8 917TA%E (BHE—FE) o 100 - 100 2 B0 RELHE
BRAF
Dah Chong Hong Motors Hong Kong HK$10  Motor vehicle
(Nissan — China) Limited distributor
REBHTT GIR) MABRIF  #oE 100 - 100 3,500,000 1T REERRERES
Dah Chong Hong Trading Singapore S$1  Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. and trading of
foodstuffs
RE—BEMMZEERAR i 70 - 70 10,000 BT TERBREBETMH
DAS Aviation Support Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Distributor of air
cargo equipment
and related
spare parts
RE-—BREERHARDA s 49 - 49 10,000 BEIT FEAEEERE
RS REBTMHEE
DAS Nordisk Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Repairs and

maintenance
services for air
cargo containers
and sale of related
spare parts
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRMHER
Particulars of
issued shares’

Ealifpave: ke
TELEMR SEREMS AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
REMTRMBBEER AT BB 100 - 100 60,000 B10T 2%
DCH Beverage Solutions Hong Kong HK$10  Trading
Limited
RETRMIEARAR BB 100 - 100 2 B0 REERK
DCH Food Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding
REITRBEZEER AT BB 100 - 100 100,000 BEI00T  HERTEERAM
i
DCH Healthcare Products Hong Kong HK$100  Distribution and
Limited retailing of medical
consumables and
equipment
REBHITRE (BN BRATF BB 100 - 100 2 BT RELHN
DCH Motors (Bentley) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
DCH Motors Ltd. mex 100 - 100 100 M1 RELHE
Canada CAN$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
fpTERAE R AR BB 100 - 100 166,000 BEAT KESERRAE
Gentech Vehicle Engineering Hong Kong HK$1  Trading of special
Limited function vehicles
EREEMRERAR hEEARLME 90 - 90 TER TER O
BB E R
Guangdong Jing Yun People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Distribution

Distribution Co., Ltd.

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR FEES ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
ERAERRRFA BE 100 - 100 1,000 1007 REALHE
Harmony Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
EMAERRRA s 100 - 100 3,000 B¥1,000T AELHE
Honest Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Motor vehicle
distributor
REAETHITERAR BE 100 - 100 1,000 BE100T  REZMHES
Japan Auto Parts Company Hong Kong HK$100  Trader of motor
Limited vehicle spare parts
BHTERRRF BE 100 - 100 2 BT AELHEE
Premium Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Motor vehicle
distributor
BEAERRRA BE 100 - 100 2,000 1007 REALHE
Regal Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor
EEAERARRAF s 100 - 100 3,000 B¥1,0007T AELHE
Reliance Motors, Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000  Motor vehicle
distributor
HE () BRAT BE 100 - 100 2 BEI0T  TIERERS
Sims (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Marketing
co-ordination
services
BEE (ER) BRAF s 100 - 100 2 BT REERK
Sims (Guangdong) Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Investment holding
HEEBRAT BE 100 - 100 3,000 BE100T  #EE
Sims Trading Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Wholesaling
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRTRHAR
Particulars of
issued shares’

Ealifpave: ke

TELEMR SEREMS AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH

Place of incorporation / Attributable

Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
HE ORF9) BRAF RFY 70 - 70 TER TEA  EHOREE
Sims Trading (Macau)

Company Limited Macau N/A N/A  Import and export,
sales and
marketing

EBRETRMIEARRAR hEEARLME 100 - 100 TER TEA BRRNIRES
INEBERE”
Shanghai DCH Food People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Food processing

Industries Ltd. Wholly foreign-owned and trading

enterprise*

ERAELABRAR EipIIE S 100 - 100 3,000,000 THMEITT  REEHEE

Triangle Auto Pte Ltd Singapore S$1  Motor vehicle
distributor

ERAERRRF BB 100 - 100 30,000 100 ABEHER

Triangle Motors Limited Hong Kong HK$100  Motor vehicle
distributor

ERAE (PE) ARRF BB 100 - 100 2 B0 RERKRRAEES

Triangle Motors (China) Hong Kong HK$10  Investment holding

Limited and trading of

motor vehicles
2ARERARAT BB 100 - 100 2 a1 BS
Twin Tiger International Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1  Trading
IFIREEERRMIER hEEARLME 90 - 90 TER TEA ReNIEDERSE
BRARF BB E R
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Processing of food

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

products and
provision of
logistics services
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31

Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRTRHAR
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR E e ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
IFIEEE S ERAR hEARHAME 100 - 100 TEA TEA  RoE
IEBELE"
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Wholesaling of
Wholly foreign-owned food products
enterprise®
BEERERRHLEM AR AR hEARHAME 75 - 75 T B TER EEEMRCEME
PR ERE LR
Qingdao Adachi Paints and People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Production of paints
Chemical Materials Co., Ltd.  Sino-foreign equity and chemical
joint venture* materials
HAIEH
Jointly controlled entities
BEERETHRARAR s 50 - 50 - - (HRES
Shiseido Dah Chong Hong Hong Kong Trading in cosmetic
Cosmetics Limited products
=N
Associated companies
BERREARAT s 50 - 50 - - DHIERMEREH
Alto China Limited Hong Kong Distributor of audio
equipment and
components
PEEERSERRERAT hEARHAME 22 - 22 - - HEERHERER
(A& R LEBEREEER PR ERE LR EWRM
BRAT)

Shanghai Shineway DCH
Tyson Co., Ltd.
(Formerly known as
Shanghai DCH Shuanghui
IBP Co., Ltd.)

People’s Republic of China
Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

Production and
selling of meat
and related
food products
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRTRHAR
Particulars of
issued shares’

Ealifpave: ke
TELEMH EEREM AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
L/ES
Property
K& 2/l
Subsidiary companies
IMXARAF o 100 - 100 2 10T MERE
Admarch Limited Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
MXEERER AR o 100 - 100 2 BEIT  MEER
Admarch Property Management Hong Kong HK$1 Property
Company, Limited management
Borgia Limited BB 100 - 100 2 10T MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
BERLEEERAF o 100 - 100 2 BEIT  MEER
Broadway Centre Property Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Management Company management
Limited
SEERRERAQA o 100 - 100 2 BEIT  DEERE
Campbellton Development Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Limited development
EMER QA o 100 - 100 2 BEIT  WERE
Famous Land Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
Glenridge Company Limited BB 100 - 100 2 10T MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
Goldenburg Properties Limited &% 70 - 70 1,000 10T MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
EHEBEXERAR e 100 - 100 80,000 BE100T  MIEERE
Hang Luen Chong Investment Hong Kong HK$100  Property investment

Company, Limited
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR E e ARATE WEBATF
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
EMEMEEERRAF s 100 - 100 2 BT DEER
Hang Luen Chong Property Hong Kong HK$1  Property
Management Company, management
Limited
BEEEXHERAF s 100 - 100 50,000 BE100T WMERE
Hang Wah Chong Investment Hong Kong HK$100  Property investment
Company Limited
Lindenford Limited B5 100 - 100 2 BEI0T  MERE
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
HEREBRLA s 100 - 100 2 BT DERE
Neostar Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1  Property investment
HBEERLR i 100 - 100 2 BT DERE
Pacific Grace Limited Hong Kong HKS$1  Property investment
PEREEXERAR hEARHAME 100 - 100 TEA THEA DERERER
IEBERE"
Shanghai Super Property People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Co., Ltd. Wholly foreign-owned and management
enterprise®
Tendo Limited s 100 - 100 2 BEI0T DERERER
Hong Kong HK$10  Property investment
and management
WHERREERAR s 100 - 100 1,000,000 BEIT KEREER
Yee Lim Godown & Cold Hong Kong HK$1  Operate a dry and

Storage Limited

cold storage
godown
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRNHER

Particulars of

issued shares’

FEMAR SIS/
TELEMR EEREM AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
EEPEREBRSAERAT hEEARME 80 - 80 i THEA DERERER
NG BB DE
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Sino-foreign equity and management
joint venture*
PEEAEMFEEEARAA hEEARLME 100 - 100 TER TEA WEER
FONE IR R
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property
Sino-foreign co-operative development
joint venture*
EHERXNRERERAT hEEARLME 70 - 70 TER TER  EDRSRS
AN BIEERE
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Sports related
Sino-foreign equity services
joint venture*
EHERNEEEER AT hEEARLME 70 - 70 TER TER PERERER
AN BIEERE
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Property investment
Sino-foreign equity and development
joint venture*
EHRMEEERRRERDA] hEEARLME 70 - 70 TEA TEAR RERE
NG BB DE
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Environmental

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

protection
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

B
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR E e ARATE WEBATF
=i TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE IEXH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
=Nl
Associated companies
FEREEBERATF B 40 - 40 - - VEEE
CITIC Tower Property Hong Kong Property
Management Company management
Limited
X =3 ERAER DA B8 50 - 50 - - MERE
Festival Walk Holdings Limited  Hong Kong Property investment
CERERRRA B8 40 - 40 - - MERE
Goldon Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment
BEREEERRRA B8 50 - 50 - - DEER
Hong Kong Resort Company Hong Kong Property
Limited development
Kido Profits Limited KBERES/EE 15 - 15 - - DERE
British Virgin Islands / Property
Hong Kong development
REERRRATF B8 20 - 20 - - MERE
Shinta Limited Hong Kong Property investment
MBEEARRA B8 40 - 40 - - DEER
Sun Kong Investment Hong Kong Property
Company, Limited development
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITRNHER

Particulars of
issued shares

t

Ealifpave: ke
TELEMR SEREMS AT MWELRAE
£ ENER % % % B’ # 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
T¥BGE
Industrial Manufacturing
K& 2/l
Subsidiary companies
IR EESENEERAR hEARLME 54.94 - 54.94 TEA TEA  WHEEE
PGB ERES
Jiangyin Xingcheng Special People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
Steel Works Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*
LR EEM B R AR hEARAME 55 - 55 TiEA TER WEEE
IR BEERE
Jiangyin Xingcheng Steel People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Steel making
Products Co., Ltd. Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*
IR ER FERR AR hEARLME 55 - 55 NEA TEAR  RHER
PG ERERE"
Jiangyin Xingcheng Storage People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Loading and
and Transportation Co., Ltd.  Sino-foreign equity unloading
joint venture* business
IHFEEEFREAROARRIRT PEARLNE 54.72 - 54.72 390,000,000 ARE1T HEEE
HNEIRE AR il 2
Jiangsu CP Xingcheng People’s Republic of China RMB1  Steel making
Special Steel Co., Ltd. Foreign investment
stock company*
EHEEERERAA FEARKAMNE 55 - 55 TiE TEA ITEEERE
IR REERE"
Wuxi Huada Motors Co., Ltd. People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Industrial motors
Sino-foreign equity manufacturing
joint venture*
TR REERESRMHARAF hEEARLME 54.87 - 54.87 TEHR THEA  EHREEHKR
MG BEEDE HHER
People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Production and sale

Sino-foreign equity
joint venture*

of hot iron and the
related products
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Controlled Entities, Associated Companies

and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

FARE

Interest in equity
shares held by

BBTRHA AR

Particulars of
issued shares*

sEfRAk L2 /
FEEEMR FEES KRR HEAR
£y TENEERI % % % B’ #E HE FEXEBK
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
B3
Finance
K18 2 Al
Subsidiary companies
CITIC Pacific Finance (2001) REREZES 100 100 - 1,000 1%m  MERH
Limited British Virgin Islands US$1  Financing
|dealand Investment Inc. EeHHEME 100 - 100 100 12T ®mERH
Republic of Panama US$1  Financing
Top Trend Investments RBRLER/BRE 100 100 - 1 1%L MERH
Holdings Corp. British Virgin Islands/Bermuda US$1  Financing
=Nl
Associated companies
Cheer First Limited &5 40 - 40 - - RELH
Hong Kong Financing
Treasure Trove Limited &5 50 - 50 - - ®ERH
Hong Kong Financing
EEMBHRRA B8 50 - 50 - - REEBREERE
Way Chong Finance Limited Hong Kong Provision of hire

purchase and
leasing finance
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly

Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

A ke
Interest in equity
shares held by

BRTRHAR
Particulars of
issued shares’

FEMAR SIS/
TELEMH EEREM /NS =N
£ ENER % % % f&th 2 8 HE FEEH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
Hity
Others
K& 2/l
Subsidiary companies
BREXERRA o 62 - 62 2 BEIT REBEER
Botanitown Pharmaceuticals Hong Kong HK$1  Investment in
Limited pharmaceutical
business
IRERELEYRMARAT hEARLME 62 - 62 NiE A TEA  BEHEMARE
INEBELE”
Beijing Botanitown People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Research and
Biotechnologies Limited Wholly foreign-owned development in
enterprise* pharmaceutical
products
PERE (RE)REARRA hEARLME 100 - 100 NiE A TER REER
INEBELE”
CITIC Pacific China Holdings People’s Republic of China N/A N/A  Investment holding
Limited Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise*
ERIREERER DA RBELES 62 - 62 100 1E€T  REBEEK
Winway Investments British Virgin Islands US$1  Investment in
Holdings Corp. pharmaceutical
business
A FES T
Jointly controlled entities
PEARTISERER AR o 50 - 50 - - REEK
CITIC Capital Markets Hong Kong Investment holding

Holdings Limited
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31 Principal Subsidiary Companies, Jointly
Controlled Entities, Associated Companies
and Co-operative Joint Ventures continued

154

Interest in equity
shares held by

BEITROHER
Particulars of
issued shares*

Ealiizave: L
TELEMR FEES KAF MERA
=i AN % % % (igv - ¢= HE I2XH
Place of incorporation / Attributable
Principal place of operation tothe  Company Subsidiary No. of Par
Name Kind of legal entity* Group % % % shares value  Principal activities
FEERIEEERAR i 50 - 50 - - REER
CP Adaltis Hong Kong Hong Kong Investment holding
Company Limited
LPERERRI2EHRBAERAR HEARANE 50 - 50 - - FBRREERINDH
IEBE L ABER
People’s Republic of China Development and
Wholly foreign-owned manufacture of
enterprise* healthcare in-vitro
diagnostic
products
7011 T RIER A Y BT R B hEARHAME 31 - 31 - - AR BT
BRAAF PIONEEEERE
People’s Republic of China Research and
Sino-foreign equity development in
joint venture* biotechnology
Bt Note :

(@) FiEc E—HREZAGIERAEEZAIERENA]
AR ARAEERZERA RN EELBEE
IR ETE DR+ B FR = F R EA R
ZEEBHIE - MUt ZERERA ZEEENE
EWMRIERIRE - I E B A5 A

(b) MIERFEBZAIERERFIALR - ARFFER
ZEHE 2 Bl B F = A RARER W+ LFE
BFHAEARRATEZ BINTRERIRERNAIFE °
Mt - ZIREIFA 2 2B EAFEWRIERIRE I
BB EHEFHFER

t BB HERS - IEEER LG ©

TR ZREERR — USR5 ZHEF - HERRFIZ
HREBAR B ZAHMERRAEA -

S AEFZFEBENABIFEMEFR A AIE AEHRE
ZIHEFREIST 1585 ©
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(a) Ligang Phase | and Il are accounted for as a co-operative joint venture of the Group
as the Group’s interests therein will revert to the joint venture partners in the People’s
Republic of China after fifteen years and twenty years respectively from the date on
which the electricity generators became operational. Accordingly their results are
accounted for to the extent of dividends received and receivable, less amounts
amortised.

(b) Xinli is accounted for as a co-operative joint venture of the Group as the Group’s
interest therein will revert to Zhengzhou Construction Investment Co. in the People’s
Republic of China after fifteen years from the date on which the third unit commenced
commercial operation. Accordingly its results are accounted for to the extent of
dividends received and receivable, less amounts amortised.

t Represented ordinary shares, unless otherwise stated.

* Non-voting deferred shares — the rights, privileges and restrictions of which are set out
in the Articles of Association of the respective company.

¢ Extracts from the published accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited, a significant
associated company of the Group, are shown on pages 157 and 158.



A% il e
Auditors’ Report

HHEREARAA
(AR M L 2 A R A R 2O

AIZHITE E RS2 R 154 HMIRHE >
RS R IR U R B AN 1 & R R 4R
(FIR 97 H 2 G sl BURH 355 1 q BT MR
BrAh) o

EERGBMEAMNER

A 2 R R 91 4 S R LT R T Y
IRH o FEMR RS A PR A R > S
WAZEBR TV B R HBOR - I EL RO T % 5
BRFEOK -

ARG BB BAT R ARBR A AL W 5 OR > %
ERYER(EE. =S A &g AR R
14 1A% 1) BB SRR o BRI Z SN A Hi i
MEHAD F B o LB & AR A A
] Fofte A8 b SURIEAL AT AT -

ERBER

AL B IR A Vs A LA O
QAT LAE o IR0 e A A A 7 X
A% B A AR o 2 L B Y BB R
DINTEATE:S & i TR SN (R E PN )
FEACHIET > IR R ECRR RS B/
A BRI ARG > KA S ERE L
FE R % A g RHEOR -

ARG AE B R T AR - 9 LURAG
JIFP A AR A SR8 5y A6 35 ) SR B M e s EL R
DA 7B 8 - S IRA R A ER
A RRBRAL 1A B TREE o 7E0E R
ARG IR T AFAG 28R B RTIO E R R
R RH o ARBETRLE > RMIEFS TIED
B TS B 5 B 2Ll

Auditors’ report to the shareholders of CITIC Pacific Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 82 to 154 which have been
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

Hong Kong, save as explained in accounting policy Note 1q on page 97.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the directors to prepare
accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing accounts which give
a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our
audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies

are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion

we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis

for our opinion.
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Z# ARk & Auditors’ Report

ER Opinion

AR - BAEIRE 2 AEHRAFH In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
R HAWE BEER-FLT A+ TH of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2003 and of the profit
= HASERR BRI - & BHEMEZE  and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been

% H AR B M R i WA IRE#ELS properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

PR TR Ordinance.

38 5K A8 it B 2 i PricewaterhouseCoopers

S ES i Certified Public Accountants
i “EENE=H+H Hong Kong, 18 March 2004
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Extract from Published Accounts of

Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

7

a &RE& Eﬁ‘ﬁﬁ'ﬁ

a Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

BE_FTo4F+T for the year ended 31 December 2003
LB BT E in HK$ million 2003 2002
=2 Turnover
FERY Passenger services 18,663 22,376
EER% Cargo services 9,913 9,387
Pz 8RR R HE A AR TS Catering and other services 1,002 1,327
=t Total Turnover 29,578 33,090
BxX Expenses
8T Staff (8,035) (7,918)
inéz Route (5,416) (6,113)
PRR Fuel (5,236) (4,895)
RIS Aircraft maintenance (2,856) (3,312)
TEREERE Depreciation and operating leases (4,860) (4,720)
kA Commissions (400) (501)
Hith Others (550) (881)
X Operating Expenses (27,353) (28,340)
EERF Operating Profit 2,225 4,750
B Finance charges (1,807) (2,421)
ET N Finance income 1,187 1,678
B SE HF R Net finance charges (620) (743)
FE(REE B A RE A Share of profits of associated companies 151 324
FR% A A Profit before Tax 1,756 4,331
A Taxation (409) (328)
BBt &R Profit after Tax 1,347 4,003
LY R Minority interests (44) (20)
RR PGSR Profit Attributable to Shareholders 1,303 3,983
RE Dividends
FH—BIR Interim — paid 100 534
RE—FR Final — proposed 568 935
i Bll— BER Special — proposed 936 -
1,604 1,469
BREF (B Earnings per Share (HK¢)
X Basic 39.0 119.5
31 Diluted 38.8 118.7
BRERES (B%T) Shareholders’ Funds per Share (HK$) 9.3 9.6

157



ZEMEERARBAMEER ZME Extract from Published Accounts of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited

b Consolidated Balance Sheet

CEEZHY A=+ —HER as at 31 December 2003
LB BEE T E in HK$ million 2003 2002
BEEREHE Assets and Liabilities
FnBEERAE Non-current assets and liabilities
ETEE Fixed assets 51,357 50,038
BREE Intangible assets 405 489
REB AR ZIRE Investments in associated companies 1,661 1,739
Hih R FIEREZE Other long-term receivables and investments 1,263 1,458
54,686 53,724
REIBE Long-term liabilities (33,022) (31,382)
AR ERFR Related pledged security deposits 11,604 12,853
REGEFHE Net long-term liabilities (21,418) (18,529)
RAREFNEE Retirement benefit obligations (181) (346)
EERIE Deferred taxation (7,762) (7,614)
(29,361) (26,489)
BB EFRE Net non-current assets 25,325 27,235
MBEERAE Current assets and liabilities
=E Stock 398 430
B 5 N A EWRIE Trade and other receivables 4,753 4,294
REES Liquid funds 15,200 18,180
20,351 17,904
REBEZRBHS Current portion of long-term liabilities (6,754) (6,409)
AR ERFR Related pledged security deposits 1,875 2,128
REBEZRBHHFE Net current portion of long-term liabilities (4,879) (4,281)
B 5 RHE MR FIE Trade and other payables (5,543) (5,280)
REE R W Unearned transportation revenue (2,839) (2,518)
BIE Taxation (1,259) (874)
(14,520) (12,953)
MEAEFE Net current assets 5,831 4,951
BEBERTBDRIFTDEE Total assets less current and non-current liabilities 31,156 32,186
DERR = Minority interests (104) (71)
BEFE Net assets 31,052 32,115
EXRREE Capital and Reserves
[N Share capital 669 667
i Reserves 30,383 31,448
BRRES Shareholders’ funds 31,052 32,115
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Definition of Terms

71 7l
ELBA  MORES A e
FARBZ b (5% A IR A A
REBR  gaa o tEAREE - B
A A S 2 B A A
SEEE  ENRENER - RS
BEFE  AROERES LTS
BRME  RES AT
EBITDA  AEIEFE M - BIE - 7%
TR 2 i R
SERIER BB o AR R A
SEPTERI B, - BB LR Ry
2 5%
bk &
A T SR 1 3
B AN B BT 2
IRECES (% )
SRBEES = s
o Y B BT AR
i 44 4
wena £ 1 5
N Gk
SEELRE - 5 T 2 B AR
T A B BT A
i 42 4
FEFERIE S - BIE -
Sems - 70 B 2 W R
= B FB L

Terms
Capital employed

Cash contributed
from all business

Total debt
Net debt
Total capital

EBITDA

Contribution

Ratios

Earnings per share

Shareholders’ funds
per share

Leverage

Cashflow per share

Interest cover

Shareholders’ funds + total debt

Cash inflow to CITIC Pacific Ltd. from its
subsidiary companies, jointly controlled
entities, associated companies and

other investments

Short term and long term loans, notes and bonds

Total debt less cash and bank deposits
Shareholders’ funds + net debt

Net profit less interest expense, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation

After tax profit. No allocation of central
interest, overhead and goodwill is made to
business units

Profit attributable to shareholders

Weighted average number of shares
(by days) in issue for the year

Shareholders’ funds

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

Net debt

Total capital

Cash contributed from all business

Total issued and fully paid shares
at end of the year

EBITDA

Interest expense
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Major Properties Held by the Group

BEZEZ=F1+"A=1+—H%H asat31 December 2003
B4 E IS
o2 / b ER SR #K T2 fE i R EEEE% (FFHFR) RS R%
Leasehold Group’s  Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
FTERENE
Major Properties Held For Investment
1. NEREEIRZENE 2041 100 309,000 BYERER
NEEAHER 297065 & B R I 15 270017 2 260415
Skyway House, 3 Sham Mong Road, Kowloon, H.K. Office and Shop
2604/2700th shares of KIL, No. 9706 & the extension thereto
2. BRELMA2-285F B EA2-65 MM T E R L CRE 2047 100 320,000 REREREE
2L/ T 1 ER 28 3335900017 2 4000153
Block C of Yee Lim Industrial Centre, 2-28 Kwai Lok Street, Cold Storage
and 2-6 Kwai Hei Street, Kwai Chung, H.K. and Godown
4000/9000th shares of KCTL No. 333
3. BEAEESEES-1RAMNAIBERNE 2880 100 48,000 BYERER
MY 85431 [ 543255
Honest Motors Building, 9-11, Leighton Road, Causeway Bay, H.K. Office and Shop
HKIL No. 5431 and 5432
4. HREBAFEHB192-2105:E P LE—H - 2047 100 393,000 I%
BiaPOE_HE1RFE2ME RAEEPS0 R PSSR ENL
S T B 55 1305 R L ST ED 2 2Bk 11156219 257791
Wyler Centre 1, Basement 1 & 2 and Parking Spaces Industrial
Nos P50 and P51 on 2nd Floor of Wyler Centre 2,
192-210 Tai Lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, H.K.
5779/11152th shares of and in the Remaining Portion
of Kwai Chung Town
Lot No. 130 and the extension thereto
5. MREBEBIOBZFEERD - EBFMHER L4359 2047 100 342,000 ERkMERFE
Broadway Centre, No. 93 Kwai Fuk Road, Kwai Chung, Godown and
H.K. KCTL No. 435 Ancillary Office
6. BEREBREWK2EHRAETEES L 2047 100 389,000 BTERERE
A EY 5 88545
DCH Commercial Centre, No. 25, Westlands Road, Quarry Bay, Office and
H.K. HKIL8854 Restaurants
7. BERRAREIRPEARE 2047 40 562,000 BYERER

A B 5 88225
CITIC Tower, No. 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central, H.K.
HKIL No. 8822

Office and Shop
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BB mmEmE

Ho 2 / 3 R SR EK HEE®SH SEEDR% (FAHR) RS RR
Leasehold Group’s  Approximate Gross

Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
8. NEX—HHEZEX—H - MAENBERE1815 2047 50 1,200,000 BrEREH
Festival Walk, Tat Chee Avenue, Yau Yat Tsuen, Kowloon, Office and Shop

H.K. NKIL No. 6181
9. PR LEHZRBAAKI168RTEREES 2044 80 1,137,000 BrIERE
CITIC Square, 1168 Nanjing Xi Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC Office and Shop
10. FE EEFHREELRK688HELAS 2063 100 374,000 =
Royal Pavilion, 688 Hua Shan Lu, Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC Residential
11. Hiro-o Garden Hills, West Hill I-1204, Hiro-o 4-chome, KA 100 873 =
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential
12. Hiro-o Garden Hills, Centre Hill H-1403, Hiro-o 4-chome, KA 100 2,012 =
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential
13. Hiro-o Garden Hills, South Hill D-507, Hiro-o 4-chome, KA 100 2,264 =
Shibuya-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential
14. Dah Chong No. 1 Building, 12-6, Roppongi, 3-chome, KAKERE 100 34,528 BERERS
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Commercial &
Restaurants, etc.
15. Dah Chong No. 2 Building, B1/F-4/F, 18-2, Roppongi, 5-chome, KA FERE 100 13,067 BERERS
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Commercial &
Restaurants, etc.
16. Toriizaka House 14-19, Roppongi, 5-chome, KA 100 7,352 FEERBFIE
Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan Freehold Residential & Office

* BRit 2 U (Rl B () 2 B AR A R — 1.2 Y E P
* excluding a petrol filling station on the ground floor with an ancillary storage tank in part of the basement and a storeroom on the first floor
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SEFE 2 EZYE Major Properties Held by the Group

3%/ ER SR 8K BT IEER
Stage of

Location / Lot No. Completion

flist

BT R

Estimated
Completion
Date

g3l

Classification

Leasehold

R

H AR EEEE
(FAR) (FAR) b ik
Approximate Approximate
Site Area  Gross Floor
(sq. ft.) Area (sq. ft.)

R
B  SE#ED
[E R %

Group’s

Expiry Interest % Existing Use

BRBZIEYE
Major Properties Held For Development

1. R
E1215 LB A F 39058 M ER < #RER
39457 R 2 #AER ~ 395~ 396 ~ 397 »
399 - 400 - 401 + 402 + 405 406 *
407 ~ 409 * 41057 ER 2 BRER -
25 R Z RRER ~ 4135 ER 2 RRER -
AR 2 RRER ~ 416 - 417 - 418~
419K 42458 & LB 41D
EA27RE2TAFIER 2 BRER -
E2TBRIER 2 RER ~ 2TOSRIER 2 BRER -
2825R R 2 #RER - 2835RHER 2 BRER
284 - 285 - 2865iBE 2 #HER
E2865BERE — DB R E 2865 R < SAER
Lot Nos. 390Rp, 394Rp, 395, 396, 397,
399, 400, 401, 402, 405, 406, 407, 409,
410Rp, 412Rp, 413Rp, 414Rp, 416, 417,
418, 419 and 424 in d.d. No. 121 and
Lot Nos. 274Rp, 278Rp, 279Rp, 282Rp,
283Rp, 284, 285, 286sB Rp, 286sB ssl
and 286Rp in D.D.
No. 127 Yuen Long, New Territories, H.K.

N/A

N/A

N/A

2047 100 193,652 TER febiug: s

N/A Construction
Site

2. AT TER
FE1045 L E LN FEI7235R R DE 2 R ER -
E10157 I8 419 F43A K505 3 R 62
E1065% L2 K19 5 126657 R 2 #RER
1267 [ 12685 ih £
Lot No. 3723 sD Rp in D.D. No. 104 and
Lot Nos. 43A and 50 in D.D. No. 101 and
Lot Nos. 1266Rp, 1267 and 1268 in D.D.
No. 105, Yuen Long, New Territories, H.K.

N/A

N/A

N/A

2047 40 2,449,617 TER it

N/A  Agricultural
Land
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B LEA0)

st HR  SE#ER R ETE IBEEE
HhBh / 3 R 5 2 RIFEER RIAH gl [E W % (FHIR) (FHR) RERE
Estimated Approximate Approximate
Stage of ~ Completion Leasehold  Group’s Site Area  Gross Floor
Location / Lot No. Completion Date Classification Expiry Interest % (sg. ft.) Area (sqg. ft.) Existing Use
3. NERDEBMNE500%5025 &R TEA TEA 2047 100 20,258 TEA e
FVBE LR 5475155 47525
No. 500 and 502, n/a n/a n/a N/A Construction
Tung Chau Street, Site
Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, H.K.
NKIL No. 4751 & 4752
4. BEMEHBRARME/ TFHEAT FEREE 2072 100 734,783 3,000,000 AR
BEREE AP FETE
New Westgate Garden, Super- Residential Construction
Xi Zang Nan Lu / structure in 2005 / & Site
Jian Guo Dong Lu, in progress 2006 Commercial
Huang Pu District,
Shanghai, the PRC
B4 EmEE
o2 / 3 ER SR 2K TH 22 7 ER SEERY% (FAHR) RSB®E
Leasehold Group’s Approximate Gross
Address / Lot No. Expiry Interest % Floor Area (sq. ft.) Existing Use
BREZTEYE
Major Properties Held for Sale
NERBEIE109-135% mEAE 2006 100 135,000 =
NERHERE 2657 DR E1 R E20 B R #rER
Grand Court, 109-135 Kadoorie Avenue, Kowloon, H.K. Residential

Subsections 1 and 2 and the Remaining Portion of Section D of KIL No. 2657
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Shareholders may at any time choose to receive the Summary Financial Report or the Annual Report in printed form or to
rely on their versions posted on the Company’s website. They may also at any time choose to receive the Summary Financial
Report or the Annual Report in place of the other. Shareholders may change their choice on these matters by writing to the
Company’s Share Registrars, Tengis Limited at G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

If Shareholders have already chosen to rely on the versions of the Summary Financial Report or the Annual Report posted
on the Company’s website and have difficulty in gaining access to those documents, they will, promptly upon request, be sent

those documents in printed form free of charge. Please send the request to the Company’s Share Registrars.
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